NON-CONFIDENTIAL
BOROUGH OF TAMWORTH

-
'l"l'l'l'l'i
vlnnnnn

CABINET

16 January 2014

A meeting of the CABINET will be held on Thursday, 23rd January, 2014, 6.00 pm
in Committee Room 1 Marmion House, Lichfield Street, Tamworth

AGENDA
NON CONFIDENTIAL

1 Apologies for Absence
Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 6)
3 Declarations of Interest

To receive any declarations of Members’ interests (pecuniary and non-pecuniary)
in any matters which are to be considered at this meeting.

When Members are declaring a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in respect of
which they have dispensation, they should specify the nature of such interest.
Members should leave the room if they have a pecuniary or non-pecuniary
interest in respect of which they do not have a dispensation.

4 Question Time:

To answer questions from members of the public pursuant to Executive
Procedure Rule No. 13

5 Matters Referred to the Cabinet in Accordance with the Overview and
Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Pages 7 - 8)

(Update from the Chair of Healthier and Safer Scrutiny following the meeting of
21 November 2013)

6 Shared Services - Memorandum of Understanding (Pages 9 - 16)
(Report of the Leader of the Council)

7 Draft Budget & Medium Term Financial Strategy 2014/15 (To Follow)
(Report of the Leader of the Council)



8 Business Rates Income Forecast 2014/15 (To Follow)
(Report of the Portfolio Holder for Operations and Assets)

9 Off Street Cashless Parking and ANPR Trial (Pages 17 - 50)
(Report of the Portfolio Holder for Operations and Assets)

10 Scheme of Delegation Decisions (Pages 51 - 54)
(Report of the Portfolio Holder for Operations and Assets)

11 Golf Course Future Options Appraisal - Preferred Option Selection (Pages
55 - 108)
(Report for the Portfolio Holder for Economy and Education)

12 High Speed Rail 2 (HS2) Phase Two: Response to the Phase Two Route
Consultation (Pages 109 - 162)
(Report of the Portfolio Holder for Economy and Education)

13 Landlord Services High Rise Fire Safety (Pages 163 - 182)
(Report of the Portfolio Holder for Public Housing and Vulnerable People)

Restricted
NOT FOR PUBLICATION because the report could involve the disclosure of
exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 1, 3 and 9 of Part 1 of Schedule
12A to the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended)

14 Fire Safety Partner for Council Owned Stock - Landlord Services (Pages 183

- 196)
(Report of the Portfolio Holder for Public Housing and Vulnerable People)

Yours faithfully
Chief Executive

People who have a disability and who would like to attend the meeting should contact
Democratic Services on 01827 709264 or e-mail committees@tamworth.gov.uk
preferably 24 hours prior to the meeting. We can then endeavour to ensure that any
particular requirements you may have are catered for.

To Councillors: D Cook, R Pritchard, S Claymore, S Doyle, M Greatorex and J Oates



Agenda ltem 2

1T

J MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
| ' CABINET
HELD ON 28th NOVEMBER 2013

PRESENT: Councillor D Cook (Chair), Councillors S Claymore, S Doyle,
M Greatorex and J Oates

The following officers were present: Anthony E Goodwin (Chief Executive), John
Wheatley (Executive Director Corporate Services), Rob Barnes (Director -
Housing and Health), Andrew Barratt (Director - Assets and Environment),
Stefan Garner (Director of Finance), Anica Goodwin (Director - Transformation
and Corporate Performance), Robert Mitchell (Director - Communities, Planning
and Partnerships), Michael Buckland (Head of Revenues), Stephen Lewis (Head
of Environmental Health), Sarah McGrandle (Head of Environmental
Management), James Roberts (Economic Development and Enterprise
Manager), Karen Taylor (Head of Benefits), Jane Eason (Communications and
PR Manager) and Jayne Wilson

65 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor R Pritchard.
66 CORPORATE UPDATE
The Communications Manager gave a presentation on The New Council Website.

67 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the meeting held on 24 October 2013 were approved and signed
as a correct record.

(Moved by Councillor Oates and seconded by Councillor Doyle)
68 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no Declarations of Interest.
69 QUESTION TIME:

There were no questions received from the public.

70 MATTERS REFERRED TO THE CABINET IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PROCEDURE RULES

None

Page 1



Cabinet 28 November 2013

DRAFT BASE BUDGET FORECASTS 2014/15 TO 2018/19

The Report of the Leader of the Council informing Members of the re-priced base
budget for 2014/15, base budget forecasts for the period 2014/15 to 2018/19 (the
5 year Medium Term Planning period) and the underlying assumptions and the
future strategy to address the financial trends was considered.

RESOLVED: That:

1  The technical adjustments and re-priced budget figures
for 2014/15 and indicative budgets to 2018/19 be
approved, and;

2 The proposed policy changes, as detailed within the
report be considered, and;

3  In compliance with the Constitution of the Council, the
Joint Scrutiny Budget Workshop be asked to consider
the budget proposals contained within this report.

(Moved by Councillor D Cook and seconded by
Councillor S Doyle)

QUARTER TWO 2013/14 PERFORMANCE REPORT

The Report of the Leader providing Cabinet with a performance health-check was
considered.

RESOLVED: That the contents of the report be endorsed.

(Moved by Councillor D Cook and seconded by Councillor
S Doyle)

THE TAMWORTH GROWTH AND REGENERATION PLAN

The Report of the Portfolio Holder for Economy and Education seeking approval
for the draft Tamworth Growth and Regeneration Plan was considered.

RESOLVED: That:

1 The Tamworth Growth and Regeneration Plan be
approved and that its implementation is managed through
the Regeneration Board of CMT in conjunction with the
Portfolio Holder Economy and Education and with reports
to Cabinet on progress, and;

2 Authority be delegated to the Head of Planning and
Regeneration to make minor amendments to the Growth
and Regeneration Plan prior to it being finalised and
printed in conjunction with the Portfolio Holder for
Economy and Education.

(Moved by Councillor S Claymore and seconded by

2
Page 2



74

75

76

Cabinet 28 November 2013

Councillor D Cook)

SHARED SERVICE IN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT - ANNUAL REPORT

The Report of the Portfolio Holder for Economy and Education updating Cabinet
on the progress made by the Shared Service in Economic Development in the
implementation of the Business and Economic Partnership’s (BEP) Economic
Strategy 2011 and the contributions made to the development of the local
economy was considered.

RESOLVED: That:

1 The progress made by the Shared Service and BEP in
implementing the 2011 Economic Strategy be endorsed,
and,

2 The review of the 2011 Economic Strategy be supported
and that a refreshed Strategy be presented to Cabinet in
early 2014, and;

3 The continued work and approach of the Shared Service
and BEP in seeking to achieve the ambitions of the
Economic Strategy and related economic objectives of
both Tamworth Borough Council and Lichfield District
Council be endorsed.

(Moved by Councillor Claymore and seconded by
Councillor Cook)

THINK LOCAL LIMITED: CEASING OF TRADING,

The Report of the Portfolio Holder for the Economy and Education informing
Cabinet of a Board decision by Think Local Ltd to voluntarily dissolve the
company and transfer the assets back to Tamworth Borough Council, and
seeking authorisation to establish a dormant limited company in Tamworth
Borough Council’'s ownership in order to preserve and protect the trading name
‘Think Local Limited’ was considered.

RESOLVED: That the decisions of the Board of Think Local Limited be
endorsed and The Director Communities, Planning and
Partnerships in conjunction with the Portfolio Holder
Economy and Education be authorised to establish the
dormant company as soon as practically possible.

(Moved by Councillor Claymore and seconded by
Councillor S Doyle)

IMPROVEMENT WORKS TO PRIVATE SECTOR HOUSING

The Report of the Portfolio Holder for Public Housing and Vulnerable People
seeking approval for the utilisation of existing Council resources to undertake

3
Page 3



Cabinet 28 November 2013

works in default and to provide loans to remedy urgent repair issues in private
sector homes was considered.

RESOLVED: That that proposal to release the £130,000 held in the
‘Coallfields’ Capital Contingency Funds and utilise them to
carry out works in default and provide loans to remedy
urgent repair issues in private sector homes in line with the
Council's existing Enforcement Policy and Financial
Assistance Policy be approved.

(Moved by Councillor M Greatorex and seconded by
Councillor J Oates)

INSTALLATION OF GAS CONNECTIONS IN BELGRAVE

The Report of the Portfolio Holder for Public Housing and Vulnerable People
seeking approval for the Council to support Affordable Warmth Solutions to install
mains gas in a defined area of Belgrave Tamworth was considered.

RESOLVED: That:

1 A programme to install mains gas and related works to an
area of Belgrave working in partnership with Affordable
Warmth Solutions be supported, and;

2 Subject to the outcome of the consultation with tenants
and residents the installation of gas central heating
systems in Council homes within the area be approved as
part of the Council's overall Housing Investment
Programme.

(Moved by Councillor M Greatorex and seconded by
Councillor D Cook)

FEES AND CHARGES - ASSETS AND ENVIRONMENT

The Report of the Portfolio Holder for Environment and Waste Management
informing members of proposed fee increases applicable to the cemetery and
sports pitch services was considered.

RESOLVED: That:

1 The initial increase in Cemetery fees from 1 January
2014 be approved, and;

2  Annual increases in Cemetery fees by RPI commencing
on 1 April 2015 with a full review of fees every three
years be approved, and;

3  The ongoing annual increase in Sports Pitch fees by RPI
on 1 April 2014 with a full review every three years be
approved.

(Moved by Councillor S Doyle and seconded by

4
Page 4



79

80

81

Cabinet 28 November 2013

Councillor D Cook)

SCRAP METAL DEALERS ACT 2013 FEES

The Report of the Portfolio Holder for Environment and Waste Management
providing details of proposed fees and seeking approval to refer the fees and
Scheme of Delegation to Council was considered.

RESOLVED: That:
1 The Scheme of Delegation be endorsed and
recommended to full Council, and;
2  The proposed fee levels be endorsed and recommended
to full Council.

(Moved by Councillor S Doyle and seconded by
Councillor D Cook)

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT AND ANNUAL
INVESTMENT STRATEGY MID-YEAR REVIEW REPORT 2013/14

The Report of the Portfolio Holder for Operations and Assets presenting members
with the mid-year review of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and
Annual Investment Strategy was considered.

RESOLVED: That the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and
Annual Investment Strategy Mid-year Review Report 2013/14
be accepted.

(Moved by Councillor D Cook and seconded by Councillor S
Doyle)

LOCAL COUNCIL TAX REDUCTION SCHEME 2014/15

The Report of the Portfolio Holder for Operations and Assets seeking Cabinet
consideration of the ongoing agreement of the Authority’s current Council Tax
Reduction Scheme for Working Age customers including 1% up ratings to
Applicable Amounts applied for 2014/15 was considered.

RESOLVED: That:

1 The continuation of the Authority’s current Council Tax
Reduction Scheme for a further year, without change, for
2014/15 be endorsed, and;

2 The scheme be reviewed following completion of the first
year, identification of delivery of the scheme’s financial
target and full implications of potential changes that may
arise re: consultation/equalities/potential challenge.

(Moved by Councillor D Cook and seconded by Councillor

5
Page 5



82

83

84

Cabinet 28 November 2013

M Greatorex)

CABINET REPORT FOR WRITE OFFS 01/4/13 - 30/9/13

The Report of the Portfolio Holder for Operations and Assets providing members
with details of write offs from 1 April 2013 to 30 September 2013 was considered.

RESOLVED: That the amount of debt be written off.

(Moved by Councillor D Cook and seconded by Councillor S
Claymore)

COUNCIL TAXBASE 2014/15

The Report of the Portfolio Holder for Operations and Assets reporting the
Council Tax Base for the Borough Council for 2014/15 was considered.

RESOLVED: That Tamworth Borough Council resolves its calculation of the
Council Tax Base for the year 2014/15 to be 20,389.

(Moved by Councillor D Cook and seconded by Councillor S
Doyle)

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED: That members of the press and public be now excluded from the
meeting during consideration of the following item on the grounds
that the business involves the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in Paragraph 1 and 3, Part 1 of Schedule
12A to the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

LAND ADJACENT TO 56 WATLING STREET, TAMWORTH

The Report of the Portfolio Holder for Operations and Assets seeking approval to
dispose of land adjacent to 56 Watling Street was considered.

RESOLVED: That Cabinet authorised the disposal of the land and authorised
the Director of Assets and Environment to conclude the
negotiations and finalise the sale.

(Moved by Councillor D Cook and seconded by Councillor S
Claymore)

Leader

Page 6



Agenda Item 5

CABINET
23 JANUARY 2014
REPORT OF THE CHAIR OF HEALTHIER AND SAFER SCRUTINY

RECOMMENDATIONS TO CABINET

That:

The Healthier and Safer Scrutiny Committee discussed violence and domestic
violence at its last meeting, following that discussion the committee would like
to ask the Cabinet to liaise directly with the relevant County Council portfolio
holder in order to understand what services are currently available to tackle
alcohol misuse in Tamworth and what services are currently being
commissioned. This will support and enhance the recent request made by
Borough Council officers to the County Council following the committee
meeting.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Agenda Item 6

CABINET
23 JANUARY 2014
REPORT OF THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL
A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING TAMWORTH BOROUGH
COUNCIL & LICHFIELD DISTRICT COUNCIL
PURPOSE

To seek Cabinet endorsement of a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU)
relating to potential shared services with Lichfield District Council.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Cabinet endorse the attached Memorandum of Understanding thereby
securing future shared service opportunities with Lichfield District Council.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report seeks to place an existing, informal arrangement and
commitment onto a more secure footing and thus provide each Authority
with the initial option of pursuing a shared service arrangement with the
other. This is neither a contractual agreement nor a legally binding
arrangement. The MoU is viewed as a clear demonstration of trust and
confidence and a commitment to build upon existing successes.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Whilst there are none arising directly from this report, it is anticipated that
elements of technical and legal support may be necessary subject to the
scale and scope of the shared service in question.

Similarly, the establishment of a critical mass of partners for a shared
service may be dependent upon compatible ICT platforms and operating
systems. Any resources would require to be justified via a Business Case
or evidence of an ‘Invest to Save’ efficiency.

LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS

There are none arising directly from this report or the recommendation.

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

There are none arising directly from this report.

Page 9 1



BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Tamworth Borough Council and Lichfield District Council enjoy the benefits
of several shared services arrangements as acknowledged in the recent
Peer Challenge initial feedback. These include:

Joint Waste & Recycling
Corporate Health & Safety
Building Control

Business Support & Advice

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Shared Service Arrangements
MTFS

Sustainability Strategy

Peer Challenge Feedback
REPORT AUTHOR

Anthony E. Goodwin
Chief Executive

Should members require any further information or clarification prior to the
meeting then please contact:

Anthony Goodwin Chief Executive ext 211 or  tony-
goodwin@tamworth.gov.uk

Page 10 2



APPENDIX A
1 BACKGROUND & CONTENT

Like all council’s across the country, both authorities are facing significant
and continued financial challenges. In order to meet those challenges,
both councils are committed to exploring innovative ways to maintain vital
services whilst reducing costs and achieving efficiencies.

It was with this in mind that the Cabinet members from Tamworth Borough
Council and Lichfield District Council met to discuss the potential benefits
of closer working relationships built upon very real successes of existing
shared services such as the Joint Waste Collection arrangements.

After due consideration and debate, it was agreed to place an informal and
‘in principle’ arrangement on a more secure footing in the form of a
‘Memorandum of Understanding’. (Attached as Appendix B).

2 SHARED SERVICES

There are many forms of shared working that can be put in place between
two councils and most are probably in operation in one form or another
somewhere in the country at the present time. These range from formal
shared management teams and shared decision making to service level
agreements for combined service delivery.

One option is that opportunities for shared services are taken up with
anyone at anytime and assessed on an individual cost benefit basis. This
results in each service being looked at on its own merits and a ‘mixed
economy of service delivery evolves (much like we have now with
numerous shared approaches to services with various partners).

Another option is to have a ‘preferred partner. i.e. when opportunities
through staff departure or change arises the service will be looked at as a
potential for sharing and redesign with one other council. Thus, over time,
synergies, efficiencies and a closer working relationship and culture
develop. Whilst this would take time, in terms of the long term intentions
for a closer overall working relationship, there are advantages in terms of
shared culture as well as economies of scale.

Sharing the delivery of services can have many benefits but it must also be
appreciated that in bringing together services you also bring together
different cultures, staff terms and conditions, processes, practices and
judgments about what a service should be and how it should be best
delivered. Over time each council will have refined and developed its own
processes not only to meet the specific needs of its unique population but
also to make its own efficiency savings over the last 5 -10 years of local
government change.

Recognised nationally as an essential component of local government,
‘shared services’ has much press coverage and always features highly in
articles and lists as to how costs can be reduced. Where the same process

Page 11 3



is delivered to a customer — such as the collection of waste bins and where
there is agreement on the standard and level of service to be delivered,
economies of scale are certainly possible, as demonstrated by the
successful shared waste service between our two councils. Savings can
be made in management costs and service standards can be improved
through greater resilience and new opportunities for process improvement.
However unit costs for a service per head of population, or per household,
may vary widely when the nature of the council — its size, geography and
demography - is taken into account.

Whilst a move towards shared services can offer savings and service
improvement, it would be a mistake to think that this will solve the financial
challenges that we face or be the right way forward on all service areas. It
is but one activity that should be rightly pursued in our Sustainability
Strategy Workstream.

Page 12 4



1.1

2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

41

APPENDIX B

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

Purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding

The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding (referred to in
the remainder of this document as MoU) is to:-

(@) set out in simple, non legalistic, terms the way that the
partners to the MoU will work together

(b)  clarify and record any responsibilities of the partners to the
MoU individually and collectively, including to each other

Who are the partners to the Memorandum?

The partners to the MoU (referred to in the remainder of this
document as the Partners) are:-

Tamworth Borough Council
Lichfield District Council

Status of the Memorandum and the partnership

The MoU is an operational document. It is not a formal or legally
binding contract.

The Partners, individually and collectively, have (by signing the
MoU) agreed to use all reasonable endeavors to comply with the
terms and spirit of the MoU. They will not be obliged to undertake
expenditure without that being agreed by them as individual partners
except where they each agree to commit funding of a specific
amount (one-off or annually) to be pooled.

By agreeing the MoU the Partners are expressing their clear intent
to work more closely together and the officers of each authority are
encouraged and empowered to work up potential joint working and
shared staffing arrangements to be presented and judged on a
business case basis for consideration.

Key principles

The Partners, individually and collectively, have (by signing the
MoU) agreed the following key principles :

The Partners wish to seek efficiencies and service improvement
through closer working and joint service development;

The Partners wish to retain their unique decision making powers and
democratic independence;

Page 13 5



The Partners wish to retain their distinct character and identity;

The Partners agree that the objectives of working more closely
together include:

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

improving services for customers

delivering efficiency savings

increasing resilience of services whilst retaining independence
identifying and delivering best practice

Increasing influence in LEP activities and other sub regional
bodies, whilst recognising the right of each Partners choice in
LEP membership.

Actions and decisions as to what to recommend to individual
Partners should reflect what is in the best interests of all Council
Tax payers and the implications for individual Partners within the
geographical area of Lichfield & Tamworth, and take into account
what is fair and equitable for each Partner. Savings might not
always be made by both councils on every service — but that
overall the final costs for both councils should be less than now;

The Partners accept there may be areas where contractually
services cannot be shared immediately - e.g. where there are
existing contractual arrangements of shared service
arrangements with other councils etc. but on review of those
existing contracts and arrangements the option for shared
service with the other Partner should be considered as a
preferred option;

Where shared service options are to be considered or service
reviews are to take place The Partners undertake to advise the
other accordingly and invite a joint approach to the review to be
adopted and shared service solutions investigated with each
other as the preferred option;

The Partners accept that in some cases when review work is
done the costs and implications of a shared service approach will
be such that as an individual council they do not wish to proceed
with that proposal; there is no creation of a commitment to share
all services at any cost;

To work together in a spirit of mutual trust, support and respect,
and to ensure that when difficulties or differences of opinion arise
they are addressed quickly, honestly and openly, if necessary by
holding a Joint Meeting with Leading Members and Chief
Executives.

Page 14 6



4.2 The Partners have agreed to make sure that they jointly agree how,
and when, they communicate any issues arising from the MoU with
any stakeholder group. They also agree to communicate honestly
and openly with each other.

5. Period of the Agreement

5.1 It is anticipated that this agreement will require review on a regular
basis and at least annually.

Signed

Leader Tamworth Borough Council

Chief Executive Tamworth Borough Council

.................................... Date

Chief Executive Lichfield District Council

........................................ Date

Page 15 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



CABINET Agenda Item 9

23 January 2014
THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR OPERATIONS AND ASSETS
OFF STREET PARKING UPDATES, CASHLESS PARKING AND ANPR TRIAL

EXEMPT INFORMATION
None

PURPOSE

To seek Members approval for the introduction of an 18 month no cost trial for a
cashless parking and virtual permit system in all Council car parks, and a new
Automatic Number Plate Recognition initiative parking trial.

RECOMMENDATIONS
Members are asked to:

e Approve the introduction of Cashless Parking for a 18 month trial period

e Approve the revised fee structures and charges necessary to accommodate
the implementation of the above off street parking cashless parking

e Approve the updating to off-street car parking orders to accommodate
cashless parking

e Approve receipt and expenditure of a grant allocation of £50K to support
ANPR trial on allocated car parks as detailed

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Cashless Parking

Several parking providers have offered a free trial to the Authority for the introduction
of a cashless parking service to offer motorists alternatives to paying at P&D
machines.

Bemrose Booth Mobile can provide the software, required signage and back office for
the introduction of cashless parking in Tamworth for an eighteen month trial period at
no cost to Tamworth Borough Council.

After eighteen months, the service will be reviewed as to the take up and success,
and if successful the service need will be subject to a tender exercise.

Advice received from the Council’s procurement team is that a trial period does not
need to be subject to a procurement process

Page 17



The current “back office” penalty charge processing at Stoke on Trent is not affected
by this service and Bemrose Booth will provide mobile devices for the Civil
Enforcement Officers (which will become the property of the Council) to enable
effective operation of this trial.

Users of the car parks can buy tickets in advance or opt to purchase longer time on
reminder all by their mobile device. This will encourage shoppers and visitors to stay
longer without having to ensure that they must rush back for an expired ticket. The
reminder is sent by text message.

A cashless parking system gives the opportunity for motorists to park for longer
periods and affords the Council an opportunity to introduce overnight stay options on
some car parks without fear of penalty to the motorist. This will benefit hotel guests,
visitors and commuters who may require to park for longer periods. Town centre
residents may also benefit from these options for their visitors.

All signage and publicity will be arranged by Bemrose Booth in conjunction with the
Council.

The use of the text messaging service also allows for the sending of appropriate
marketing messages to account holders. This could include incentive offers,
notification of events and other information.

The intended implementation date is during February 2014.
Fees

The fee structure proposed allows for cashless parking allows for a discounted day
parking rate over more than one day (attached), allowing for greater flexibility on the
car parks.

Statistics have shown that the most common rate of car park charge in Tamworth is
£1.40 (up to two hours). All day time tariffs will be included for use of the public on
Council car parks.

The Council will receive full income from parking tariffs.

All car parks will maintain the opportunity for motorists to pay for normal daily tariffs
as advertised.

Cashless parking will also allow for a flexible ‘roll over’ tariff for persons wishing to
extend the paid for time after 6pm to beyond 8am the following morning, allowing
flexibility for visitors to town centre properties and hotels. For example the purchase
of an up to two hour tariff at 5.30pm will allow parking until 9.30am the following day.

It is further proposed that there is an option to use the current all day and introduce 2
day tariffs to be available cashless on the following car parks:-

Hospital Street

Lower Gungate
Church Lane
Marmion Street
Albion Street
Spinning School Lane

Page 18



The all day tariff and 2 day tariff will provide a non-chargeable overnight parking valid
for a 24/48 hour period. (eg a motorist arriving at 4pm today purchasing an one day
(£4.50/£5.00) tariff will be permitted to stay until 4pm the following day.)

The charge to the motorist will be a 20p per transaction charge for the use of the
system — this fee will be retained by Bemrose Booth for administration.

Revision of Off Street Orders

Current parking orders reflect a charging period of 8am-6pm on off street orders and
operation during these hours. The introduction of a cashless parking system for a
flexible roll over day/2 day tariffs and the use of a ‘virtual’ permit require an
amendment to reflect this.

The orders must be available to the public for 28 days prior to introduction.
Revised orders are included Appendix 1.
ANPR Camera Trial

A grant of £50k is available via government funding from Bemrose Booth Mobile to
the Council to trial an Automatic Number Plate Recognition system on the Council
car parks for up to 18 months.

It is proposed to use the 3 busiest car parks:-

e Bolebridge Island
e Aldergate
e Holloway

Bemrose Booth Mobile in partnership with Creative Parking Solutions will provide the
installation of cameras and new alpha numeric pay and display machines to the car
parks. The machines are provided by Metric who are our current supplier.

The cameras will recognise the number plates of vehicles and log when a P&D
ticket/cashless transaction is purchased and the time.

The use of ANPR cameras is common place in parking enforcement and will give full
information on the use and turnaround in the Council car parks to best enable further
development.

This information will be available to the Civil Enforcement Contractor who will then be
better able to allocate beat patterns for officers. During the trial and due to the
requirements of the Traffic Management Act, all PCNs will continue to be
issued by our contractor and will not affect current processes. Penalties will
not be issued automatically at notification to the officers, but subject to the
observation periods currently operating in the Staffordshire Policy for
Processing of Penalty Charge Notices. The cashless system will also operate a
text alert to subscribers to inform them of impending expiry of paid for time and give
the option to top up.

At the end of the trial, the Council can chose to undertake a procurement exercise to
continue with ANPR cameras or revert to the provision of maintained machines, with

Page 19



the option to purchase the new ones installed.
It is proposed that this trial commences in April 2014.

Grant Money

It is proposed that the grant money is retained for expenditure on projects for the
development of the town centre subject to approval from the Portfolio Holder for
Operations and Assets and the Director Assets and Environment. There is no time
limit as to when this grant can be spent and this will include:-

¢ |Installation of new car park signage and tariff boards

e Up to £15K to work with the Association of Town Centre Management (ATCM)
to undertake town centre footfall analysis, profile and benchmarking surveys to
contribute to town centre initiative

e Retention of outstanding money to explore use for other parking options
including the support of the cost of purchasing equipment after trial evaluation
if successful and investment in other car parks linked to the Gateway Project.

A FAQ sheet is attached as Appendix 2.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

The introduction of cashless parking has no impact on revenue expenditure budgets
and is unlikely to increase income received in the short term, although this will be
monitored as part of the usual budget management process.

The introduction of ANPR will result in potential savings of £315 per machine per
year on the maintenance of existing machines in trial car parks. Total savings during
the trial will be in the order of £1,890 per annum.

At the end of the trial, the Council have the option to purchase the machines at a
considerable reduction to market price from existing revenue budgets. The car parks
subject to the trial also have the oldest pay and display machines, and this will be an
effective way of upgrading our machinery. Purchase costs will be negotiated at the
end of the trial.

Marketing costs and advertising will be met by Bemrose Booth with involvement from
Council Corporate Relations.

LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND

Procurement have advised that there are no procurement issues arising as a result of
free trials and that appropriate processes will be followed at the end of the trial as
necessary.

The impact on car park revenue will be monitored and assessed during the period as
the take-up of cashless increases. Some authorities have realised a reduction in
PCN payments as a result of cashless parking. This will continue to be assessed in
balance with potential increase to parking periods when motorists have the option to

Page 20



automatically do so.

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

The ability to use ANPR and cashless will not be affected and provides longer term
sustainability options whilst the review of the operation of Civil Parking Enforcement
in Staffordshire which is likely to be complete by March 2015. It is not likely to affect
the trial as the off-street element of CPE is at the discretion of the Council .

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The use of cashless parking has been well established in recent years as an option
to allow the motorist to park more conveniently without the worry of finding change
and/or rushing back to the car to avoid a penalty notice.

The Council off-street orders already include the option for other payment methods
and will allow alternative payment when machines are out of order.

The use of ANPR is extensive in the private sector who send out PCNs in the post.
In the public sector, the requirements of the Traffic Management Act mean that
evidence of parking must be photographed.

Several providers have approached the Council to offer trials on this basis.

The use of the Bemrose Booth Mobile affords the Council a free low risk service for

the public as well as the provision of new car park machines on the busiest car park
as well as a grant fund scheme for the purposes of investment in the town centre.

REPORT AUTHOR
Jo Sands, Neighbourhood Services Manager

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS

APPENDICES
1. Off street orders
2. Grant FAQs

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



TAMWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL
OFF-STREET PARKING PLACES CONSOLIDATION
ORDER 2014

Page 23



TAMWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL
OFF STEET PARKING PLACES CONSOLIDATION
ORDER 2014

Tamworth Borough Council (hereinafter called “the Council”) in exercise of its
powers under Sections 32, 35 and Part IV of Schedule 9 of the Road Traffic
Regulation Act 1984, as amended (“the 1984 Act”) and of all other enabling powers,
with the consent of the Staffordshire County Council in accordance with section
39(3) of the 1984 Act and after consultation with the Chief Constable of Staffordshire
Constabulary in accordance with Part lll of Schedule 9 to the 1984 Act hereby

makes the following Order:

PART 1
GENERAL

Commencement and Citation

1. This Order shall come into operation on the First day of February 2014 and
may be cited as the Tamworth Borough Council (Off-Street Parking Places
Consolidation) Order 2014.

Interpretation
2. In this Order, except where the context otherwise requires, the following

expressions have the meanings respectively assigned to them:

“Alternative Approved Method of Payment” means Park and Phone, payment
by debit or credit card facilitated by on site or remote verification by, for
example, card reader or mobile phone text or phone call or decrementing

card;

“‘Bank Holiday” has the same meaning as described in the ‘Banking and
Financial dealings Act 1971 (C.80). The first Monday of May shall be treated
as if it were a Bank Holiday for the purposes of this Order;

“Charging Days”, means those days other than Christmas Day and Easter

Sunday, which are as specified at each Parking Place respectively;

Page 24



“Charging Hours”, means the period as specified at each Parking Place on all
charging days;

“Council” means Tamworth Borough Council or its successor authority;

“Daily Charge” means the charge imposed by the Council for Parking in a
Parking Place on any one day and for a specified period of time as is

identified in the scale of charges specified in the schedules/by notice on site;

“Overnight Charge” means the charge imposed by the Council for Parking in a
Parking place using the Phone and Pay facility beyond the daily Pay and
Display operating hours for a specified time as identified in the scale of

charges specified in the schedules and by notice on site;

"Disabled Persons' Badge" means a badge issued by any Local Authority in
accordance with the provisions of the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders
(Exemptions for Disabled Persons Regulations 2000 or a badge having effect

under those regulations as if it were a Disabled Person's Badge);

“Expiry Time” is the time indicated on the Pay and Display Ticket or end of
pay by phone and is the time by which the Vehicle must leave the Parking
Place;

“Light Goods Vehicle” means a Vehicle which is constructed or adapted for
use for the carriage of goods or burden of any description, the overall height
of which does not exceed 1.85 metres and the unladen weight of which does

not exceed 1525 kilograms and is not drawing a trailer;

“Loading/Unloading” refers to when a Vehicle is Parked wholly in a Parking
Place or bay marked for that purpose on site, for the purpose of delivering or
collecting goods or merchandise or loading or unloading the Vehicle at

premises adjacent to the Parking Place or bay and the Vehicle does not Park

Page 25



for more than twenty minutes or such longer period as a duly authorised

officer of the Council may authorise;

“Motor Cycle” refers to a solo motorcycle only and excludes any motor cycle

which has a side-car or trailer, or which has more than two wheels;

“‘Owner” in relation to a Vehicle means the person who is recorded as the
registered keeper by the Driver and Vehicle Licensing Agency on the date on

which the Vehicle was Parked in the Parking Place in question;

“Park” and “Parked” refer to the stopping of a vehicle and it remaining at rest
for some time whether or not the driver is still in the vehicle and a vehicle
shall be deemed to be parked for any period in the same parking place or
parking bay (as the case may be) if any part of it is below the vehicle or the

vehicle’s load (if any) whether or not the vehicle is moved during that period;

“Phone and Pay” means a method of payment of the Parking charge operated
and maintained by the Council’s appointed service provider to accept and
record the payments (inclusive of any appropriate administrative charge),
made by means of a credit or debit card or any other approved method of
secure authorised payment and transmitted by a mobile telephone or any
other electronic system (inclusive of internet apparatus) to obtain a period of
parking in a parking place where the “pay by phone” system is operational

and indicated by lawful signs;

“Parking Bay” means an area of a Parking Place, which is provided for the
leaving of a Vehicle of a class specified and indicated by markings on the
surface of the Parking Place or signed or otherwise indicated by signs in the

Parking Place;

“Parking Permit” means a season ticket, contract permit, business permit,

staff permit or resident’s permit of a type and design issued by the Council;

"Parking Place" means an area of land provided by the Council pursuant to

Section 32(1) of the 1984 Act for the purpose of Parking of Vehicles and not

Page 26



closed (in part or in whole) by a notice erected thereon by authority of the

Council;

“Operational Day and Hours” means the days and hours of operation as a

designated parking place for which contraventions apply”

“Pay and Display Ticket” means a ticket issued by a Ticket Machine located in
the Parking Place in which the Vehicle has been Parked or issued by a
person nominated by the Council on payment of a charge and valid for a

Parking period as advertised at that Parking Place;

“Penalty Charge” means a charge imposed by legislation in respect of Parking
contraventions that are subject to civil enforcement and has the same
meaning as in the Civil Enforcement of Parking Contraventions (England)

General Regulations 2007;

“Public Holiday” means Christmas Day, Good Friday and any other day

designated by the Government as a public holiday;

‘Relevant Position” means
(a) in respect of a Vehicle displaying a valid Disabled Person’s Badge -
(1) in the case of a Vehicle fitted with a dashboard or fascia panel,
the badge is exhibited thereon so that Part 1 (the front of the
badge), is legible from outside the Vehicle; or
(ii) in the case of a Vehicle not fitted with a dashboard or fascia
panel, the badge is exhibited in a conspicuous position on the
Vehicle so that Part 1 of the badge is legible from outside the
Vehicle;
(b) in respect of a Vehicle displaying a Pay and Display Ticket or Season
Ticket / Parking Permit -
(1) the ticket or permit is exhibited on the inside surface of the
windscreen or in a clearly visible position so that it is facing
forwards and can be easily seen and read from the front or side

of the Vehicle; or

Page 27



(i) in the case of a Vehicle that is not fitted with a transparent
windscreen, the ticket or permit is exhibited on the front of the
Vehicle facing forwards and clearly visible; or
(c) in respect of a Vehicle displaying a Hackney Carriage Plate
(i) the plate must be affixed to the Vehicle in accordance with the
instructions given within the licence as issued by the District

Borough Council;

“Ticket Machine” means an apparatus of a type and design approved by the
appropriate Minister for the purpose of the 1984 Act, being apparatus
designed to indicate the time by a clock and to issue Parking tickets which
show that a payment has been made of an amount or for a period specified
thereon and which specify the date and, either the time of such payment, or

the expiry time of the Parking period for which payment has bee made;

“Vehicle” includes any motor car, Motor Cycle or other mechanically propelled

automobile.

Except where the context requires otherwise, any reference in this Order to a
numbered Article shall be construed as a reference to the Article bearing that

number in this Order.

Any reference in this Order to any enactment shall be construed as a
reference to that enactment as amended, applied, consolidated, re-enacted

by or as having effect by virtue of any subsequent enactment.

Unless the context otherwise requires, words denoting the singular shall
include the plural and vice versa and words denoting the persons shall include
either gender, bodies corporate, unincorporated associations and

partnerships.

The Interpretation Act 1978 shall apply for the interpretation of this Order.

Page 28



PART 2
DESIGNATION AND USE OF PARKING PLACES

Designation

7.

Each area of land or building specified by the accompanying plans and/or by
name in the Schedules may be used, subject to the provisions of this Order,
as a place to Park Vehicles of such classes, in such positions, on such days,
during such hours, for such period and on payment of such charges as are

advertised at each Parking Place.

Class and position of Vehicle

8.

Where by notice at a Parking Place, the Parking Place, or any Parking Bay
within the Parking Place, is described as available for Vehicles of a specified
class or Vehicles to be Parked in a specified location, no person shall cause
or permit a Vehicle to be Parked in that Parking Place or in any Parking Bay
within the Parking Place during Operational hours:

(i) unless it is of the specified class;

(i) that is Parked beyond the Parking Bay markings;

(i) in a position other than that specified; or

(iv)  for a purpose other than provided for in this Order.

Classes of vehicle

9.

No person shall cause or permit a Vehicle to be Parked in a Parking Bay

unless it is a Passenger Vehicle, Light Goods Vehicle, Vehicle displaying a
Disabled Person’s Badge, Motor Cycle or a class specifically prescribed in the
Schedules.

Position of vehicle

10.

If parking bays are marked out in a parking place the driver of a vehicle shall
ensure that it is positioned wholly within a parking bay and shall not permit it

to wait in that parking place unless it is so positioned.

Page 29



11.  If parking Bays are not marked out in a parking place the driver of a vehicle
shall ensure that it is positioned so that it does not obstruct other vehicles
using the parking place, the free flow of traffic circulating within the parking

place and the entrances to and exits from the parking place.

Disabled person’s Parking bays

12.  No person shall cause or permit a Vehicle to be Parked in a Parking Bay
marked for disabled persons unless the Vehicle displays a valid Disabled
Person’s Badge in the Relevant Position and immediately before or
immediately after the act of Parking the Vehicle has been or is about to be
used by the person(s) in respect of whom the Disabled Person’s Badge has

been issued.

Permit Parking Bays

13.  No person shall cause or permit a Vehicle to Park in a Parking Bay marked for
permit holders unless the Vehicle is displaying a Permit valid for that time and

that Parking Bay.

Taxi bays / private parking bays / etc

14.  No person shall cause or permit a Vehicle to be Parked in an area marked as
a taxi bay / private parking bay unless the Vehicle displays in the relevant
position a valid Hackney Carriage plate / permit issued by the Council. or
unless authorised by the Council to do so.

Loading and unloading bays

15.  No person shall cause or permit a Vehicle to Park in any area marked as a
loading bay unless the Vehicle is being used for the purpose of Loading or

Unloading.

Motor Cycle Parking bays

16.  No person shall cause or permit a Vehicle to Park in a Parking Bay marked for

Motor Cycles unless the Vehicle is a Motor Cycle.

Hours of operation and maximum period of stay

Page 30



17.  Where by notice on site, a Parking Place or in any Parking Bay within the
Parking Place is described as being in operation on specified days, during
specified hours or for a maximum period of stay, no person shall cause or
permit a Vehicle to be Parked in that Parking Place or in any Parking Bay
within the Parking Place on any day, during such hours or for any period other

or longer than those specified.

Period of no return

18.  Where by notice on site, a Parking Place is described as having a period
within which a Vehicle may not return, no person shall cause or permit a
Vehicle to be Parked again in that Parking Place on any day, during such

hours within which the vehicle is excluded from waiting in the Parking place.

Power to close or suspend Parking Places

19.  Nothing in this Order shall prevent the Council by notice, sign or barrier
displayed or erected in a Parking Place:
(1) from closing a Parking Place or any part thereof for any period; and/or
(i) from setting aside a Parking Place or any part or parts thereof on all days
or on certain days or during certain parts of days for use only by
particular Vehicles or organisations.

20.  Any person authorised by the Council closing or suspending the use of a
Parking Place or any part thereof shall thereupon place or cause to be placed
in or adjacent to that Parking Place or that part thereof a notice or traffic sign
indicating that of that Parking Place or that part thereof is closed or the use is

suspended and that Parking by Vehicles is prohibited.

21.  No person shall cause or permit a Vehicle to be Parked in a Parking Place or
any part thereof during such periods that the Parking Place or that part thereof
is closed or the use is suspended or during such period as there is in or
adjacent thereto a notice or traffic sign indicating the closure or suspension

placed by or on behalf of the Council.

Sale of Goods

Page 31



22.  No person shall in a Parking Place without the express written permission of
the Council, use a Vehicle, in connection with the sale of any article, including
the Vehicle itself, to any person in or near the Parking Place or in connection

with the selling or offering for hire of skill or services in any other capacity.

Parked with engine running

23.  No person shall in a Parking Place continue to run the engine when the
Vehicle is in the Parking space and shall not start the engine except when
about to change the position of the Vehicle in or to depart from the Parking

Place.

Parked causing an obstruction

24.  No person shall in a Parking Place Park the Vehicle in such a manner or

place where it causes an obstruction to any other users of the Parking Place.

PART 3
CHARGES FOR PARKING

Payment
No person shall cause or permit any Vehicle to be Parked in a Parking Place without

arranging for the appropriate charge during Charging Hours (if any) to be paid in

accordance with the scale of current charges as advertised at the Parking Place.

Means of payment

25.  The charges referred to in the preceding Article shall be payable in the

manner as advertised at that Parking Place.

Pay and display Parking Places

26. The person in charge of a Vehicle, upon Parking the Vehicle in a Parking Bay,
shall immediately
(1) arrange for the purchase of a Pay and Display Ticket from a Ticket
Machine situated at that Parking Place at the level of charge and for
the period required in accordance with the scale of Daily Charges as

advertised at that Parking Place.

Page32



(ii) make arrangements to pay the appropriate fee through an Alternative
Approved Method of Payment if available such as Phone and Pay at
the level of the daily charge and for the period required in accordance with

the scale of charges as advertised at that Parking Place.

Display of ticket

27.  Save for payment by an Alternative Approved Method of Payment, once a
Vehicle has been Parked within a pay and display Parking Place the person in
charge of the Vehicle shall ensure that:

(1) a valid Pay and Display Ticket has been obtained to cover the entire
period that the Vehicle is Parked in the Parking Place, and

(i) the valid Pay and Display Ticket is displayed in the Relevant Position
on the Vehicle in respect of which it was issued at all times the Vehicle
is Parked.

Validity of Pay and Display Tickets

28. A Pay and Display Ticket is not transferable from one Vehicle to another and

on transfer the Pay and Display Ticket ceases to be valid.
29. A Pay and Display Ticket is valid only in the Parking Place in which it was
issued. This is defined by the reference code of the Ticket Machine located in

that Parking Place printed on the Pay and Display Ticket.

Expiry of Parking period

30. The expiry of the period for which the appropriate charge has been paid shall

be

(1) where a Pay and Display Ticket has been purchased, when the time
shown on the clock of the issuing Ticket Machine is later than the
Expiry Time shown on the Pay and Display Ticket displayed, or

(ii) where an Alternative Approved Method of Payment has been used,
when the period for which payment has been made and recorded has
been exceeded.

No Pay and Display Ticket displayed

Page 33



31.  If at any time while a Vehicle is Parked in a Parking Place no Pay and Display
Ticket is displayed on that Vehicle in the Relevant Position and in accordance
with the provisions of this order, and without proof of permit or valid cashless

parking receipt, that the charge has not been paid

32. If at the time when a Vehicle is Parked during the Charging Hours in a Parking
Place and the nearest Ticket Machine in that Parking Place is out of order,
then a ticket shall be obtained from another Ticket Machine within the same
Parking Place (where provided) or as directed in the Parking Place or by

making alternative provision using the Phone and Pay facility.

33.  Where no valid Pay and Display Ticket can be obtained from a Ticket
Machine within a Parking Place and the Phone and Pay system is
unavailable, Vehicles may be Parked in a Parking Place but may not be
Parked for longer than the maximum period of Parking in that Parking Place
as advertised at the Parking Place.

Season Tickets / Parking Permits

34.  Season Tickets / Parking Permits are available from the Council at the
appropriate fee, for a Vehicle of a specific class and for a specific Parking
Place subject to conditions determined by the Council.

35. A Season Ticket / Parking Permit is only valid in the Parking Place(s) in
respect of which it was issued, for the Vehicle in respect of which it was
issued and up to the date of expiry shown on the Season Ticket / Parking
Permit.

36.  The driver shall abide by the terms stipulated by the Council for the use of the

Season Ticket / Parking Permit.

Display of Season Ticket / Parking Permit

37. A Parking Permit shall be displayed in the Relevant Position on the Vehicle in
respect of which it was issued at all times during which the Vehicle is Parked

in the Parking Place.

Replacement Parking Permits

Pag&34



38. A damaged or lost Season Ticket / Parking Permit will be replaced on
application to the Council and on payment of an administration fee in
accordance with Council policies. The damaged or lost Season Ticket /

Parking Permit will then become immediately invalid.

Surrender
39. A Season Ticket / Parking Permit remains the property of the Council and

must be surrendered on request.
40. The holder of a Season Ticket / Parking Permit may, on surrendering the

Season Ticket / Parking Permit, be entitled to a refund based upon the

Council policy in place at that time.

Restriction on removal

41.  When a Pay and Display Ticket or Season Ticket / Parking Permit has been
exhibited on a Vehicle in the relevant position no person shall remove the Pay
and Display Ticket or Parking Permit from the Vehicle until the Vehicle is

removed from the Parking Place.

PART 4
EXEMPTIONS

Exemption from daily Charge

42. No daily charge shall be payable in respect of;

(i) a Vehicle which displays in the relevant position a valid Disabled
Person’s Badge provided that the Vehicle immediately before or after
the act of Parking has been used or is about to be used by the
person(s) in respect of whom the badge is issued;

(ii) a Motor Cycle; or

(i)  a Vehicle Parked displaying in a relevant position a Season Ticket /
Parking Permit valid for that Parking Place.

(iv)  a Vehicle parked within the Operational Days and Hours of the Parking
Place but outside of the Charging Period displayed

Page 35



Absence of Ticket Machine

43.

If at the time when a Vehicle is Parked in a Parking Place during the charging
hours there is no Ticket Machine at the Parking Place, or all the Ticket
Machines at that Parking Place carry notices placed upon them by a person
duly authorised by the Council indicating that they are out of order, the driver
of that Vehicle shall be expected to make payment using the Alternative
Approved Method of Payment.

Payment by Alternative Approved Method of Payment

44.

Where arrangements to pay the Daily Charge have been made through an
Alternative Approved Method of Payment and no Pay and Display Ticket is
produced by following the process, the driver of a vehicle shall be exempt

from the requirement to display such a ticket.

PART 5
RELOCATION, REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL OF VEHICLES

Emergencies

45.

A person authorised by the Council or a Police Constable in uniform may,
using such measures as are appropriate, move or cause to be moved in the
case of an emergency to any place he/she thinks fit, any Vehicle Parked in a
Parking Place.

Contraventions in suspended Parking Place

46.

A person authorised by the Council may, using such measures as are
appropriate, move or cause to be moved to any place he/she thinks fit, any
Vehicle Parked in a Parking Place which has been closed or suspended in
whole or in part by the Council and the cost of movement or removal and safe

keeping shall be the liability of the owner of the vehicle.

Safe keeping

Pagé&t36



47.  Any person removing a Vehicle from a Parking Place under the provisions of
this Order shall make such arrangements as may be reasonably necessary to
provide for the safe keeping of the Vehicle.

Disposal of Vehicles abandoned in Parking Places

48.  The Council may sell or otherwise dispose of, in accordance with current
legislation, a Vehicle which has been, or could at any time be, removed from a

Parking Place if the Vehicle appears to have been abandoned.

PART 6
CONTRAVENTION AND PENALTY CHARGE

Contravention

49.  Save for the provisions in Part 7, if a Vehicle is Parked in a Parking Place
within the Operational Days and Hours without complying with the
requirements of this Order, a contravention shall have occurred and a Penalty
Charge shall be payable. A Penalty Charge Notice may then be served and/or

the vehicle may be removed from the location.

Restriction on removal of notices

50. A notice fixed to a Vehicle in accordance with this Order shall not be removed
or interfered with except by or under the authority of:
(1) the Owner, or person in charge of, the Vehicle;
(i) the Council for the Parking Place in which the Vehicle in question was

found.

Indications as Evidence

51.  The particulars given in any notice served on a Vehicle in accordance with the
provisions of this Order shall be treated as evidence in any proceedings

relating to failure to pay the Penalty Charge.

PART 7
LIABILITY AND OTHER PROVISIONS

Liability

Page 37



52. The Council accepts no liability for the loss or damage to Vehicles or other
property left in any of the Parking Places to which this Order applies save for
that arising from the negligence of the Council.

Validity

53. If a court, the Department for Transport, the Traffic Penalty Tribunal or the
Traffic Enforcement Centre declares any part of this Order to be invalid or
unenforceable, such declaration shall not invalidate the remainder of the
Order.

Driving within a Parking Place

54.  Where in a Parking Place signs are erected or surface markings are laid for

the purpose of

(1) indicating the entrance to or exit from the Parking Place, or

(i) indicating that a Vehicle using the Parking Place shall proceed in a
specified direction within the Parking Place, any person who drives

or permits to be driven any Vehicle

(1) so that it enters the Parking Place otherwise than by an entrance or
leaves the Parking Place otherwise than by an exit, so indicated, or

(i) in a direction other than so specified

shall be liable to prosecution.

55.  Any person who, without with the permission of a person authorised by the
Council in that behalf, drives or permits to be driven any Vehicle in a Parking
Place for any purpose other than the purpose of leaving that Vehicle in the
Parking Place in accordance with the provisions of this Order or for the

purpose of departing from the Parking Place shall be liable to prosecution.

Wilful damage

56.  Any person who with intent to defraud interferes with a Ticket Machine or
operates or attempts to operate it by the insertion of objects other than
undamaged and unaltered coins of legal tender and of the appropriate

denomination, shall be liable to prosecution.

Domestic purposes

Pagé& 38



57.  Any person who uses any part of the Parking Place or any Vehicle Parked in
a Parking Place
(1) for sleeping or camping or cooking, or
(i) for the purpose of servicing or washing any Vehicle or part thereof
other than is reasonably necessary to enable the Vehicle to depart

from the Parking Place, shall be liable to prosecution.

Behaviour
58.  Any person who wilfully sounds any horn or any other similar instrument on a
Vehicle except when about to change the position of the Vehicle in or to
depart from the Parking Place shall be liable to prosecution.

59.  Any person who in Parking Place shouts or otherwise makes any loud noise
to the disturbance or annoyance of users of the Parking Place or residents or

premises in the neighbourhood shall be liable to prosecution.

60. Any person who in a Parking Place uses any threatening, abusive or insulting
language, gesture or conduct with intent to put any person in fear or so as to
occasion a breach of the peace or whereby a breach of the peace is likely to
be occasioned shall be liable to prosecution.

Other activities

61. Any person who in a Parking Place
()] erects or causes or permits to be erected any tent, booth, stand,

building or other structure without the written consent of the Council, or

(i) lights or causes to be lit any fire, shall be liable to prosecution.
PART 8
REVOCATIONS
Revocations

62. This Order supplements all previous orders made by Tamworth Borough

Council and all their Amendments.

Page 39



EXECUTED as a Deed by affixing the COMMON SEAL
of Tamworth Borough Council

in the presence of

Dated this day of 20

Pag&s40



THE BOROUGH OF Tamworth (PHONE & PAY OFF STREET PARKING PLACES)

ORDER 2014

SCHEDULE 1 - PAYMENT PARKING PLACES

Name of Special Days and Charging days and hours, maximum
Parking classes of hours of stay
Place Vehicle operation of and Valid permit holders
(if any) Parking
Place
Holloway Cars and Light | All Days and Pay and Display Machines Monday -Saturday
Vans Only not | Hours 08:00-18:00
exceeding 1525 Maximum stay two hours (no return within 2 hours
Kg ULW except for valid permit holders)
Motorcycles Phone and Pay Monday — Saturday 08:00 -18-00
Maximum stay two hours with option to increase by
additional 2 hours only
Charges apply as above except Christmas Day,
Boxing Day, New Years Day and any other Bank
Holiday as defined by regulation and for Disabled
Badge Holders and Motorcycles
Castle Hotel Residents Parking Permit Valid
08:00 Daily until 09:30am the following day
Town Centre Resident Permit Holders
Mill Lane Cars and Light Pay and Display Machines Monday -Saturday
Vans Only not | All Days and 08:00-18:00
exceeding 1525 | Hours Maximum stay two hours (no return within 2 hours)
Kg ULW
Phone and Pay Monday — Saturday 08:00 -18-00
Motorcycles Maximum stay two hours with option to increase by
additional 2 hours only
Charges apply as above except Christmas Day,
Boxing Day, New Years Day and any other Bank
Holiday as defined by regulation and for Disabled
Badge Holders and Motorcycles
Town Centre Resident Permit Holders
Church Lane Cars and Light | All Days and Pay and Display Machines Monday -Saturday
Vans Only not | Hours 08:00-18:00

exceeding 1525
Kg ULW

Motorcycles

Maximum Stay all day

Phone and Pay Monday — Sunday 08:00 -18-00
Flexible carry over tariff

All Day and 2 day rollover rates as advertised
on tariff boards

Maximum stay all day and overnight charging
options as advertised

Paqg 41




Name of Special Days and Charging days and hours, maximum
Parking classes of hours of stay
Place Vehicle operation of and Valid permit holders
(if any) Parking
Place
Charges apply as above except Christmas Day,
Boxing Day, New Years Day and any other Bank
Holiday as defined by regulation and for Disabled
Badge Holders and Motorcycles
Town Centre Resident Permit Holders
Long Stay Season Permit Holders
Bolebridge Cars and Light | All Days and Pay and Display Machines Monday -Saturday
Island Car Park | Vans Only not | Hours 08:00-18:00
exceeding 1525 Maximum stay 4 hours
Kg ULW
Phone and Pay Monday — Saturday 08:00 -18-00
Motorcycles Flexible carry over tariff
Hackney Charges apply as above except Christmas Day,
carriages and Boxing Day, New Years Day and any other Bank
taxis in marked Holiday as defined by regulation and for Disabled
bays only Badge Holders and Motorcycles
Town Centre Resident Permit Holders
Albion Street Cars and Light Pay and Display Machines Monday -Saturday
Vans Only not | All Days and 08:00-18:00
exceeding 1525 | Hours Maximum stay all day
Kg ULW
Phone and Pay Monday — Saturday 08:00 -18-00
Motorcycles Flexible carry over tariff
All Day and 2 day rollover rates as advertised
on tariff boards
Charges apply as above except Christmas Day,
Boxing Day, New Years Day and any other Bank
Holiday as defined by regulation and for Disabled
Badge Holders and Motorcycles
Town Centre Resident Permit Holders
Long Stay Season Permit Holders
Marmion Street | Cars and Light | All Days and Pay and Display Machines Monday -Saturday
Vans Only not | Hours 08:00-18:00

exceeding 1525
Kg ULW

Motorcycles

Maximum stay all day

Phone and Pay Monday — Saturday 08:00 -18-00
Flexible carry over tariff

All Day and 2 day rollover rates as advertised
on tariff boards

Charges apply as above except Christmas Day,
Boxing Day, New Years Day and any other Bank

Page2§,2




Name of Special Days and Charging days and hours, maximum
Parking classes of hours of stay
Place Vehicle operation of and Valid permit holders
(if any) Parking
Place
Holiday as defined by regulation and for Disabled
Badge Holders and Motorcycles
Town Centre Resident Permit Holders
Long Stay Season Permit Holders
Aldergate Cars and Light Pay and Display Machines Monday -Saturday
Vans Only not | All Days and 08:00-18:00
exceeding 1525 | Hours Maximum stay 4 hours
Kg ULW
Phone and Pay Monday - Saturday 08:00 -18-00
Motorcycles Maximum stay 4 hours no option to extend
Flexible carry over tariff
Charges apply as above except Christmas Day,
Boxing Day, New Years Day and any other Bank
Holiday as defined by regulation and for Disabled
Badge Holders and Motorcycles
Town Centre Resident Permit Holders
Hospital Street | Cars and Light Pay and Display Machines Monday -Saturday
Vans Only not | All Days and 08:00-18:00
exceeding 1525 | Hours Maximum stay all day
Kg ULW
Motorcycles Phone and Pay Monday — Saturday 08:00 -18-00
Flexible carry over tariff
All Day and 2 day rollover rates as advertised
on tariff boards
Charges apply as above except Christmas Day,
Boxing Day, New Years Day and any other Bank
Holiday as defined by regulation and for Disabled
Badge Holders and Motorcycles
Town Centre Resident Permit Holders
Long Stay Season Permit Holders
Lower Gungate | Cars and Light Pay and Display Machines Monday -Saturday
Vans Only not | All Days and 08:00-18:00
exceeding 1525 | Hours Maximum stay all day

Kg ULW

Motorcycles

Phone and Pay Monday — Saturday 08:00 -18-00
Flexible carry over tariff

All Day and 2 day rollover rates as advertised
on tariff boards

Pa%? 43




Name of Special Days and Charging days and hours, maximum
Parking classes of hours of stay
Place Vehicle operation of and Valid permit holders
(if any) Parking
Place
Charges apply as above except Christmas Day,
Boxing Day, New Years Day and any other Bank
Holiday as defined by regulation and for Disabled
Badge Holders and Motorcycles
Town Centre Resident Permit Holders
Long Stay Season Permit Holders
Globe Inn Parking Permits Valid from 16:30 until
09:30am the following day
Jolly Sailor Cars and Light | All Days and Pay and Display Machines Monday -Saturday
Vans Only not | Hours 08:00-18:00
exceeding 1525 Maximum stay all day
Kg ULW
Phone and Pay Monday — Saturday 08:00 -18-00
Motorcycles Flexible carry over tariff
Coaches and All Day and 2 day rollover rates as advertised
Motorhomes in on tariff boards
designated
parking area Charges apply as above except Christmas Day,
only Boxing Day, New Years Day and any other Bank
Car_s “°t_ Holiday as defined by regulation and for Disabled
permitted in Badge Holders and Motorcycles
these areas
(no overnight Town Centre Resident Permit Holders
camping)
Jolly Sailor and Riverdrive Permit Holders
Riverdrive Cars and Light
Vans Only not | All Days and Pay and Display Machines - Monday -Saturday
exceeding 1525 | Hours 08:00-18:00
Kg ULW Maximum stay all day
Motorcycles Phone and Pay - Monday — Saturday 08:00 - 18-
00
Flexible carry over tariff
All Day and 2 day rollover rates as advertised
on tariff boards
Charges apply as above except Christmas Day,
Boxing Day, New Years Day and any other Bank
Holiday as defined by regulation and for Disabled
Badge Holders and Motorcycles
Town Centre Resident Permit Holders
Jolly Sailor and Riverdrive Permit Holders
Spinning Cars and Light | All Days and Pay and Display Machines Monday -Saturday
School Lane Vans Only not | Hours 08:00-18:00

Page2244




Name of Special Days and Charging days and hours, maximum
Parking classes of hours of stay
Place Vehicle operation of and Valid permit holders
(if any) Parking
Place
(Temporary Car | exceeding 1525 Maximum stay all day
Park) Kg ULW
Phone and Pay Monday — Saturday 08:00 -18-00
Motorcycles Flexible carry over tariff
All Day and 2 day rollover rates as advertised
Market Trader on tariff boards
Vehicles
(Tuesday and Charges apply as above except Christmas Day,
Saturday) Boxing Day, New Years Day and any other Bank
Holiday as defined by regulation and for Disabled
Badge Holders and Motorcycles
Town Centre Resident Permit Holders
Long Stay Season Permit Holders
Market Trader permits valid Tuesday and
Saturday
Corporation Blue Badge All Days and Exempt from charges
Street Car Park | Holder Vehicles | Hours Maximum stay all day
Motorcycles (in
marked bays)
Cars and Light
Riverside Vans Only not | All Days and Permit Parking ONLY at all times
Estates exceeding 1525 | Hours Residents Permits
Kg ULW Resident Visitor Permits
Health Care Permits (maximum 2 hour)
Motorcycles Highrise Social Club (Maximum 5 hour)
Contractor Passes
Contractors Tamworth Borough Council Staffs Permits (when
vehicles working)
Lichfield Street | Cars and Light
Car Park Vans Only not | All Days and Shop Tenant Permit Parking (maximum stay all
exceeding 1525 | Hours day)

Kg ULW

Motorcycles

Public Parking Free 1 hour maximum stay (no
return within one hour) Monday-Saturday 08:00-
18:00

Pa%? 45




SCHEDULE 2 - PAY AND DISPLAY AND PHONE AND PAY TARIFFS AS AT

1 FEBRUARY 2014

Car Park Location

TARIFF FROM 1 FEBRUARY 2014

SHORT STAY CAR PARKS

Aldergate
Bolebridge Island (Odeon)

P&D Tariff

Upto 2 hrs £1.40

Up to 3 hrs £1.90

Up to 4 hrs £2.20

Motorcycles & Disabled Parking with blue
badge free

Phone and Pay Tariff
Day rates as above
Flexible tariff overnight parking

Mill Lane
Hospital Street
Holloway

P&D Tariff

Upto’2hr 70p

Upto2hrs £1.40

(No return within 2 hours)

Motorcycles & Disabled Parking with blue
badge free

Phone and Pay Tariff
Day rates as above
Flexible tariff rollover parking

Hospital Street 2
Church Lane

Lower Gungate

P&D Tariff

Upto’2hr 70p
Upto2hrs £1.40
Up to 3 hrs £1.90
Up to 4 hrs £2.20
Over 4 hours £4.50

Motorcycles & Disabled Parking with blue
badge free

Phone and Pay Tariff

Day rates as above

Flexible tariff rollover parking

All day flexible rate (24 hours) - £4.50
2 day flexible rate (48 hours) - £9

Spinning School Lane(Temporary)

P&D Tariff

Upto’zhr 70p
Upto2hrs £1.40
Upto 3 hrs £1.90

Page2ff6




Car Park Location

TARIFF FROM 1 FEBRUARY 2014

Upto4 hrs £2.20

Over 4 hrs £5.00

Motorcycles & Disabled Parking with blue
badge free

Phone and Pay Tariff

Day rates as above

Flexible tariff rollover parking

All day flexible rate (24 hours) - £5.00
2 day flexible rate (48 hours) - £10.00

LONG STAY CAR PARKS

Marmion Street
Albion Street

P&D Tariff

Up to 4 hrs £2.20

ALL DAY £4.50

Motorcycles & Disabled Parking with blue
badge free

Phone and Pay Tariff

Day rates as above

Flexible tariff rollover parking

All day flexible rate (24 hours) - £4.50
2 day flexible rate (48 hours) - £9

Jolly Sailor

P&D Tariff

Up to 3 hrs £1 All Day £1.50
Motorcycles & Disabled Parking with blue
badge free

Phone and Pay Tariff

Day rates as above

Flexible tariff rollover parking

All day flexible rate (24 hours) - £1.50
2 day flexible rate (48 hours) - £3.00

Riverdrive

P&D Tariff
Up to 3 hrs £1

All Day £1.50
Motorcycles & Disabled Parking with blue
badge free

Phone and Pay Tariff
Flexible tariff rollover parking

Pa%? 47




Car Park Location

TARIFF FROM 1 FEBRUARY 2014

All day flexible rate (24 hours) - £1.50
2 day flexible rate (48 hours) - £3.00

DISABLED PARKING ONLY

Assembly Rooms Car Park, Corporation Street

Blue badge holders ONLY 24 hours per day

SEASON TICKETS

Long Stay Season

Valid on eligible car parks ONLY Marmion
Street

Albion Street

Spinning School Lane(Temporary)

Church Lane
Hospital Street

Lower Gungate

Annual £600
Six Month £350
Quarterly £175
Calendar month £60

Available from Tamworth Information
Centre

Tel 01827 709581

Jolly Sailor/Riverdrive

Season Ticket ONLY

Annual £170
Six Month £100
Calendar Month £20

Available from Tamworth Information
Centre

Tel 01827 709581

Town Centre Resident Passes (Restricted
postcodes ONLY)

ALL CAR PARKS

Annual £200
Six Month £110

Proof of residency required

Page2648




©CREATIVE

The Creative Parking Grant Scheme - FAQ’s

What's in it for Creative Parking?

Creative Parking is a major parking operator in the Private sector. We are looking to
move into the Public sector. This is an opportunity for us to get into the market early,
to impress Local Authority clients and to show you what we can do.

We know there is currently a gap in market as the TMA causes problems. We also
know that the long decision process in councils this puts off other operators in our
Market - they are looking for short term gains. We understand the process and
protocols of the Council, we understand the way you work and this is different from
other companies.

Knowing the process, a 1 year trial with us will give you enough time and ammunition
to move the thinking of the Council towards a more positive and pro-active approach
to Parking

How does Creative Parking view this working long term?

We hope that with our services, the Council will achieve the proof of concept needed.
We are then very well placed to gain your business. For Creative Parking this is long
term thinking, investing today, reaping the rewards tomorrow.

We hope that with our relationship, we will be offered other opportunities with the
Council

How does the Council benefit?

Instant grant money to spend as the Council desires

It allows the Council to trial cutting edge technology and improve the effectiveness of
its operations, at no cost

Improve the customer experience

What's the outcome for the Local Authority?

Savings — reallocation of personnel resources, printing, paper permit purchasing,
back-office operations, appeals processing and ultimately, only if desired by the
Council, staff costs

To run your parking operation more efficiently, using the most efficient technology in a
non confrontational way

Try it and ‘feel’ it without it in anyway disrupting what you do

Does the Council keep its revenue?

Yes! You will set all tariffs and keep all revenues from day one until the end of any
agreement. This includes both tariff and normal PCN revenue

What about the equipment?

33/35 Daws Lane, London NW7 45D
Tel: 0870 919 8000 Fax: 0870 919 8001 Page 49
www.creativecarpark.co.uk



ARILEINICS M)
FAMRIA i3 O\

©CREATIVE

e You own your equipment, and you will continue to maintain it. Where we need to
install our ANPR cameras and pay and display machines, we will operate and
maintain it.

How long is this for?
e The agreement will be in place for a 12 month ftrial, but can be longer if you seek
extra stability.

What's the exit strategy?

e The ftrial will not in any way change your infrastructure. Whilst we hope you will work
with us for the foreseeable future, on ‘exit’ you will simply go back to how it was
before we started. You will have the choice to purchase any hardware (i.e pay and
display machines), or we will remove them at no cost.

33/35 Daws Lane, London NW7 45D Page 50
Tel: 0870 919 8000 Fax: 0870 919 8001
www.creativecarpark.co.uk



CABINET

23 JANUARY 2014

Agenda Item 10

REPORT OF THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR OPERATIONS AND ASSETS

PURPOSE

SCHEME OF DELEGATION DECISIONS

To comply with the Local Government Act 2000 and the Localism Act 2011 and any
subordinate legislation which provides good governance for Local Authorities.

RECOMMENDATIONS
Cabinet is recommended to endorse the list of decisions taken in terms of the
Scheme of Delegation for the period 1 April 2013 to 1 December 2013.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Localism Act 2011 requires local authorities to be more open and accountable in the
decision making process. Accordingly the attached list of decisions contains particulars of
each decision and a summary of the matters in respect of which each decision was made.
By producing this information the Authority is complying with its statutory obligations
ensuring good governance and greater openness and transparency in the decision making
process. By including those decisions taken under the Scheme of Delegation, all decisions
are effectively reported in an open and public forum.

The following table lists decisions taken in the period from 01 April 2013 to 01 December

2013.
Portfolio Title Decision Report
Holder presented
by
Leader Compromise To inform Members and approve Christie
Agreement payment of a Compromise Tims
Agreement
Corporate Future Details on To supplement Council Tax Michael
Services & Technical Reforms to | Technical Reforms legislation Buckland
Assets Council Tax regarding entitlement to
unoccupied discount for Council
Tax
Housing Homes and To confirm the use of the Home Deborah
Communities Agency | and Communities Agency (HCA Casey
Technical Panels Technical Panels as a method of

Page 51




procuring services in connection
with regeneration activity and
delivery of new affordable housing.

2014-15 and 2015-16
Technical
Consultation

Settlement 2014-15 and 2015-16
Technical Consultation document
issued by the Department for
Communities & Local Government.

Housing Tenancy Management | To set out final amendments to the | Lee Birch
Policy including the draft Tenancy Management Policy
introduction of flexible | introducing the use of flexible fixed
fixed term tenancies term tenancies from April 2013

which was approved at Cabinet on
26th September 2012.

Leader Compromise To inform Members and approve Christie

Agreement payment of a Without prejudice Tims
Agreement

Housing Extension to Service | To inform members of the current John
Level Agreement with | service level agreement (SLA) and | Murden
Staffordshire Fire requirement for extension
Rescue Service
(SFRS)

Leader Landlord Services To agree permanent changes to Tina
Phase Two the Landlord Services staffing Mustafa/

structure following formal Anica
consultation Goodwin

Economy and | Golf Course options To request permission to market David

Education Appraisal: Further test the demand for housing for an | Hunter
Investigations area of Tamworth Golf Course

Economy and | Creative Incubation To seek approval for the Matthew

Education Hub — 29 Market implementation of a Creative Fletcher
Street Incubation Hub, forthwith to be

known as 'Created in Tamworth' in
the Council owned property 29
Market Street

Public ITT Development To set out the current position Deborah

Housing and | Consultant —Tinkers following the closure of the ITT Casey

Vulnerable Green and Kerria deadline (12 September 13) for the

People Regeneration Project | above project
(Number 13/04)

Operations Local Government To approve the proposed response | Stefan

and Assets Finance Settlement to the Local Government Finance Garner

Scheme of Delegation Items are available to view in Democratic Services upon request.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
There are no resource implications.

Page 52




LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND
None
SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

None

REPORT AUTHOR

Lara Allman 01827 709264, lara-allman@tamworth.gov.uk

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 54



CABINET Agenda ltem 11

23R° JANUARY 2014
REPORT OF THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR ECONOMY AND EDUCATION

GOLF COURSE FUTURE OPTIONS APPRAISAL - PREFERRED OPTION SELECTION

EXEMPT INFORMATION
N/A

PURPOSE

To provide Members with a report detailing the options appraisal of the short listed future
options for Tamworth Golf Course from which Members will select their preferred option for
implementation.

RECOMMENDATIONS
That Cabinet;

1) Select their preferred option for implementation

2) Authorise the Portfolio Holder Economy and Education and the Director Communities
Planning and Partnerships to progress the implementation of the preferred option,
including the commissioning of relevant technical and legal services ahead of a
specific report to Cabinet setting out a detailed implementation plan

3) Endorse the proposed principles for managing any potential capital receipt arising
from the preferred option

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

In March 2013 the Cabinet selected to re-open Tamworth Golf Course following the
liquidation of the private sector operator. Cabinet approved the re-opening of the Golf Course
on a temporary basis for a period between 12 months and 2 years until March 2015, at which
point the funding identified in the Councils Medium Term Financial Strategy to operate the
course runs out. Cabinet also authorised a project to assess the future options for Tamworth
Golf Course to investigate the feasibility of a long list of options. The project was divided into
three stages;

1) Needs Assessment — April 2013 to June 2013

2) Options Appraisal — June 2013 to January 2014
2.1) Long list, 2.2) Short list

3) Implementation — January 2014 to March 2015

Previous reports to Cabinet in May 2013 and October 2013 have provided updates on
progress. In May 2013 Cabinet approved the Needs Assessment and identified a set of
criteria (below) by which the options would be assessed.

Page 55



Table 1

Priority Project Outcome Draft Weighting

1. Potential for and likely level of contribution to the Council’s 20%*
annual revenue deficit from 2016/17 onwards.

2. Contribution to economic regeneration and growth in the Borough 15%
(including the provision of new housing development).

3. Potential for the option to generate a capital receipt for the 15%
Council and likely level of capital receipt.

4, Promotion of exercise and healthy lifestyles and contribution to 15%
increasing participation and reducing obesity.

5. Ability to meet the leisure needs of the Borough’s residents and 15%
the Council’s wider vision / strategy for sport and leisure
provision.

6. Cost and timescales of implementation and level of risk involved / 10%*

likelihood of delivery.

7. Contribution to the delivery of the Council’s environmental and 10%
sustainability objectives including protecting green and blue
spaces.

* Items 1 and 6 on the outcomes list have been highlighted as key criteria and options that
score low in these elements may be unsuitable to implement given our key constraints — time
and money.

More specific evaluation criteria under each heading were developed to help assess the
options.

During the long list assessment (stage 2.1) the options were scored and the following
shortlist (below) of four options was approved by Cabinet in October 2013 for more detailed
assessment in stage 2.2.

» Option G - Part disposal of the site, retention of 18 — hole golf course through
remodelling of holes to reduce land take ( all 3 management options to be assessed)

» Option |- Complete disposal of the entire site to generate capital receipt to be utilised
for wider strategic aims.

» Option B — Retention of a 18 hole golf course, plus development of ancillary
provision

» Options D &F — Disposal of 9 holes for development, with the retention of 9 holes
plus development of ancillary provision using part of any capital receipt. (in — house
and outsourced management options to be assessed)

During the assessment of the short listed options (stage 2.2) the Council has undertaken
further work to asses the feasibility of the options and a report by FMG Consulting is
attached in Appendix 1. That report should be read in conjunction with this report to provide
an understanding of the key issues affecting the selection of a preferred option.

Page 56



The need for significant capital investment into a new club house and the course is
problematic for the future viability of the golf course and has counted heavily against a
number of the options. The appraisal has also shown that under all the options that an
existing external private leisure provider with trust/charitable status (to take advantage of
reduced business rates) is the best option for future management of a facility. Experience
(ours and other providers) has alongside the project work shown that a reliance on golf
income alone is not sustainable and that a future golf course would need to provide a wider
range of income streams to be commercially sustainable. Market testing with golf/leisure
providers has shown that there is interest in an 18 hole golf course but limited opportunity for
significant external capital investment. There was much less (only one company) interest in a
9 hole course despite this being promoted by Golf England as the future for golf. A draft
facility mix was considered and priced up by Entrust which indicated a cost of circa £2.3m for
a new facility. It is possible that this cost could be reduced through procurement and
amending the specification however it serves as a prudent guide price. Should a future
facility be commissioned this would need to be done in partnership with a private provider
and meet their commercial needs. Market testing has shown that there is a significant
interest from developers with regards to the potential for housing on the site.

Table 2 below shows the strategic implications and risks of each of the options.

Page 57



8G abed

Table 2.

Outcome

Contribution to
economic
regeneration and
growth in the
Borough (including
the provision of new
housing development)

Option B

Option B makes the lowest
contribution to the achievement of
this project outcome as it provides
some new jobs as part of the
increased range of facilities on site
but it does not allow for the
provision of any new housing
towards the Council’s targets.

Option D/ F

Options D / F make a significant

contribution to the achievement of this
outcome as they enable a large housing
development to be provided on the site.

Option G

Option G makes a greater contribution to
the achievement of this outcome than
Option B but less than Options D, F and |
as it only allows a limited number of
houses to be developed on the site.

Option |

Option | is the strongest performing of all options
against this project outcome because of the
significant amount of housing that could be
provided on the site (the largest of all options),
delivering against both the Council’s housing
target and supporting additional construction
employment if local companies are involved in
the development.

Promotion of exercise
and healthy lifestyles
and contribution to
increasing
participation and
reducing obesity

This option is likely to make a
significant contribution to the
achievement of this project
outcome (with Option G)because it
protects and enhance the existing
provision. However it doesn’t
provide for capital investment into
other leisure provision.

Although these two options do result in the
loss of part of the course potentially
resulting in some users no longer wishing to
use the course (given their preference for
playing 18 holes of golf), it is possible that
the 9 hole course will attract a new type of
casual user who did not use the previous 18
hole course. It may also release capital to
invest in a new facility that could broaden
the leisure/health opportunities.

This option is likely to make a significant
contribution to the achievement of this
project outcome because it protects and
enhance the existing provision with only
a minor remodelling of the course.

Option | is likely to make the smallest direct
contribution to the achievement of this project
outcome of all options because there will be no
sports facilities remaining and it will result in a
closure of the golf facility. This could be offset
somewhat by incorporating accessible open
space within the housing development and
investing some of the capital receipt from the
site into the provision of new sport and leisure
facilities and activities elsewhere in the
Borough.

Ability to meet the
leisure needs of the
Borough’s residents
and the Council’s
wider vision /
strategy for sport and
leisure provision

All of the options perform similarly
against this project outcome.
Option B protects and enhance the
existing golf course provision
which was identified as being
required in the Council’s ‘Joint
Indoor and Outdoor Sports
Strategy’ in 2009, however it does
not allow for the possibility of
delivering some of the Council’s
wider sport and leisure objectives
identified in this document such as
a leisure centre with a swimming
pool and sports hall, via release of
a large capital receipt for re-
investment.

All of the options perform similarly against
this project outcome. Options D / F only
leave a 9 hole golf course remaining,
however they do provide other additional
facilities such as the driving range and
health and fitness suite and also provide a
capital receipt for potential reinvestment
into other facilities and services that are
required in the Council’s Sports Strategy.

All of the options perform similarly
against this project outcome. Option G
protects and enhances the existing golf
course provision (with only a minor
remodelling of the course required)
which was identified as being required in
the Council’s ‘Joint Indoor and Outdoor
Sports Strategy’ in 2009, however it does
not allow for the possibility of delivering
some of the Council’s wider sport and
leisure objectives identified in this
document such as a leisure centre with a
swimming pool and sports hall, via
release of a large capital receipt for re-
investment.

All of the options perform similarly against this
project outcome. Whilst Option | removes the
golf course in its entirety, which is clearly
negative for sport and leisure provision, it does
provide the most significant capital receipt
which could be used to reinvest into facilities
and services that are required in the Council’s
Sports Strategy.




6S obed

Outcome

Level of risk involved
/ likelihood of
delivery

‘ Option B

Option B is likely to present the
lowest level of risk in terms of the
successful delivery of the project
as it does not involve significant
housing development (so less risk
of planning problems and
objections). The only development
under this option is the new
clubhouse and as it is intended to
be a single-story replacement
building this is also a low risk
planning option. It is likely that
the level of external operator
interest in this option is highest so
the likelihood of securing market
interest in the project is also high,
which lowers the risk of successful
implementation and sustainability
of operation.

Full risk assessments for each
option are included in Appendix B.

Option D/ F

Options D / F are relatively high risk as they
involve significant housing development.
They do result in a golf course remaining
rather than the total loss of the course (as in
Option I) however there is a risk of the
course not performing as well as it should
and the Council being subject to increased
revenue costs. This risk could be mitigated
by externalising the management of the
course, however the 9 hole option is likely
to result in a lower level of market interest
from golf operators, with operators who
manage both golf and sport / leisure
facilities being the only interested parties.
However, it does involve managing two
complex projects to identify a development
partner for the housing and an operator
partner to redevelop the clubhouse and
manage the course.

Option D is likely to generate less objections
from local residents but Option F is likely to
be a higher risk delivery option due to the
smaller developable area with the material
tipped onto the back 9 of the course and the
need for new transport and services
infrastructure.

Option G

Option G could be seen as a lower risk
than the other options that involve
housing development because the scale
of the housing development is not as
significant as the other options so
planning issues and objections may be
more surmountable and it retains and
enhances the 18-hole course format (as
per Option B) which should maximise
operator interest. However, it does
involve managing two complex projects
to identify a development partner for the
housing and an operator partner to
redevelop the clubhouse and manage the
course. This will involve significant
Officer time and resources. The scale of
the housing development is also large
enough to lead to potential objections
from local residents which means that
there are still a number of significant
risks involved in this option.

Option | ‘

Option | appears to be a high risk option as it
involves the most significant housing
development which could be influenced by
planning issues, local objections, land values,
ground conditions, fluctuations in the economy
etc. However, the political, reputation and
planning risks are all short-term risks and if
Option | can be successfully implemented then
there is no long-term risk to the Council’s
revenue position as there will be no golf course
remaining and a significant capital receipt will
have been generated.

Contribution to the
delivery of the
Council’s
environmental and
sustainability
objectives including
protecting green and
blue spaces

Option B is positive for its
contribution to this project
outcome because the course is
protected and so there is no
adverse environmental impact.

Options D / F are only marginally better
than Option | because they do not involve
the full development of the course.

Option G is positive for its contribution to
this project outcome because the course
is mostly protected (with only a relatively
small development) and so there is likely
to be minimal adverse environmental
impact.

Option | is likely to be the most negative for
environmental sustainability due to the larger
redevelopment site (although the provision of
housing is a part of the definition of
sustainability in this context). This could be
offset to an extent through careful
masterplanning of the site to ensure it includes
accessible open spaces and using some of the
capital receipt to contribute to the enhancement
of nature reserves and open space in the
Borough.




09 abed

Impact on equalities,
customers and local
residents

All options score similarly in
relation to their impact on
equalities as they should not
disadvantage one group or type of
person over any other particular
group / type.

Full equalities impact assessments
for each option are included in
Appendix A.

Option D/ F

All options score similarly in relation to their
impact on equalities as they should not
disadvantage one group or type of person
over any other particular group / type.
Options D / F will potentially be perceived
as having a negative impact on the current
users of the course and local residents
whose homes back onto the course, although
this could be mitigated through the planning
process. These people could be represented
by all sexes, races, ages etc. so the options
are not likely to have a negative impact on
one specific group / type more than any
other.

Option G

All options score similarly in relation to
their impact on equalities as they should
not disadvantage one group or type of
person over any other particular group /
type. Option G will potentially be
perceived as having a negative impact on
the current users of the course and local
residents whose homes back onto the
course due to the planned development,
although this could be mitigated through
the planning process. These people could
be represented by all sexes, races, ages
etc. so the options are not likely to have
a negative impact on one specific group /
type more than any other (and the
development is a lot smaller than under
Options D, F and I).

Option |

All options score similarly in relation to their
impact on equalities as they should not
disadvantage one group or type of person over
any other particular group / type. Option | will
potentially have the most negative impact on the
current users of the course and local residents
whose homes back onto the course, although
these people could be represented by all sexes,
races, ages etc. so the options are not likely to
have a negative impact on one specific group /
type more than any other.

Current users can access golf at other local
courses however the risk with Option | is that the
Council cannot control the access policies of the
alternative golf providers in the surrounding
areas so cannot guarantee equality of access
beyond its borough boundaries.

Views of key
stakeholders

Users (golf club members) and
residents (Citizens Panel members)
all favoured the options that
retained the 18 hole golf course.
The development of the ancillary
facilities was extremely popular as
it will improve the offer to golfers
and open the facility up to non-
golfers. However without
development this is unlikely to be
affordable. Sport England and
England Golf would not object to
this option. Further detail on the
consultation with Sport England
and England Golf is provided below
this table.

Options D / F were only marginally more
acceptable than Option | with most
consultees expressing the view that a 9 hole
course was not enough and that housing
development on half of the course was too
much. Residents who live locally to the
course were particularly unhappy with the
options that involve housing development on
the course. Sport England is likely to object
to this planning application as it will result
in the loss of part of the golf course unless it
can be evidenced that there is not enough
demand to justify the 18 hole course. A golf
needs assessment is being carried out to
ascertain this which will be finalised in
January 2014. The preferred option for
England Golf is to convert the course to a 9
hole course (see below for further details).

Development on the course was not a
favoured scenario, however Option G
which includes some development and
retains the 18 hole course was the most
palatable of the development options.
The development of the ancillary
facilities was extremely popular as it will
improve the offer to golfers and open the
facility up to non-golfers. However
without development this is unlikely to
be affordable. Residents who live locally
to the course were particularly unhappy
with the options that involve housing
development on the course. Sport
England is unlikely to object to this
planning application as it will result in
the retention of an 18 hole course and
enhanced ancillary provision. England
Golf is likely to be supportive of this
option.

Option | was not deemed as being acceptable to
the users or residents due to the loss of the
course / an attractive open space. Residents who
live locally to the course were particularly
unhappy with the options that involve housing
development on the course. Sport England is
likely to object to this planning application as it
will result in the loss of the golf course unless it
can be evidenced that there is not enough
demand to justify the 18 hole course. A golf
needs assessment is being carried out to
ascertain this which will be finalised in January
2014. England Golf would not be supportive of
the total loss of the golf course and would prefer
it to be retained.




T9 abed

Outcome

Financial Risk (see
Section 4 for more
details)

‘ Option B

This option is only likely to
generate a revenue return to the
Council if the Council funds the
capital investment into the
ancillary facility improvements and
an external Trust manages the
facility. Even in this scenario, the
revenue return is not likely to be
sufficient enough to cover the
financing cost of the capital
investment and with the lack of a
capital receipt generated from
housing there is unlikely to be an
overall business case for this
option. If the operator was to fail
to achieve the revenue targets
there is a long-term risk of the
facility being handed back to the
Council.

Option D/ F

Both options are similar to Option B in that
the course could return a revenue stream to
the Council but only in the event of the
Council investing the capital to make the
improvements and the course being
managed by an external Trust. The key
difference is that, under both of these
scenarios, a capital receipt is generated
from the housing which could fund the
capital investment and make the overall
business case viable if some of the capital
receipt is reinvested.

The long-term risk still remains that if the
operator was to fail to achieve the revenue
targets it could result in the facility being
handed back to the Council. The nature of
the more fundamental changes to the course
under these options (i.e. reduction to 9
holes) may mean that this risk is slightly
higher under these options.

Option G

Option G could also return a revenue
stream to the Council in the event of the
Council investing the capital to make the
improvements and the course being
managed by an external Trust. The key
risk with this option is that the capital
receipt for the housing is unlikely to be
significant enough to make the overall
business case viable.

As per Option B, there is still a long-term
risk that if the operator was to fail to
achieve the revenue targets it could
result in the facility being handed back to
the Council.

Option |

Option | is the lowest financial risk option as
there is no golf course that may require on-going
revenue support and no capital investment
required by the Council. The Council is likely to
be in the best financial position from this option
because of the potential large capital receipt
that could be achieved from the sale of the land.
The key risks are linked to the sale and value of
the land and likely objections to the project
which are covered in more detail overleaf under
the overall risk rating category.




Further comment on options B and G

Options B and G are not considered deliverable given the requirement to invest capital to
replace the club house facilities alongside investment into the course such as a replacement
of the irrigation system. The Council lacks the capital finance to do this without disposing of
part of the course. While Option G includes a disposal of some land on the course it is not
sufficient to support the likely capital requirement. The market testing has suggested that it is
very unlikely that a provider would be able to finance the capital costs and therefore
borrowing costs affect the viability of the options. Nor do these options support the wider
Council needs around housing provision.

Further comment on options D and F

Options D and F likewise suffer from the need for capital investment and this reduces the
business case for these options. The report from FMG indicates that the Council would need
to invest significant capital (up to £2.3m) into the new facility in order to generate a positive
trading return for the new business. Should the Council only choose to invest some of the
£2.3m then the report indicates that the Council might need to tie up the remaining capital
balance through investing it to provide a revenue stream to offset the revenue costs of the
new facility particularly if it borrowed the capital costs. The trading return to the Council even
in the most positive model doesn’t cover the cost of the original investment. Market research
has shown that only one provider is likely to have a strong interest in running this type of 9
hole business, this would make securing a competitive deal impossible due to the lack of
competition. Despite the lack of market interest locally, England Golf see this type of
approach as the future for golf. A 9hole model is more likely to work alongside a portfolio of
18hole courses and where local conditions are more favourable i.e. without such a low level
of income and without the need for £2.3m capital investment. Significant risks to note include
the potential that a deal with an operator couldn’t be agreed. That such a deal could fail and
the councils capital investment could be put at risk, this could also mean that the Council
would have to a) close the course, b) re-tender or c) take it back in house. To mitigate
against these risks the Council could choose to offer a nine hole course to the market
without any capital investment and with a stipulation that the Council will not provide any
revenue support but expected a share in future profits. Given the limited market and high
level of investment required it is questionable if such as deal would be achievable. If no such
deal was to be found then the Council would have lost the estimated £55k costs of tendering
and agreeing a deal with an operator. The Council would also take on a significant risk in
funding the development — through additional borrowing (& the associated interest /
repayment costs over the life of the asset) or reliance on the capital receipt which would
need to be realised very quickly to mitigate the risk.

Further comment on option |

The Council has investigated for options D/F and | the development constraints on the site
and while there are significant constraints to be addressed there are no “show stoppers”
which prevent re-development of the site. It is feasible that further investigation will highlight
additional issues to be addressed should it be re-developed and the planning process will
require any development to show how adverse impacts can be mitigated. However there is
significant potential for a housing development to provide positive benefits to the town.

Option | has a lower amount of financial risk to the Council, however, in order to maximise
the sale proceeds the Council might need to commit funding to cover implementation costs
exceeding £300k. While the decision to re-develop the course will not be popular it would
support strategic needs such as housing and regeneration. There is the option to offset the
loss of the leisure benefit provided by the course through provision of quality open space on
the site alongside a sensitively planned housing development. It should be noted that Sport
England will be concerned about the reduction in golf provision and likely object to a planning
application to re-develop the site. There is also the opportunity to fund other leisure provision
in the town which could potentially more than offset the loss of the golf course. Other local
golf courses are within reasonable distance and are available to golfers however in some
cases these cost more to access than Tamworth Golf Course. Issues surrounding the

Page 62



redevelopment for housing such as the ecological impacts and infrastructure requirements
will need to be addressed through the planning process.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Project costs

The future options appraisal project was initiated with a budget of £50k to date £26k has
been committed to technical and legal assessments to inform the appraisal leaving a residual
budget of £24k. This remaining funding can be used towards the costs of implementing the
preferred option. However as previously stated the costs for implementing the options are
likely to exceed the £24k residual amount. A further report will be required to identify the
likely costs for implementation of the preferred option.

Future options appraisal

The Council has not identified funding beyond March 2015 to subsidise golf provision. The
Golf Course is a significant public asset and was assessed with a view to how it can provide
an income to support the provision of essential Council services in the future. The Council
has faced funding cuts of circa 40% in recent years and although it produced a balanced
General Fund Medium Term Financial Strategy for the next 3 years in February 2013,
updated base budget projections in November 2013 show a significant deficit in the longer
term. These projections, updated to include the impact of the Comprehensive Spending
Review on Government Grant levels and other cost pressures, show a General Fund (GF)
shortfall of £2.8m by year 3 followed by an ongoing annual deficit of over £3m p.a. (£8.9m
over the next 5 years) There is on-going work commissioned by the Executive Management
Team (Cabinet/CMT) under the umbrella of the Sustainability Strategy to address this
through a combination of income generation / revenue savings from housing, business rates
and service reviews

Key criteria for the future options appraisal was the degree to which the options would
contribute to the Councils budget deficit (tempered against the other key indicators) and that
it should as a minimum provide an income to the Council.

FMG Affordability Summary (extract from the FMG report)

From the revenue modelling carried out it is clear that the only options that break even and
potentially offer a return to the Council are those involving operation by an external existing
operator through a long lease / management contract. Each of the development options has
the potential to return a surplus to the Council after year 2 under this management model
from a revenue perspective, however when including the financing of the c.£2m capital
investment required into the new ancillary facilities, it becomes clear that only the options
that can generate a significant capital receipt (D/F/l)are viable from a net cost position.

This is illustrated by table 5.2 where none of the options are affordable without a capital
receipt.

Table 3 —Affordability per Option Excluding Capital Receipts

Development Option Management Option Average Annual
Affordability - 25 Years

B In-house (235,396)

B Existing trust (74,380)

B New trust (172,558)

D/F In-house (290,172)
Page 63



Development Option

Management Option

Average Annual

Affordability - 25 Years

D/F Existing trust (94,542)
D/F New trust (180,526)
G In-house (239,398)
G Existing trust (78,382)
G New trust (176,560)

Option B can be ruled out as it does not generate a capital receipt from housing to help fund
the investment into the golf course. To make the project affordable, the Council could invest
some of the capital receipt received from the housing development to fund the capital
investment into the golf course facilities. Options D / F are the only viable options for this as
Option G does not provide a significant enough capital receipt.

The report has concluded that the Council would need to reinvest c£1.5m of the capital
receipt received into the capital cost of the golf course improvements under Options D/ F
(therefore minimising the need to borrow and the associated borrowing costs) in order to
receive a positive average annual return from the golf course.

If the Council utilised the capital receipt from the housing to fund the full capital cost of the
golf course project it would not need to borrow any of the capital required (and thus not incur
the borrowing costs) so the project would return an annual surplus to the Council of circa
£60k per annum however this would only generate a return of c£1.5m per annum over a 25
year period when compared to the original upfront capital investment of over £2m.

An alternative option is to reinvest the capital receipt from the housing development. If the
capital receipts generated were to be reinvested at an interest rate of 2% per annum then
Options D and F would become affordable. Examining the return on investment of any capital
receipt received also demonstrates the positive net position of Option I.

Table 4- Revised Affordability Based on Reinvestment of Capital Receipt

Development Option Management Option Average Annual
Affordability - 25 Years

D In-house (45,249)
D Existing trust 79,190

D New trust (6,793)

F In-house (40,765)
F Existing trust 83,674

F New trust (2,309)

G In-house (232,992)
G Existing trust (71,976)

Page 64
10



Development Option Management Option Average Annual
Affordability - 25 Years

G

New trust

(170,154)

N/A

349,899

The table shows that Options D and F (operated through an existing trust) could provide an
average return to the Council of circa £80k per annum if the capital receipt was reinvested,
although the first two years of the 25 year period are both in deficit. Option F provides a
slightly better return to the Council than Option D because the ‘back 9’ land is valued at a
greater level than the ‘front 9’ for development purposes based on notional scheme
estimates from the DVS report. The final capital receipt will only be clear at the point of sale
and depends on a number of factors). Options D and F both do not start generating a return
for the Council until year 3 (2018/19), however, there may be an opportunity to agree a
solution to this whereby the operator cashflows early year deficits in return for lower future
payment to the Council in later years.

The value of the land that could be developed under Option G is not significant enough to
have a major impact on the affordability of that Option.

Option I, which involves disposing of the whole course, is clearly the most financially
advantageous for the Council as it has a greater land value and does not involve any
borrowing costs for investment or on-going revenue responsibilities for the course. This
Option generates a return to the Council from 2015/16 as it removes the cost of operating the
course and generates interest immediately.

Implementation costs
It is difficult to estimate the implementation costs however based on previous experience and
professional opinion the following costs are likely.

Option B Option D Option F Option G Option |
Procurement
costs — £40k £40k £40k £40k -
operator
Legal costs —
operator £15k £15k £15k £15k -
procurement
Sale costs
(based on an . . . .
unconditional - £300k £300k £150k £350k
sale)
Course ) *inc in capital | *inc in capital £59K )
remodel costs cost cost
Close down
costs ) ) ) ) £15k
Total £55k £355k £355k £257k £365k

*This costs could be considered as invest to save as it will help improve the capital receipt through
establishing more detail on the site ahead of a sale. As a very rough guide every £1 spent at this point
could be returned ten times through a better sale price.

Potential funding sources available:
Unspent Golf Project budget £24k

Leisure Capital Contingency Budget £150k
2012/13 GF revenue contingency budget £150k
Future Capital receipts

Page 65

11




New homes bonus

Indications are that the whole site could accommodate up to 1000 new homes which, under
the current Local Government funding arrangements, would generate additional revenue
income from New Homes Bonus grant. Based on the options, the maximum New Homes
Bonus receivable would be as shown below:

Number

of

Houses

(Band épg::rlty by

D): 50 100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800 900 | 1000 | increase | October:
Financial

Year £'000 | £000 | £000 | £000 | £000 | £000 | £000 | £000 | £000 | £000 | £000

2014/15 - - - - - - - - - - - - 2013
2015/16 - - - - - - - - - - - - 2014
2016/17 - - - - - - - - - - - - 2015
2017/18 6 12 23 35 47 58 70 82 93 105 116 10% 2016
2018/19 17 35 70 105 140 175 210 245 279 314 349 20% 2017
2019/20 35 70 140 210 279 349 419 489 559 629 699 30% 2018
2020/21 58 116 233 349 466 582 699 815 932 | 1,048 | 1,164 40% 2019
2021/22 58 116 233 349 466 582 699 815 932 | 1,048 | 1,164 - 2020
2022/23 58 116 233 349 466 582 699 815 932 | 1,048 | 1,164 - 2021
2023/24 52 105 210 314 419 524 629 734 838 943 | 1,048 - 2022
2024/25 41 82 163 245 326 408 489 571 652 734 815 - 2023
2025/26 23 47 93 140 186 233 279 326 373 419 466 - 2024
Total 349 699 | 1,397 | 2,096 | 2,795 | 3,493 | 4,192 | 4,891 | 5,590 | 6,288 | 6,987

It should be noted however, that due to sale & development time then the majority of the
income would be receivable in the longer term — and would risk the Government potentially
changing Local Government Funding arrangements and removing the new homes bonus
incentive completely. The receipt of this income is therefore extremely uncertain.

Capital receipt
Under a number of the options the Council could generate a capital receipt following the sale
of land for redevelopment.

Option B Option D Option F Option G Option |

Capital
receipt —
based on the
DVS
valuation
2013

- £6.78m £6.955m £250k £13.68m

*Valuations based on the valuation by the DVS 2013..These valuations are viewed as a
prudent estimate of the potential receipt. While these estimates are robust and can be used
for financially modelling it should be noted that the actual receipt at the point of sale will be
different from these figures as it is dependant on market forces at the time of disposal.

The Council has a significant shortage of capital funds and currently is unable to sustain its
capital programme; this carries risks to the future viability of the town and severe legal risks
to the Council in meeting some of its responsibilities for providing Disabled Facility Grants.

It should also be noted that all the golf options (B,D,F&G) require significant capital
investment (circa £2m for the club house and £300k to complete the driving range) to make
them more commercially viable.

Page 66
12




Should the Council generate a capital receipt then the following principles should be applied

1. Subject to a viable business case including invest to save principles that part of the
receipt be used to support leisure provision on or off the golf course site to offset the
loss or reduction of the golf facility

2. Subject to a viable business case including invest to save principles that part of the
capital receipt be used to support regeneration and economic growth to help create
jobs and wealth for residents

3. Subject to a viable business case including invest to save principles that part of the
capital receipt is invested to support future capital receipts and generate revenue to
provide support for Council services in the future

LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND

Project

A project group was established to manage the process and to consider legal and general
risk. To date the project has delivered within budget and on time. Technical and legal
assessments have been commissioned to assess legal and practical risk issues.

Options

Each of the options has been considered against the equalities strands and an impact
assessment undertaken. While the impacts of the various options differ there is no evidence
that any equalities issues arise from the options directly.

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
There are a range of sustainability issues for the service, organisation, town and
environment.

Service provision, the report and associated work undertaken shows that the current
provision is not sustainable financially and that options including golf provision are not
demonstrably financially viable without significant capital investment from the Council. The
scale of this capital investment is prohibitive and creates material risk to the authority for the
future. The process has sought to explore a range of golf options to assess how the Council
might make the service sustainable alongside meeting its other key criteria notably finances.

Organisationally, the Council has a very challenging financial future which could affect the
sustainability of the organisation and its ability to deliver statuary and essential services. The
options have been assessed using criteria that consider the effects on the Council and its
ability to deliver statutory and essential services.

Town, the town has a significant shortage of housing and a need for further economic
impetus and growth these factors have also been considered.

Environmental, the environmental factors associated with the options have been considered
and clearly a number of the options include re-development of the course for housing. This
would have a negative environmental impact which could be offset through the planning
process by designating appropriate high quality and accessible open spaces as part of the
development.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Golf Course, service provision update

Page 67
13



Significant improvements have been made at the Course with £100k capital funding used to
complete the unfinished mounding and seed it with grass. Capital works were also completed
on the club house in the main these were essential works to ensure it was fit for purpose.
The course has been operated on a “value golf” basis with cheap prices to reflect the local
market for golf and the relatively limited facilities at the club house. Additional expenditure on
the bar and kitchen has not been committed due to the ongoing options appraisal and
because it would not have been economical to invest. The club house itself is not fit for the
future and needs to be replaced. The course needs new irrigation and drainage works.

The Course has 229 members on a variety of tariffs and has a number of regular weekly
users during the summer period with a larger number of ad hoc users in the summer. The
numbers playing in the winter are low and income targets have been hard to achieve. The
Golf Course is budgeted to make an £80,000 loss but is estimated on current income to
make a loss of £100k this year. A similar loss is expected in the financial year 2014/15. This
is despite the considerable efforts from the shop and greens staff.

Demand and supply

Work has been completed to assess the supply and demand in relation to golf provision
locally. It is difficult to assess the demand side but the report has been generous in
estimating demand to ensure that we are as positive as possible. The work shows that there
are a large number of local golf courses within a 20-25minute drive of Tamworth (appendix
2). The work has considered the impact of reducing the course to 9 holes and of closing the
course. While this reduces the provision of golf locally it is clear that the 11 clubs within a 20
minute catchment could cope with the additional demand resulting from a closure or
reduction in size. There are a further 17 courses within 20-25 minutes catchment area and a
mix of access types especially at the 20-25 minute catchment.

REPORT AUTHOR
Robert Mitchell Director Communities Planning and Partnerships

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS
Cabinet 26" March 2013

Cabinet 30" May 2013

Cabinet 24" October 2013

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Short List Options Assessment — FMG Consulting
Appendix 2 — Map showing local golf courses

Page 68
14



GOLF COURSE FUTURE OPTIONS APPRAISAL
STAGE 2 SHORT-LIST OPTIONS ASSESSMENT

TAMWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Tamworth

Borough Council

A

FINALREPORT
BY

FMG CONSULTING

JANUARY 2014

Page 69

FMG

CONSULTING




FMG

CONSULTING

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1. INEFOAUCTION L.viiaiiiii e 1
2. Summary of Short-Listed OPtions ....cuveiiriiiiiiiiiiiiieiiterereeerereeerenarerenneessaneeeenns 5
3. Strategic Implications and RiSKS....ccuueirrieiireiiiiii i ieeirerereieerenneerannaeennnnns 8
2 1o F=Ta T = 1 T o ot=Y o o] o T3P0 19

5. Summary and Conclusions

Page 70



01

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

Tamworth Golf Course Options Appraisal - Stage 2 Short-Listpa@e 7 1

1. Introduction

FMG Consulting Ltd (‘FMG’) was commissioned by Tamworth Borough Council (‘the Council’)
to carry out a needs assessment and options appraisal for the future of Tamworth Golf
Course (‘the Golf Course’).

The Golf Course is owned by the Council and was leased by the Council to Tamworth Golf
Centre Ltd in 2006 but the course closed in February 2013 after the management company
went into liquidation. The Council re-opened the course and is currently managing it on a
short-term, in-house management basis.

FMG has been commissioned to help identify the most suitable option for the future long-
term direction of the golf course. The first stage of our work involved a Needs Assessment
which defined the outcomes required from the project (which in turn informed the project
drivers against which the options were assessed in Stage 2) and determined a long list of
options for the future delivery of the golf course.

The initial long-list of options is set out in table 1.1.

Table 1.1 - Long-List Options

m High-Level Description

A Retention of 18-hole golf course (status quo).

B Retention of 18-hole golf course, plus development of ancillary provision (clubhouse
/ health & fitness gym / complimentary leisure facilities).

C Disposal of front 9 holes for development, with retention of back 9 holes.

Disposal of front 9 holes for development, with retention of back 9 holes plus
D development of ancillary provision using part of any capital receipt (clubhouse /
health & fitness gym / complimentary leisure facilities).

E Disposal of back 9 holes for development, with retention of front 9 holes.

Disposal of back 9 holes for development, with retention of front 9 holes plus
F development of ancillary provision using part of any capital receipt (clubhouse /
health & fitness gym / complimentary leisure facilities).

Part disposal of site, retention of 18-hole golf course through remodelling of holes
to reduce land-take.

Part disposal of site for development, but retention of 18-hole golf course through
H purchase of additional land adjacent to eastern boundary of the course and re-
provision of lost holes.

Complete disposal of entire site to generate capital receipt to be utilised for wider
strategic aims.

Page 1



1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

In addition, three different potential management options were applied to each of the
development options and evaluated. These were:

e Option 1 - Continued in-house management of the golf course;

e Option 2 - Outsourced management of the golf course via a lease / management
contract to an existing external provider;

e Option 3 - set up of a new local social enterprise management vehicle (Company Limited
by Guarantee / Charitable Incorporated Organisation / Community Interest Company),
which would then have a lease / contract to manage the golf course.

As a result of the Stage 1 work, a number of project outcomes were identified and weighted
(approved at Cabinet 30/05/13) which the development and management options were
subsequently evaluated against. The project outcomes and their weightings are summarised
in table 1.2.

Table 1.2 - Long-List Options

Project Outcome Weighting

Potential for and likely level of contribution to the Council’s annual revenue deficit 20%
from 2016/17 onwards.

Contribution to economic regeneration and growth in the Borough (including the 15%
provision of new housing development).

Potential for the option to generate a capital receipt for the Council and likely 15%
level of capital receipt.

Promotion of exercise and healthy lifestyles and contribution to increasing 15%
participation and reducing obesity.

Ability to meet the leisure needs of the Borough’s residents and the Council’s wider 15%
vision / strategy for sport and leisure provision.

Cost and timescales of implementation and level of risk involved / likelihood of 10%
delivery.
Contribution to the delivery of the Council’s environmental and sustainability 10%

objectives including protecting green and blue spaces.

Following Officer and Member approval of the Stage 1 report, a high-level Options Appraisal
was undertaken, involving a more specific analysis of the long list options against the key
project drivers, from which a shortlist was identified.

The long list testing process comprised a weighted scoring of the options against the project
drivers which was informed by consultation with key Council Officers and Members, soft
market testing with golf course operators and consultation workshops with both members of
the golf course and members of the Tamworth Citizens Panel. This resulted in the options
listed in table 1.3 being short-listed for further analysis (the results of which are set out in
this report).

Tamworth Golf Course Options Appraisal - Stage 2 Short-Ptalgléis 72 Page 2



Table 1.3 - Short-Listed Options

Option High-Level Description

Retention of 18-hole golf course, plus development of ancillary provision (clubhouse

B / health & fitness gym / complimentary leisure facilities).
Disposal of front 9 holes for development, with retention of back 9 holes plus

D development of ancillary provision using part of any capital receipt (clubhouse /
health & fitness gym / complimentary leisure facilities).
Disposal of back 9 holes for development, with retention of front 9 holes plus

F development of ancillary provision using part of any capital receipt (clubhouse /
health & fitness gym / complimentary leisure facilities).

G Part disposal of site, retention of 18-hole golf course through remodelling of holes to

reduce land-take.

Complete disposal of entire site to generate capital receipt to be utilised for wider
strategic aims.

1.9 These options are described in more detail in section 2 of this report. As part of this short-
list analysis, financial models have been produced for each of the shortlisted options taking
into account the capital and revenue costs / incomes and overall financial impact on the
Council. This report presents a summary of the financial implications of each option in order
to inform the decision on the preferred option to be implemented which will be taken by
Council Members.

1.10 The methodology for this stage of the options appraisal has included the following elements:

Further consultation with users and members of the public via the Citizens Panel;
Consultation with Sport England and England Golf;

Financial modelling of each shortlisted option to understand the capital and revenue
costs / incomes and overall financial impact on the Council;

An equalities impact assessment; and

A headline risk assessment.

1.11  The remainder of this report is structured as follows:

Section 2 -Summary of Short-Listed Options;
Section 3 - Strategic Implications and Risks;

Section 4 - Financial Implications; and

Tamworth Golf Course Options Appraisal - Stage 2 Short-Listpa@e 73 Page 3



e Section 5 - Summary and Conclusions.

Basis of information

1.12 It is not possible to guarantee the fulfilment of any estimates or forecasts contained within
this report, although they have been conscientiously prepared on the basis of our research
and information made available to us at the time of the study. Neither FMG as a company
nor the authors will be held liable to any party for any direct or indirect losses, financial or
otherwise, associated with any contents of this report. We have relied in a number of areas
on information provided by the client, and have not undertaken additional independent
verification of this data.

Tamworth Golf Course Options Appraisal - Stage 2 Short-ptalgléis 74 Page 4



02

2.1

2.2

2.3

2. Summary of Short-Listed Options

This section sets out the potential facility mixes (including ancillary provision) that are
included in each option in order to form the basis for the capital and revenue modelling
associated with the options. The proposed improvements to the course quality, clubhouse
and driving range are informed by the results of a customer satisfaction survey of golf course
users that was carried out by the Council in 2013 and the findings of the previous two stages
of this project.

The final facility mix might well change subject to development constraints and the final
business model. The facility mixes shown here provide an opportunity to assess likely
scenarios and the costs they might incur.

Table 2.1 summarises the high-level description of the development options that have been
shortlisted for detailed analysis.

Table 2.1 -Summary of Short-Listed Development Options

Option B

Golf Course 18 holes. No change to the course layout. Investment into course
quality improvements.

Clubhouse Development of a new clubhouse. Including staff office / reception,
male and female changing facilities (toilets and showers), storage
space, bar / cafe area, kitchen, function room and meeting room.
Preferred location is overlooking the 18" green.

Health and Fitness | Development of a 50 station health and fitness suite within the
Suite clubhouse. Shared changing facilities with clubhouse.

Driving Range Development of a driving range on the unused area currently
allocated for this use on the site. Maximum length likely to be circa
220 yards. Incorporates targets to focus users on pitching practice and
accuracy rather than distance driving.

Housing No houses provided.
Option D
Golf Course 9 holes. Disposal of front 9 holes for development. Investment into

course quality improvements. Practice putting green and bunker /
chipping areas to be provided.

Clubhouse Development of a new clubhouse. Including staff office / reception,
male and female changing facilities (toilets and showers), storage
space, bar / cafe area, kitchen, function room and meeting room.
Preferred location is overlooking the 18" green.

Tamworth Golf Course Options Appraisal - Stage 2 Short-Listpagle 75 Page 5



Health and Fitness
Suite

Development of a 50 station health and fithess suite within the
clubhouse. Shared changing facilities with clubhouse.

Driving Range

Development of a driving range on the unused area currently
allocated for this use on the site. Maximum length likely to be circa
220 yards. Incorporates targets to focus users on pitching practice and
accuracy rather than distance driving.

Housing

Golf Course

Option F

New housing provided on the site (as per DVS ‘Revised Notional
Scheme’ estimate from April 2013 report).

9 holes. Disposal of back 9 holes for development. Investment into
course quality improvements. Practice putting green and bunker /
chipping areas to be provided.

Clubhouse

Development of a new clubhouse. Including staff office / reception,
male and female changing facilities (toilets and showers), storage
space, bar / cafe area, kitchen, function room and meeting room.
Likely to be in a similar location to the current clubhouse.

Health and Fitness
Suite

Development of a 50 station health and fitness suite within the
clubhouse. Shared changing facilities with clubhouse.

Driving Range

Development of a driving range on the unused area currently
allocated for this use on the site. Maximum length likely to be circa
220 yards. Incorporates targets to focus users on pitching practice and
accuracy rather than distance driving.

Housing

Golf Course

Option G

New housing provided on the site (as per DVS ‘Revised Notional
Scheme’ estimate from April 2013 report).

18 holes. Shortening of holes 8 and 9 to allow a small housing
development. Investment into course quality improvements.

Clubhouse

Development of a new clubhouse. Including staff office / reception,
male and female changing facilities (toilets and showers), storage
space, bar / cafe area, kitchen, function room and meeting room.
Preferred location is overlooking the 18" green.

Health and Fitness
Suite

Development of a 50 station health and fitness suite within the
clubhouse. Shared changing facilities with clubhouse.

Driving Range

Development of a driving range on the unused area currently
allocated for this use on the site. Maximum length likely to be circa
220 yards. Incorporates targets to focus users on pitching practice and
accuracy rather than distance driving.

Tamworth Golf Course Options Appraisal -

Page 6

Stage 2 Short-ptalgléis 7 6



Housing New housing provided on the site (as per DVS ‘Revised Notional
Scheme’ estimate from April 2013 report).

Option |

Golf Course Complete development of the course. No golf course remaining.
Clubhouse Not applicable.

Health and Fitness | Not applicable.

Suite

Driving Range Not applicable.

Housing New housing provided on the site (as per DVS ‘Revised Notional

Scheme’ estimate from April 2013 report).

2.4 Further details regarding the strategic, risk and financial implications of each development
option are set out in the next two sections of this report.

Tamworth Golf Course Options Appraisal - Stage 2 Short-Listpagle 77 Page 7



03

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3. Strategic Implications and Risks

This section summarises the strategic implications and risks associated with each option for
the Council. Whilst there is a clear budgetary target that needs to be addressed through the
option to be implemented (as set out in Section 4), the Council also has a number of wider
strategic priorities and responsibilities against which the decision for the most appropriate
future option for the golf course must be taken.

The Council’s Corporate Plan reflects its wide variety of strategic priorities and
responsibilities. These include issues such as promoting health and well-being; tackling crime
and anti-social behaviour; promoting growth, employment and business; and improving
physical infrastructure. These priorities need to be considered when making a decision on
the preferred option for the golf course as the options can contribute to the achievement of
these priorities in different ways.

There are also a humber of sustainability objectives that need to be considered when
considering the options including provision of housing, community services, leisure facilities,
protecting and enhancing biodiversity and open spaces etc.

The provision of housing is a key priority for the Council. Between 2013 and 2031 there are
an additional 5,000 houses required to be delivered to meet Tamworth’s needs with limited
land availability. The site could potentially contribute to this provision but whether the site
is appropriate for development needs to be considered in light of the Council's planning
policy and priority for town-centre development and protecting open spaces.

There are also major issues with health and obesity in Tamworth. Increasing participation
and physical activity is a major part of addressing these issues and the importance of this
needs to be factored into the final decision.

The contribution of each of the options to these priorities was evaluated in detail in the
previous Stage 2 long-list evaluation report through assessment of their contribution to
achieving a series of ‘Project Outcomes’. As a result of this, the strategic implications of
each option have not been re-evaluated and scored as part of this short-list options
assessment but are summarised in this section as a reminder of the wider context in which
the decision must be made.

The Project Outcomes assessed at the previous stage were as follows:

e Potential for and likely level of contribution to the Council’s annual revenue deficit from
2016/17 onwards (Covered in Section 4 of this report);

e Contribution to economic regeneration and growth in the Borough (including the
provision of new housing development);

¢ Potential for the option to generate a capital receipt for the Council and likely level of
capital receipt (Covered in Section 4 of this report);

e Promotion of exercise and healthy lifestyles and contribution to increasing participation
and reducing obesity;

Tamworth Golf Course Options Appraisal - Stage 2 Short-ptalgléis 78 Page 8



3.8

3.9

Ability to meet the leisure needs of the Borough’s residents and the Council’s wider
vision / strategy for sport and leisure provision;

Cost and timescales of implementation (Covered in Section 4 of this report) and level of
risk involved / likelihood of delivery; and

Contribution to the delivery of the Council’s environmental and sustainability objectives
including protecting green and blue spaces.

We have included a summary of the implications of the development option in relation to
each of the strategic outcomes (financial outcomes covered in more detail in Section 4) in
table 3.1. Three additional categories have also been added:

Impact on equalities, customers and local residents - analysis of whether any of the
options are likely to have a negative impact on equality of opportunity for different
people and groups;

Views of key stakeholders - summary of the views of the key stakeholders consulted with
at this stage: Sport England; England Golf; golf club members and residents (through the
Citizen’s Panel); and

Financial risk - the strength of the business case for each option (as reflected in Section
4),

These additional categories have been identified and assessed through the short-list analysis
process. Detailed equalities impact assessments and risk assessments for each development
option have been prepared to support this analysis.

Tamworth Golf Course Options Appraisal - Stage 2 Short-Listpaygse 79 Page 9



0l 9%ed

sisAjeuy 3s17-340ys 7 98e3s - jesteaddy suorydQ 954n0) 4109 yriomwe |

*Juswdo)arap

33 UL PA)OAUL

aJe saluedwod 1ed0] JL
jJuswAojdws uoLIdNIISUOD
Jeuonyippe sutyioddns pue
1984e) Sulshoy s,)lduno)
ay3 Y3oq 1sutede SULIDALIDP
‘(suonydo 1)e Jo 1s98..)
3y31) 91s ay3 uo papiroad
9q p)nod jey) suisnoy

JO Junowe jJuedLylusLs

33 JO 9snedaq awod31No
123(04d siy3 Jsutese
suolydo )je jo Suwwiojiad
1s98u0.43s a3 st | uoado

| uonndo

"9Ms
3y uo padojaaap oq 03
S9SNOY JO Jaquinu pajiwl)
e smo)e Ajuo 31 se | pue

4 ‘@ suondQ ueyy ssa) Inq
g uonndp ueyj awodino
SIU3 JO JUSWSASLYDR

33 03 uolINqLIIU0D
191ea43 e sayew o uolldp

o uondo

‘9IS 9y} uo papiroad aq 0}
juawdojaAsp Bulsnoy a8Je)
e 9)qeus Aay} se awod3Ino

SLU3 JO JUSWSASLIYDE 3Y)

0} Uo1INQLIIUOD JUBDLJLUSLS

e 9yew 4 / g suonndp

4/ @uondo

*s196.e] §,)10uno)

9y} splemo} sulsnoy

mau Aue Jo uolstroad ayl
J0J MOY|e J0oU S30p I INg
9}IS UO Saljl)loey Jo d5uel
pasea.dul ay3 jo yed

se sqo[ mau awlos saptaoad
1L se awod1no 1d3foid

SIY3 JO JUSWSAILIYDR

33 03 uolINqLIIUod

1S9M0) 9y} saxew g uondo

(quawdojanap
suisnoy

MaU Jo uolsiroid
ay3 sutpnidut)
ysnolog ay3

ulL YyamoJs pue
uoljeJlauasal
J1WOU029

03 UolINQLIIU0)

2wodlnQ

suorjedtjdw o18aje3s Jo Adewwns - |L°€ a)qel

Page 80



11 95ed

sisAjeuy 3s17-340ys 7 98e3s - jesteaddy suorydQ 954n0) 4109 yriomwe |

‘ysnoJog ay3 ul 2419YyMas)d
S9LIALIOR pue sallljLoey
2.1ns13) pue Jiods mau

J0 uoistaoad ayy ojul 9IS
ay3 wouy ydiodal jejded
93 JO SWOs SulisaAuL

pue juawdo)aAap suisnoy
a3 uyum adeds uado
9]qLssadde 3ullelodiodul
AgQ 7eyMaWOS 395}J0

39 pInod sty "Ayioey )08
33 JO 3Inso)d e ul Jnsal
11IM 31 pue Suturews.
sanloey syods ou 3q

1I!M 249Y3 asnedaq suorydo
11e Jo awod3no 123foid
SIU3 JO JUSWSAILIYDR

3y} 03 uolINqLIuod

102.1p 1S3))_WS 3y}

ew 03 A\ st | uodo

| uonndo

*9$JN0d 3y} Jo
suLjj@powsal Joulw e Ajuo
ym uolstroad Sullsixa ayl
9dueyua pue s30ajo.d )
asnedaq awod3no 3d9(oud
SLU] JO JUSWaASLYDR

ay3 01 uolIngLIIuod
JuedLLUBLS e ayew

03} A1y st uotydo sty

9 uondo

*sapjunyioddo
ynesy/a.nsia)

ay3 uapeo.uq

pIN0D eyl A3j1oR) MaU B
uL 3S9AUL 0] Jellded aseajal
os\e Aew 3| *951n0d 30y Q|
snotaald ay3 asn jou pip
OyYM 13snh jensed Jo adAy
M3U B }JeJIIR |)IM 35IN0D
310y 6 33 Jey) 3)qissod st
3L ‘(108 jo sajoy g| Sulheld
10} 93uau9)aid J1ay] USALS)
95IN02 aY3 asn 03 SULYSIM
J98U0) OU $13sn dWOS

ut SuynsaJ Ajenryualod
951n02 3y} 40 yJed Jo $SO)
3y3 ut )nsaJ op suonydo
OM} 3533 ysnoyny

4/ @uondo

‘uotstroad aunsta)
1930 03Ul JUSWIISDAUL
1e1ided oy apiaoud
1,USS0p 11 JISASMOH
‘uolstaoad Sulysixa

ay3 9oueyua pue sydajoud
L asnedaq (9 uondo
Uilm) sawodino 3dafloud
SLU] JO JUSWaA3LYDR
ay3 01 uolIngLIijuod
JuedLJLUBLS B yew

03 A1ayh st uonrdo siy1

A1saqo
sulonpaJ pue
uolyedidiyied

Bulseauoul
03 uolIngLi3uod
pue s9)A1s941

Ayneay
pue 9s12J9X9
JO uorjowo.d

9wodlnQ

Page 81



71 9%ed

sisAjeuy 3s17-340ys 7 98e3s - jesteaddy suorydQ 954n0) 4109 yriomwe |

*A891e.18 S1lodg s,)1oUno)
9y} uL paiinbau aue jeyy
S9DIAIDS pue S31L|1oe) OJUL
1S9AULDJ 0} pPasn 3q p)Nod
yoym 1diadau jejided
JuedLLUSLS 1SoW Ay}
aptroud saop 1 ‘uolsiroud
a.ns1a) pue ods 1o}
9A11e39U A)1ea)d SL Ydym
‘£32.413U9 S3L UL 95IN0D
1108 ay1 saAaowsal | uorldp
ISIIYM “dwod3no 3dafoud
Siy3 isutegde Aje)wis
wuoyiad suonndo ayy Jo 1Y

“JUSWISAAUL-3J J0} 1d19d3l
1e1ided o5.e) e Jo ased)al
eIA ‘\1ey syJods pue jood
SULLLWIMS B UJIM 9J3UdD
2JNS13) B Se ydNs Juswndop
SIy1 Ul patjryuspl
S9A1303[q0 a4nsLa)

pue 1J40ds JSPIM §,)1dUno?)
9Y3 JO dWOS SULIDALI9P

Jo Aiqissod ay3 oy

MO]]e J0U S90p I JDAIMOY
‘6007 Ul [A8a1e.3S syiods
Joop3INQ pue Joopuj julor,
S,]12Un0) ay3 Ul padinbau
8ULaq Se paLjlluapl Sem
yoym (padinbas asinod
3y3 Jo Sul)jopowsad Joutw
e Ajuo yim) uoisirouad
951N0D }]08 SULISIXd

33 sadueyua pue s3dajoud
0 uonndQ ‘awod3no 3dafloud
SLy3 Jsutede Ajejiuwits
wuojiad suonndo ayl Jo 1Y

9 uondo

‘A8ajeals

syiods s,)1ouno) ay3 ul
paJlinbau aJe jeyy sad1AI9S
pue saljljloe} Jsyjo ojul
JUSWISdAULDI Jeljualod
1o} 1diadal jejided

e aplrold osje pue a3Lns
SS9u3L} pue yjeay pue
a8uel SUIALIp 9y3 Se yons
Sall)loey} jeuonlippe Usylo
apiaoud op Aay) JaAsmoy
‘Bulutewsal 9sI1nod })0s
90y 6 e 9AR3) Ajuo 4 / @
suo1ldp ‘swod3no 3o9foud
SLy3 Jsutege Ajejuwits
wuojiad suonndo ayl Jo Y

4 /@ uondo

*JUSWISaAUL-J 104 1d19D3l
1eaded o5.e) e Jo aseajal
eIA ‘\1ey syJods pue jood
SULWIWIMS © UJIM 3J3udd
2JNS13) B Se ydNs Juswndop
Sly3l ut patjijuspl
S9A1303[q0 a4nsLa)

pue i0ds J3pIM §,]12UN0)
9Y3 JO SWOs SULISALSP

Jo Aiqissod aya oy
MO]]e 10U S90p 11 JOASIMOY
‘6007 ut [A833e135 s1iods
Joop3inQ pue Joopuj juLor,
S,]1ouno?) ay3 ut paJtnbal
8uLaq se palyl3uapl

Sem ydLym uotstroad
9SJN0D 105 BULISIXd

33 9dueyua pue s3dajoud
g uonndp ‘swod3no 309foud
SLy3 Jsutege Ajejuwits
wuoyiad suonndo ayl Jo 1Y

uoisiroad

a4ns1a] pue ods
lo) ABajeuis

/ UOLSIA J9PIM
S11dunoj sy
pue SjuaplLsal
s.ysno.og

3y} Jo spaau
21ns1a) 9y}

199w 03 Mgy

9wodlnQ

Page 82



€| o5ed

sisAjeuy 3s17-340ys 7 98e3s - jesteaddy suorydQ 954n0) 4109 yriomwe |

EMIETERIEET EEVN-TTR T
1diodau jejided JuediLyLusis
e pue gururews.

95IN0D })05 oU g )M
913y3 se uonyisod anuaAal
S,]1ouno) ayj 03 ¥su
WwJ93-5U0] ou St 943y} uay}
pajuswaidwlt A))nyssaons
9q ued | uonndo JL pue sysu
WJ93-3J0ys 1e aJe sysu
sutuueyd pue uoljeindau
‘leonrjod ayy ‘U9ASOMOH
*219 Awouods ay)

UL SUOLl3eN3dN} “SUoLILpuUOd
punoJg ‘sanjea pue)
‘suo132a[qo 1ed0) ‘sanssi
Suluued Aq pasuan)jut aq
P1N0d Ydiym juawdoiarap
guisnoy juedtLugls

1S0W Y] S9AJ0AUL

31 se uondo ysu ysiy

e 9q 03 sieadde | uonndp

‘uonydo

SLU) UL PSAJOAUL SYSLI
JuedLHLUSLS JO JOqunu B
1113s aJe aJ4ay3 Jeyy sueaw
UDIYM SIUSPLSAL 1ed0)
wo.} suot3dalqo jeryualod
0} pea) 03 ysnoua

98.Je)] os)e sL uawdo)aAap
suisnoy ay3 jo

9]eds ay] °S92IN0S3aJ pue
awl} 43240 JUedLLUSLS
SAI0AUL IIM SIYL

*9$JN0D 3y} 95euew pue
asnoyqgnyd ay3 dojaaspal
03 JauyJed Jojesado

ue pue guisnoy ay}

Jo} Jaulied juswdojaaap
e Aj1auspt 03 s309foud
x9)dwod om] SulSeuew
112UN0) Y3 SOA0AUL

1L ‘I9ASMOH °1saJa3ul
J03eJado asiwixew pnoys
yoym (g uonndo Jad se)
Jew.o} 951n0d 3)0yY-g| Y3
S9dURYUD pue SuLe}ad jl
pue 9)gejunow.ns aJow q
Aew suol}dafqo pue sansst
sutuueyd os suorido Jayyo
9y Se jJuedLjLusls se Jou

s1 JuawdojaAap uisnoy
9Y3 Jo 9)eds ay3 ashedaq
jJuswdo)aAap Suisnoy
9A)0AUL Jey) suonndo

13930 3y} uey3 ¥sLl JOMmo) e
Sse uaas aq pnod o uonndp

9 uondo

*2JN1DoNJISeljul SIDIAISS pue
1JodsueJ] MaU 10} pasu 3y
pue 354n0d 31 JO ¢ }2Bq 3y}
0juo paddiy JeLiajew ayl Yitm
eaJe 9)qedo)aAap Jayjews

ay3 03 anp uorydo AiaAL9p
YSLI 1aysLy e aq 03 Aoy

st 4 uonlndQ 1Inq SsjuapIsal
]1e20) wo.y suol1dafqo ssa)
93eJauas 01 A9y st q uordo

*954N0d
3y} 98euew pue asnoygn)d
oYy dojaAspau 03 saulied
Jojesado ue pue Suisnoy

3y} Joy sauued juswdoiaasp
e AJ13uspt 03 syoafoid
x91dwod om) SulSeuew
112UN0?) 3y} SAJOAUL S0P I
‘JI9AOMOH ‘salyled pajsataiul
Auo ay3 Butaq sanioey
aIns1a) / 14ods pue 108 yjoq
afeuew oym siojesado yim
‘si0jesado 108 wody) 1salaiul
19yJeW JO 19A3) J9MO)

e uL 31nsaJ 01 A9y st uonydo
3]0y 6 9Y) JOAIMOY ‘3SIN0D
aY3 Jo JuswaSeuew oY)
sulsieutaixa Aq pajesniw aq
PIN0D YSLI SIY] “SISOD SNUSA3I
paseaJdul 03 3123[qgns 5ulaq
112Uno) 3y} pue pINoys 1L se
119M se Sulwoyiad Jou 35InN0d
3Y3 JO YSU B SL 913y} JI9AIMOY
(] uoadp ut se) asunod ay}

1O $S0] 1301 9Y] UeRY) JaYlel
Sulurewsalu 9s51n0d 4108 e ul
1nsaJt op Aay -juswdo)arsap
guisnoy juedLLusLs

AJ0AUL AU se ysLI ySLy
Aj9A13e)ad aJe 4 / @ suondQ

4 /@ uondo

*1esteadde suonydo

ay3 1oddns 03 pasedaud
uaaq aAey uorydo yoes
10} SJUSWISSISSE HSLJ 1N+

*sysLI uonyelado

Jo Aj11geutelsns pue
uolyejuswadwt ay3 SI9MO)
yoym “ysiy osje st 10aloud
93 Ul 159J93Ul }9)Jew
8uLIND3s Jo pooyl|anL] ayy
0s ysLy oq pynom uonydo
SLY3 ul 3sa493ul Jojesado
JeUIIX3 JO 19A3) 9Y] ey
Ay st 3 ‘uonndo Sutuued
)SLI MO] B 0S)e St Siy)
suLping juswsade)das A103s
-9)5uls e 9q 03 papualul

SL 31 Se pue asnoyqn)d

Mau ay3 st uonndo

s1y3 Japun juswdojaaap
Auo ay] *(suorydalqo

pue swa)qo.d Sutuueyd jo
}SLJ SS9 0S) Jusawdo)aAsp
BULSNOY JURDLJLUSLS SA)OAUL
J0U S90p 31 se 3oaloud

ay3 Jo AISALSp 1N4sSI0NS
9Y3 JO swua} uL ysu

J0 19A9] 159M0) Y3 Juasaud
03} A1axh st g uozdo

g uondo

LSEYNIE]o)

40 pooyhianl
/ POAIOAUL
M)SLI JO 19A7

Page 83



] 98ed

sisAjeuy 3s17-340ys 7 98e3s - jesteaddy suorydQ 954n0) 4109 yriomwe |

‘ysnolog ay3

uL 92eds uado pue saAIasal
9injeu JO JUSWIdURYUD
3y} 03 9INqLI3U0d

0} 1d1ada. Jejided

3Y3 JO awos Suisn pue
saoeds uado 9)qissadde
S9pn)duL 3L 94NSUd

01 311s ay3 Jo Sutuueyd
Ja)sew njaJied ysnoayy
JUSIX3 Ue 03 195}J0 9q
PIN0J sty *(IX23U0D Siy3 ut
A3igeuteisns Jo uoluLyap
3Y3 jo Jed e s guisnoy

Jo uolsiroud ayy ysnoyye)
911S Juswdo)aAapal JaBie)
3y3 03 anp AyjLgeuteisns
1eIUSWUOIIAUD

10} 9A17RG3U Jsow

ay3 aq 03 A1y st | uondo

| uonndo

*3oedwl

12IUSWIUOIIAUD 3SIDAPR
lewtulw aq 03 A}dx1) st
aJayy os pue (Juawdo)arsp
News A)aAL1e)al

e AjJuo yum) paldajoud
Aj3sow s 9s1n0d 3y}
asnedaq awod3ino 1daloud
SLy} 03 uo1INQLIUoD

S1L 10} aALsod st 9 uonndp

9 uondo

*954N0D
a3 jo juawdo)aAap

11NJ Y1 SAJ0AUL J0U

op Aayy asnedaq | uonndp
ueyy 491199 Ajeutsiew
Auo aJe 4 ; @ suonndo

4/ @uondo

*30edwl JRIUSWIUOILAUS
9SJ9APR OU SL 913U} 0S pue
pa32330.d st 951n0D 3}
9snedaq awod3no 3d3foud
S1y3} 03 uo1INQLIIU0D

sL Joj aALsod st g uonndo

sadeds anq pue
u2a4s sulydayoud
suLpn)oul
saAlDalqo
Aniqeuteysns
pue
]2IUSWIUOIIAUD
S1duno) syl

Jo Auaanap ayy
03 uolIngLiIuo)

9wodlnQ

Page 84



G| 9%ed

sisAjeuy 3s17-340ys 7 98e3s - jesteaddy suorydQ 954n0) 4109 yriomwe |

*saLlepunoq ysnoloq

S)L puoAaq ssadde Jo
Ahenba s9juelens Jouued
0s seaJle SuLpuno.lIns

ay3 ut suapiroud 108
dA13RUISNR 3y} JO saldljod
S$S92Dk Y] 10J3U0D Jouued
112uno) ay3 ey st | uonndo
U3IM YSLI 3] J9AIMOY
$954N0D 1BD0) J9Y]O0 e }108
$S92D0B UBD SIS Jualin?d)

*19430 Aue ueyy alow
adA} 7 dnous o1y1oads suo
uo 1oedwl aALleS9U B aARYy
031 191 Jou aJe suonndo
9y} 0s ‘233 sabe ‘sadel
‘saxas )1e Aq pajuasaudal
9q p)nod 91doad

9say3 ysnoy3je ‘as4nod
33 03U0 >deq sawoy
9SOUM SIUSPISDI 1BD0)

pue 95In02 3y3 JO SIasn
JUa44nd 3Y3 uo 3oedwit
9A11e33U 1S0W Y] SARY
Aneruayod im | uonndp
*adA1 7 dnoug uejnored
19430 Aue uaA0 uosiad

J0 2dA) Jo dnous auo
o8ejueApesip Jou pnoys
Aay1 se sarjenba uo
1oeduwlt J1dy3 03 uollejad ul
Aejtwits 2102s suotydo N1y

*(1 pue 4 ‘q suondo

Japun uey) Jayjews

10] e si Juawdo)aAap

ay3 pue) Jayjo Aue

uey) alow adAy ;7 dnoug
o1410ads auo uo 1oedult
dA11e39U e aAey 03 A1y
j0U aJe suorldo ayj os
*219 S9%e ‘sadel ‘saxas e
Aq pajuasaudai oq pjnod
91doad asay] *ssao0.d
sutuuerd ay3 ysnouayy
pajesiiw g p)nod siyy
ysnoyye ‘yusawdo)aorap
pauue)d ay3 03 anp 951n0d
33 03U0 ¥deq sawoy
9SOUM SIUSPISDJ 1eD0) pue
9SIN0D 3Y3 JO SJASN JULIND
ay3 uo 1oedwl aAL3eSaU

e SulAey se paAladlad aq
Aerualod 1m 9 uonndp
*2dA] ;7 dnou§ uejnoiied
19430 Aue JaA0 uosiad

J0 2dA) 1o dnous auo
98ejueApesip Jou pjnoys
Aay1 se saljenbs uo
1oedwlt J1ay3 03 uolle)ad ul
AJejtwits 2402s suordo 1y

9 uondo

*19y30 Aue

uey) aJow adAy 7 dnoud
o14109ds auo uo 1oedult
dA11e39U e aAey 03 A1y
j0U aJe suorldo ayj os
*219 So%e ‘sadel ‘saxas e
Aq pajuasaudas aq pjnod
91doad asay] °ssado.d
sutuueyd ayy ysnouayy
pajesiw aq pinod

Sy} ysnoyyje ‘asinod

33 03U0 ¥deq sawoy
9SOUM SIUSPISI 1eI0)

pue 951n02 3y JO SIash
jua.1und ay3 uo 1dedwit
9AL]eSaU B SulARy Se
paAladiad aq Ajenryualod
NM 4 / @ suondo

*adA1 7 dnoJ3 uejnoiued
19430 Aue 19A0 uosiad

J0 2dA) 1o dnous auo
95ejURAPESIP J0U PINOYS
Aay1 se saljenbs uo
1oeduwlt J1ay3 03 uolje)ad ul
Ajejtwits 2102s suordo 1y

4 /@ uondo

jesteadde

suolydo ay3 1oddns 03
paJedaud usaq aAey uolydo
Yoea J0J SIUDWSSISSY
1oedw) sanjlenb]

*adA1 ; dnoJ3 uejnoiied
19430 Aue JaA0 uosiad

J0 2dA} 4o dnous auo
a8ejueApRSIp J0U PINOYS
Aay3 se salenbs uo
1oeduwlt J1ay3 03 uolje)ad ul
AJejlwits a102s suolydo 11y

SJUSpISaI |ed0)
pue sJawo3snd
‘sallenba
uo 3oeduw

Page 85



9] 9%ed

sisAjeuy 3s17-340ys 7 98e3s - jesteaddy suorydQ 954n0) 4109 yriomwe |

‘pautejal
9q 03 31 49)24d pjnom

pue 954n02 41038 Y3 JO

SSO) 18101 3Y3 Jo aAlIoddns
9q 10U PINOM }109

puejSu3 °SIy3 urelsadse

0} 1IN0 paLLed 3ulaq

SL JUSLLUSSISSE SPaau })05
91eJedas y *9s5.n0d 3oy

81 9y3 Ajasnl 01 puewsp
ysnousa jou st aJay}

Jey) PaJUSPIAD 3q URD

L SS9)UN 3S4N0D 4108 9y}
JO $S0] 9Y3 UL )NSaJ )IM

1L se uonyesndde Sutuue)d
Aue 03 103[qo 03 A1y St
pueju3 1Jodg *951n0d 3y}
uo jusawdojaAap suisnoy
SAJ0AUL JeY] suolldo ay)
yim Addeyun Ayejnotied
919M 35JN0D 3y} 0}

A)1e20] 9AL] OYM SIUSPISIY
9oeds uado aAlldeIy]e

ue / 954n0d 3y} JO SsO] 3y}
03 3Np SIUSPISDJ IO SI3sh
a3 01 9)1qe1dadde ulaq se
pawaap jou sem | uonndo

"uonydo siy3

J0 aA1i0ddns aq 03 A)ayY
S1 JJo9 puejul ‘uolsiroad
Aeqobue pasueyus

pue 951n02 3)0Y 8| ue jo
UOL3U3IaJ dY3 UL 3INSdJ IIM
L se uonyeondde Sutuueid
Aue 01 309[qo 03 Aj19yLun st
puej3u3 110ds *9s1n0d 3y}
uo jJusawdojaAap Suisnoy
9A)0AUL Jey) suorldo ay)
yim Addeyun Apenoyaed
919M 95In0d 3y3 0}

A)1e20)] 9AL] OYM SIUSPLSY
*9)qepJojje aq 03 A\ayLun
st s1y3 1diadau jeded

e oplAaoad 03 Juswdo)arsp
INOYILM ‘19ASMOH
*$19)108-uou 031 dn Ao}
ay3 uado pue s19)108

03 43440 9y3 aAoidwil )M
1 se uejndod Ajswauxo
Sem salllLoey Alejjoue
ay3 Jo juswdojarap

ay] ‘suolido jJusawdo)aAap
3y} Jo 9)qejejed 1sow

93 SeM 3s1n0d 310y 8| 3y}
surejal pue juswdo)aAdp
SWOS SaPNOUL YdIym 9
uolydQ JoAamoy ‘oLieuads
PaINOARJ B J0U SeM 95IN0D
ay3 uo jusawdojaraq

9 uondo

“(s11e39p Jayiny

10} M0]9q 99S) 951n0D
910y ¢ © 03 954N0D 3y}
1J9AUOD 0] SI )09 puejSul
1o} uonndo pautiajaud

3yl °slyl urelsadse

03 IN0 paLiied 3ulaq

SL JUDLISSISSE SPaau 4103
9jeJedss y *951n0d 9)0y
81 ay3 Aj1asnf 03 puewsp
ysnousa jou st 349y eyl
PaJUSPLAS 9q URD 3L SSaUN
954n0d }]03 a3 jo Yed

JO SSO] Y3 UL })NSaJ )M
1L se uonjeondde Sutuue)d
Aue 03 123[qo 03 Aoy st
puejdu3 14ods *9sIn0d 3y}
uo jusawdojaAap 3uisnoy
9A)0AUL Jey) suorldo ay)
yim Addeyun Apejnonaed
919M 95I1n0d 3y3 0}
A)1eD0) 9AL] OYM SIUSPLSAY
‘ydnw 003 SEM 3SIN0D 3y}
JO Jjey uo juawdo)aAap
guisnoy jeyl pue ysnoua
10U SEM 351n0D 910y 6

e Jey] M3IA ay3 Sulssaldxa
$933]NSU0D 3ISOW YIUM

| uoradp ueyy aqeirdadde
alow Ajeuldiew

Auo aiam 4 7 g suonndo

4 /@ uondo

‘o1qe}

Sy} M0)3q paplao.d st J109
pueju3 pue puejsu3 1iods
Y3ILM UOL3B}NSUOD 3y} Uo
)te3ap Jayling -uorydo siy3
03 323[qo j0U pINOM 109
puejSu3j pue puejsu3 1iods
*9)qepJojje aq 01 AjayLun
st s1y3 1diadau jeyrded

e ap1Aoad 03 Juswdo)aAap
INOYIUM ‘USASMOH
*S194108-uou 03 dn AjLjLoe)
ay3 uado pue s194)08

03} J94J0 93 dA0idwl 1)IM L
se Jejndod Ajawaiixa sem
sanloey) Adeyoue ay) Jo
jJuswdolaAap ay] *954n0d
4105 3104 81 3y} pautejal
Jey3 suorydo ay3 paJinoAey
Ne (slaqwaw jaued
SuU9Z11L)) SJUapLSal pue
(s1oqwiaw gnyd 5108) s4asn

siapjoyaxels
A9Y JO SMILA

Page 86



/| 98ed

sisAjeuy 3s17-340ys 7 98e3s - jesteaddy suorydQ 954n0) 4109 yriomwe |

*109foud ayy 03

suo112afqo A)ayL) pue pue)
33 JO anjeA pue ajes ay}
03 payul] aJe sysl Asy ay L
‘pue)] 3y3 JO 91es ay3 wo.}
paAalyde g pinod eyl
1d1adal jejided jerjuajod
95.1e) ay3 Jo asnedaq
uordo sty3 wouy uoryisod
Jeldueut 3seq ay) ul

9q 03 A}ay1 st 11duNo) ay L
*11ouno?) ayy Aq paJinbal
JUSWSaAUL JeiLded

ou pue jioddns snuaAal
8uL05-uo aJtnbau Aew jeyy
954n0d }]08 ou S1 319y}

se uodo ysLi jeldueuly
159M0] ay3 st | uondo

"11dUno) ay3 03 Xdeq
papuey Sutaq Aioey auy
uL 3)NsaJ pPIN0d 31 $3954e)
9NUSA3J 3Y3 dA3LYde 0)
]te} 03 sem Jojelado ayy 4l
ey} Ysi WiS3-5U0) B 1)13s
st aJ9y) ‘g uondp Jad sy

*9)qelA

9SBD SS2ULSN( 11.JSA0 3}
yew 01 Yysnous JuedLLusLs
9q 01 A|9yLun st suisnoy
ay3 Joj 1diodal jeided ayy
Jey3 st uoido sty Yiim ysu
ASY 8yl *IsnJ] 1eusaixs ue
Aq paSeuew Sulaq 951n0D
9y31 pue syusawaAoiduwi

ay3 ayew o} jeided

ay3 Sul1SaAUL J1DUN0)

3U3 JO JUSAS Y3 UL |12UN0)
33} 03} Weals SNUIASI B
uJn3al osje pynod o uorldo

9 uondo

*suolydo asayy Japun
Jaysiy A)ysns stisu siy3
Jeyy ueaw Aew (sa)0y ¢
0] uolydnpal *a°1) suonndo
9S9Y3 Japun 354n0d 3y}
03 saSueyd JejUSWEpUN}
aJow 3y} Jo aJnjeu

Syl "iduno) ay3 03 3deq
papuey Sutaq Ayl1oe) sy
uL 3)NsaJ pPIN0d 31 $3954e)
9NUSA3J 33 dA3LYDR

03} |k} 0} sem Jojesado
9] JI Jeys surewsal

N1S YSu wia3-8uo) ay |

‘pa1saAuLal
si 3diodal Jejided

9Y3 JO SWoOS i 3)gelA
95eD SSaULSNg 1|_JSA0

93U} 9Yew pue JUdWISIAUL
1eyded ay3 puny

P)N0D Yoym suisnoy ay3
woJ) pajesauas st 1diodal
eaded e ‘soLieuads asay)
10 Y30q Japun ‘Jeyy st
9DUI9 P A3Y 9y *IsnuL
Jeula1xa ue Aq paseuew
BuLaq 9s4n0d 3Y3 pue
sjuswaAosdwl ay3 ayew
0] 1e1ided ay3 SulysaAul
112UN0) 3Y3 JO JUIAD

3y3 ut Ajuo Ing J1dUN0)
39U} 0} Wealu}s SNuaAdl

e UJN3aJ p)nod 3SIN0d

3Y3 yey) ut g uondo

03 Je)lwis aJe suonydo yyog

4 /@ uondo

“|12UNo)
Y3 03 3deq papuey 3ulaq
A31oe) 3Y3 JO HSLI W)
-8U0) e sL aJay] s198.e]
9NUSA3J 3Y3 dA3LYDe

03} |le} 0} sem Jojesado

3y} J| "uonrdo styy Joj

9SBD S$S2ULSN( 11JSA0 Ue 3]
031 A}ayLun st aJ1ayy suisnoy
wo.J} pajetausas diadal
1eyided e jo 3de) ay3 ypm
pue juawisaAul jejided

33 JO 350D Suldueul ayy
J9A0D 03 Y3nousa JuaLdLyns
9q 03 A)9y1] J0U SL UIN}al
9NUSA3J 3y ‘OLIRUDDS

SIY} UL UaA3 "Aynioey ayy
sageuew 1snJ] JeulaIxd

ue pue sjuswaoidwt
Anioey Aeoue

93 03Ul JUSWISIAUL
1e1ided ay3 spuny 11oUNO)
91 J1 11duno) sy} 03
UJN}aJ SNUSASI B 91eI9U3
03} A1y Ajuo st uondo sty

(s)rerop aJow oy
# UO1}D9S 9935)
YSIY etoueul

Page 87



gl 9%ed sisAjeuy 3s17-340ys 7 95eis - jesteaddy suorydp 9s4n0) 109 yllomwe |

‘uonydo pauiajaid ayj Juswaidwi 03 3afoud Aue Suruulsaq 240)9q Sulysa] 19xJew

J9Y3Jn} 10J Pa3U Y3 SOIUSPIAS SIY] °)0D puRI3UT JO MILA SY3 YILM INDUOD 10U SI0P SLY3 J9Aamoy ‘11 dojaAaap 03 Asuow ay3 sutpuads

Aj1asnl 01 ysnous Su0) 9q 10U Aew 3L pue 10JeISUST SWOodUL 5Iq B 9q 0] A]9YL] JoU SL d5Ued SULALIP 9] 1eY] MILA B passaldxa siolelado
SWOS WY} JO SWOS 03 3S3J93Ul JO 8q P)NOM uoldo 310y 6 B puUB SISINOD J)J0S pue $343UD 3INSLa] Yjog Suldeuew Jo 9OuUsLIadXa daAeY

oym sitojelado ate a1ay] °si0jetado 9SIN0D J105 paledlpap 03 3$9493Ul JO 3q Jou pinom uolldo ajoy ¢ dyl ysnoyyje ‘saijnioey) Asejoue
pue 9s4nod ay3 Sulyesado ul 3sa493ul St 949y *ssad0.d siy3 Jo JJed se pa3Nsuod 0s)e 349M S1031elado 9SIN0D J108 eUIIIXD elIud30d

*J108 910y g| Aeyd 01 paysim Asuy JI yjlomwe] JO SpISIN0
$9S4N0D 03 U0 SAOW USY] PINOD awes ay3 Jo siselsnyiul 'sajoy g Aeyd 03 Asuow pue swly 3y} SAeY Jou AW OYM 3SOY} pue awes ay)
Bulheld 14e31s 01 YsSIm Oym s124)08 Jo) Aemyied JuswdolaAsp e jo ned aq pjnom yliomuwe] e ALde) ayl ‘Hoo puesul jo uotutdo ay)y

ut Juswsa)a Jejndod AJaA e 5q pinom seade ad13oeud Sulind / Sulddiyd pue a5ueld SULALIP B JO uOolSn)duL Sy “dwes ayj 0jul SI9sN Mau
3Jow 35eIN0dUS 0} pJemlo) Aem ayj se suolideliie J108 A|pusiiy-1asn ‘91qLssadde a10W SpIemo) SA0W e s33s pue J1os sulhed siaquinu
BulSeaId9p 9Y) JO SJeMe SI ]1 SB 3SIN0D 310y ¢ B 0} 3SIN0D aY3 3U9AUOD 03 SI 4109 pue)3u] 40} uonydo patiajald ayl ‘pautelal oq

0} 11 J94394d p)NOM pue 3SIN0D 103 3Y3 JO SSO] 1303 BY3 JO SAL3Ioddns Sq J0U PINOM 1L Jey) PaLJIUSPL OO pue|S3uT YllM Uol3ensuo)

*eale a3 ul 9duejeq puewsp pue Ajddns ayj Aj1juspl

0] paLlied 8ulaq S JUSWISSISSe SPasuU 108 9)eledas y pajNsuod aq 03 pasu pinom (pueisdul ut Jjos Jnajewe Joj Apoq SUlUISA0S

3y3) J109 puejdul Jeyl pue aseq 9JUIPIAS 5u0lls e A palioddns 9q 0] paau pPJNOM 3SIN0D 108 S SAOWI / 9dnNpad 0] ased Aue jey)
Pa1ys1ysLy 3t ‘9s4nod 4108 Y3 Sulielado ul SaL3NJLHP pUR S1I0J49 S,]1OUN0Y) 3Y3 poo3siapun purjdul JJods IS)LYM “seate Sulpunolins
3Y3 UL $351n0d })08 Jayjo Aq palisiies 9q ued puewap Siyl jL 0 eate ay] Ul 9SIN0D 3)0Y g] Ue 10} puewap judje) St 3493 Jo9Ylaym
AJ13USpL 0] INO paLLIRD 3Q PINOYS JUSWISSISSE SPaauU }]05 e Jeyl palsassns pue (95In0d J10S e o) pasu 3y} pawliLjuod Ajsnotaaid yoiym)
ABajea3s s140ds S,)12UN0) dY3 JO Ysa4jad B 10j padu aY) passalls 3| *9SIN0D J105 Y3 JO ])e Jo 1ied Jo SSO) Y3 ul 3)NsaJ )M 3L se 3ulsnoy
10} 951n02 3y} jo juawdo)aAap Joj uonediidde Suiuueid Aue 03 103[qo 03 A}y SI pue)|5ug 140dS Jey) paLjlluapl UoLIe}NSUOD Ay

ssuipul4 uoljeynsuo?) JojetadQ / Jjoo pue)su3 / pue|Su3 Jiods
*UO11D3S IXaU SY] Ul J1e1ap aJow ul uotydo yoea o) pasAjeur ade suoljedidull jeldueul) Y| “UOLIRIO)R pue] Sulsnoy

03 UOLJR)aJ UL S195.1e) JUSWUISA0S pue ASaje.iS Jeldueuly W] WNLPaW ]]RJISA0 S,]12UN0Y) 33 JO IX9JU0D 3y} ULYILM PaIapisuod
9 0] Paau 3SaY] "SySLI pue saSejueApesip pue safejueApe d159jells Jo Jaqunu e sey suorido juswdo)aaap jeraualod ay3 jo yoe3

€1e

(A3

(Y

0L°¢

Page 88



04

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4. Financial Implications

This section summarises the Council’s current and future budgetary requirements and
presents the financial implications of each development option. Before examining the
projected net financial position of each option we have summarised the Council’s wider
budgetary position.

Financial Context for the Council

The Council has faced funding cuts of circa 40% in recent years and although it produced a
balanced General Fund Medium Term Financial Strategy for the next 3 years in February
2013, updated base budget projections in November 2013 show a significant deficit in the
longer term. These projections, updated to include the impact of the Comprehensive
Spending Review on Government Grant levels and other cost pressures, show a General Fund
(GF) shortfall of £2.8m by year 3followed by an ongoing annual deficit of over £3m p.a.
(E8.9m over the next 5 years). There is on-going work commissioned by the Executive
Management Team (Cabinet/CMT) under the umbrella of the Sustainability Strategy to
address this through a combination of income generation / revenue savings from housing,
business rates and service reviews.

Within this context, the Council allocated a budget from contingency funds for the
management of the golf course of £80k per annum for 2013/14 and 2014/15. There is then a
potential funding gap for the golf course from 2015/16 onwards that will need to be
addressed through the recommended solution for the site. In addition to this, the council has
lost the £36k per annum that it was budgeting to receive from Tamworth Golf Centre Ltd.
Any ongoing cost for the golf course from 2015/16 onwards would be added to the c.£2m
corporate deficit.

The selected option for the future of the golf course must therefore remove the on-going
revenue subsidy required from the Council towards the operation and maintenance of the
facility from 2015/16 onwards and ideally contribute towards the funding of the Council's
£2m deficit from 2016/17 onwards.

Financial Performance of the Golf Course

Following the liquidation of Tamworth Golf Centre Ltd and the course closing in February
2013 the Council re-opened the course and put in place a two year business plan for it to
manage the course on an in-house basis. This resulted in the £80,000 per annum contingency
provision being identified based on projected total income of £226,470 and expenditure of
£306,470 per annum (membership target of 150 members).

After six months of the 2013/14 financial year the course was below target compared to its
business plan projections. The financial performance of the golf course from April to
September 2013 is set out in table 4.1.

Tamworth Golf Course Options Appraisal - Stage 2 Short-Listpaygse 89 Page 19



4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

Tamworth Golf Course Options Appraisal - Stage 2 ShOFt'Pta'gléis 90

Table 4.1 - Golf Course Profit and Loss April - September 2013

Year to Date
Spend

Year to Date Year to Date Total Annual
Budget Variance Budget

Income 168,302 177,000 8,698 227,470
Expenditure 168,613 170,470 -1,857 307,470
Profit / (Loss) (311) 6,530 -6,841 (80,000)

It can be seen from the table above that income is circa £8.7k below target for the year to
date. Considering this was the spring / summer peak season for golf then it is unlikely that

income will reach target during the autumn / winter season. Whilst there has been a saving
on expenditure of circa £1.8k, this is not enough to fully mitigate the income loss and results
in a net position of circa £6.8k under target after 6 months of the financial year.

Member numbers are actually up at 229 compared to the target figure of 150 members which
is reflected in the season ticket income. Pay and play green fees is the area where the
course is underperforming, most notably for 18 hole rounds which is significantly below
target.

Table 4.2 - Golf Course Income April - September 2013

All £ Year to Date  Year to Date  Year to Date  Total Annual
Income Budget Variance Budget

Green fees - 18 hole 53,414 101,020 -47,606 132,920

Green fees - 9 hole 36,511 27,390 9,121 39,410

5 day season ticket 21,022 22,250 -1,228 26,250

7 day season ticket 38,272 14,090 24,182 14,090

Secondary spend 19,084 12,250 6,834 14,800

Table 4.2 shows that the majority of income areas are over-performing against budget but 18
hole green fees are significantly under-performing by nearly £48k. It can be seen that green
fees account for a higher proportion (53%) than season ticket income (35%). Of the green fee
income, 59% is generated from 18 hole rounds and 41% from 9 hole rounds.

Financial Modelling Assumptions
A financial model has been produced for each development option in order to identify the
strongest business case for the future of the golf course. The core capital development

assumptions utilised to produce the business case for the development options are set out in
table 4.3.

Page 20



17 95ed

sisAjeuy 3s17-340ys 7 98e3s - jesteaddy suorydQ 954n0) 4109 yriomwe |

(€107 Yyosew ut

(£10Z Yosew

(€107
UYoJew ul SAQ Aq pajewlysa)

wGG6'93 - 6 Moed

jJunowe -

SAQ Aq pajew}sd) wGG9'gLF | Ul SAQ Aq payewtdss) 0000523 wg/"93 - 6 Juo.d 0197 | ydidda1 jeyde)
*SJ01De} JO Jaquinu e uo spuadap pue ajes jo jutod ayi e Jea)d aq Ajuo J)im 1diadal Jelided Jeuly
U] ‘JOAOMOH “SOLIBUDDS JUDIDSIIP USDMIDQ 9]1B11USIS44P 03 Suljjopow 1oy siseq 3snqod e saplaoid
pue SWaYDS JeUOL]IOU B SL SIY] "€107 WOl uoljenjeA SAQ 9yl uo paseq st 1diadal jeyded ay] V/N | 1dedal jeyde)

*9)qedidde JoN

*(499q0320) 9107 ¥O UL suado AjLj1oe) MU Y] 1Y) SSWNSSY

potiad
uo112NIISU0)

*9)qedidde JoN

*(powiad Jeak g7 49A0 sa1ed Alinuue gmd wouy
usyel) %7y 40 a1kl SULMOIIOG *Papuny JIDUNOY SAWNSSY *SIeak G7 JOAO pasiliowe s3sod jejide)

Sulpuny
- 1502 jeude)

*931s 9y3 Suiseydund uaym
1adojaAap ay) Aq paIaA0d
SL 3S0D UOL}LJOWSpP SaWNSsy

*97eW1)sa 150D Jeided asnoyqnid s,3snJuz ULYIM papnjout Sutp)ing Sutlsixa Jo uoljowsaq

uoljljowsp
- 350D Jeyde)

*9)qedidde JoN

-140dal 9AL1DY awAW

€107 Aew woJj) 21ew11sa
1502 Jad se ¢ pue § s9j0y
0} Sjuswpuawe 1o} 00/L7S7

*(9s4n0d

3Y3 0jUL JUSWISDAUL |RISUSS
10} ,syuawaoudwlt 9s4nod
108, 99s) a1qedrdde JoN

*(9s4n0d

9Y3 0jul JUSWISDAUL |RISUSS
10} ,sjuawaAoadwlt 9sInod
108, 99s) a1qedrdde JoN

suolyedLpow
a0y
- 1502 Jeude)

-9)1geotjdde JoN

*(paJedaud Bulaq Aj3ua.und SL JUSWSSISSE 350D Je3lded pa)le1sap e) paAladal
S1S0D Palewl}sd OM] UaM]a( Jutod-piw uo paseq ‘afuel SULALIp J0 Juawdo)aAap 10} 000°00E3

a8uel SulALIp
- 350D Jeyde)

-9)1geotjdde JoN

*(3snJau3g Aq pajewysa) wbs e/ asnoygny)

eaJe 100)}
JeuJaul sson

-9)1geotjdde 10N

| uonndo 9 uondo 4/ @ suondo

'S99} puUe YSLI ‘SjewLIouqe ‘SYJOM 331S ‘SuLpitng JO UOLIDNJIISUOD

10y uoistaoid sapn)dul *(3snuaug Agq palewsa) Juswdo)aAap asnoyqnyd J0) G/6Ge6 LT

g uondo

suorjdwnssy jejtde) suorydp jJuswdo]aAaq - S|9pOW |eldueut - €' d)qel

asnoyqgn)d
- 350D Jeypde)

Page 91



77 9%8ed sisAjeuy 3s17-340ys 7 98e3s - jesteaddy suorydQ 954n0) 4109 yriomwe |

Auedwo) MaN - d31nosinQ Auedwo) Sunysix3y - 9d31nosnQ 9sSnNoH-u|

Surorid
*JUSLISSaSSEe puRWap JU31R) 3Y3 UM - suopdwinsse
aun uL ‘(suolssadu0d 10j G1L3) yuow Jad 073 e paouid sdiysiaquiaw ssaully pue yijeaH “pasueydun ulewsald a4 J108 Jualin) awodu|
*aJn3tpuadxa sil *aJnjlpuadxa SiL
uo | VA 943 JO %07 J9A023. 01 3)qe Ajuo uo | VA 943 JO %07 19A023. 01 a)qe Ajuo
SLISNJ] 9y} ‘JSAIMOH ‘awodul SuLiajed SLISNJ] 9y} ‘JOAIMOH ‘awodul SuLiajed
pue 1ejal Jo uolldadxa ayl YiM |VA pue Jte3aJ Jo uoladadxa ayl YiM JVA *aJnjlpuadxa SiL uo
wo.y 3dwaxa awodu| *IsnJ3 ayqeitieyd wouy 3dwaxs awodu| “IsnJy ajqeitieyd | VA SYl JO |je J9A0I3J Ued J1dUN0) ay3
e 9Q PJNOM UoL}esiueSIo SaWnssy e 90 P)NOM UOLIBSIURSIO SOWNSSY |  19ASMOY | VA 03 3129[qns sL sawoduL 1|y 1VA
*9107 4290120 ut uotyelado 1oy uado ut st AyLjoe) 8y 3Byl SaWNsSsy a)qelswl]

suoldwinssy anuaAay S)apow Juswaseueyy - S|aPoOW |eldueuld - &' a)qel

"}°f 9)1qe) Ul IN0 13s aJe pajuswaidwi |9pow
jJuswaBeuew jo adA) ayy uo Sulpuadap suorydo JuawdolaAap ay3 o) ased ssaulsng ayl AJeA 03 pastjiin suolldwinsse anNUSAal 310D ay |
*suorydo juswaseuew jeriualod 934yl SY3 JO JUNODDE dYe] 0] PaLIeA USY] aJaMm uolldo JuswdojoAap yoes 10) Sj19powl jeldueut) ayl LIy

*9]qedidde JoN

*(M0¥32) H953L pItng eltded a8euew pue aundoud J)Lm 11DUN0) Ing Jojelado o) $3s0d dn-13s o
juawaindoud oN ‘9diApe juawalndold pue 1BS9) ‘@dueul ‘a4nsta) Jo) 000 0y - 9SNOY-UL utewsal J|

"(10¥32) J19s1
piing 1e3ided a5euew pue a4nd04d )M 11DUNOY) pue (¥G/3F2) PaysiqeIsa g 1]IM ISNJ) MaU SSWNSSY
*9J1APE JuswaInd04d pue 1833 ‘9dueUL) ‘94nsLa) 10} 000°‘GL LT - PaysLigelss Auedwod Mau |

‘pIing Jejided aSeuew os)e )M oyMm Jojesado Jo Juawalndold sawnssy
*321Ape JuawWalndoid pue jeSa) ‘adueut) ‘ainsta) 104 000‘0F7 - Auedwod Sulsixa 03 Pa2IN0OSINO J|

51502 dn-31as
/ JuswWwaindo.d

*9)qedidde JoN

*(pastyiowre) $1502 Jojeuado uLyilm papniou)

sjuswaAoiduwit
954n0D }10H

-9)1geotjdde JoN

| uonndo o uondp 4/ @ suondpo g uonndo

*(pastyowe) s3s0d Jojelado Uytm papn)ou|

$1502 IN0-114

Page 92



€7 95ed

sisAjeuy 3s17-340ys 7 98e3s - jesteaddy suorydQ 954n0) 4109 yriomwe |

*(4 / @) suorrdo 910y ¢ Joj pandde s350D J91BM UL UOLIDNPAI JOULW

*98uel SULALIp SU13YSL P00} 10} 150D AJ1DLI1D9)9 69 salllloe) Jo Ajljenb pue afued pasealudul 10} sasealdul A1essadau yjm
uoljelado Sullsixa jsuteSe payJewydusq pue sjuawdo)oAap Jejlwls Wol) a3ed wbs / 3 B U0 paseq adueUdIULRW PUR SN

sostwa.d
- suonydwnsse
aJniipuadx3]

"|]apow juawsaseuew asnoy

-UL J3pun uolIdNpal %67 "S|9poW Juswadeurew JeUIIXa Japun (4 / @) suonndo ajoy ¢ Jo) S1s0d Suldasy usaJs ul uoldNpal %0G

*A110e) AJejdue Ja8ie) ay3 JO 1NSJ B SB PajiNIdal JJelS |eUOLILPPY ‘paSueydun ulewsal $)9A3) a5em pue Alejes ||y

suLyjels
- suolydwnsse
aJniipuadx3]

‘paulelal swodul JLeial pue Sulpusp

"y3JoMwe] 10} 93RJ 19)JeW JUSLIND YIIM aul) ul JuswAed ases) e uoj Jojesado Ajred paiyy e 03 pasiyouely / pasijeulaixd

suLiayed
- suonndwnsse
awodu|

‘[opow 9s4n0d 3|0y 8T 03 paledwod 9,567
Aq paseaJoul spunod Aejd pue Aed 9|0y 6
‘[9pow 3s4n0d 3j0y 8T 03 patedwod 9,05
Aq paseaJdap (s993 a|gnop buisn) spunol
Aeid pue Aed ajoy 871 *(Slaquinu siaquiaw
9SIN0D 9|0y 6 A 9|0y 8T 404 MJewyduq
A1lsnpuj uo paseq) |opow 9|0y 8T

0} paledwod [ppow 3|0y 6 10} slaquiawl Jo
Jagwinu uj uoidnpal 98¢ - 4 / @ suondo

‘Buluunlal slaquiaw
3¢ 1)IM 31yaUaq utew *3°L 9 pue g suonndo
10} $994 uaaJs uo }ndn %0z pue slaquinu

diysiaquiaw Jualind uo 3ndn %o

‘[opow 9S4n0d 3|0y 8T 03 paliedwod 9,567
Aq paseaJoul spunod Aejd pue Aed 9|0y 6
‘[9pow 3s4n0d 3j0y 8T 03 paJedwod %,05
Aq paseaJdap (s993 a|gnop buisn) spunol
Aeid pue Aed ajoy 871 *(Slaquinu siaquiaw
9SIN0D 9|0y 6 A 9|0y 8T 404 MJewyduaq
A1lsnpui uo paseq) |opow 9|0y 81

0} paledwod [ppow 3|0y 6 10} Slaquiawl JO
Jagqwinu ui uoidnpal 986 - 4 / @ suondo

‘Buluunlal slaquiaw
3¢ 1)IM 31yaUaq ulew *3°L 9 pue g suonndo
10} $994 uaaJs uo }ndn %0g pue slaquinu

diysiaquiaw jualind uo ndn %06

‘[opow
95In0D 9|0y 8T 03 paJedwod 9,67

Aq paseaJoul spunod Aejd pue Aed ajoy
6 ‘[@pow 3s4nod 3j0y 8T 03 patedwod
%05 AQ paseatosp (s991 a|gnop

buisn) spunou Aeid pue Aed sjoy

8T ‘(s1aquinu siequiaw 3SI1n0d 3|0y

6 A 9|0y 8T 104 dJewyduaq Ansnpul

uo paseq) |apow 3joy 8T 03 paJtedwod
[9pow 3[0y 6 404 S1aqWiBW JO Jagquinu
ul uoinpal %8s - 4 / g suondo

‘Buluunlal slIaquiaw g 1)IM
11J9USq ulew *9°L O pue g suolidQ Joy
$994 U9aJ§ uo 3hdn %0z pue slaqunu

diysiaquiaw jualind uo 3ndn %o

1108 - suonndwnsse
awodu|

‘uoljels Jad siaquiaw G7 SL 98eIoAR
AJisnpu| “puewsp juaje] wnwixew

se siaquiaw [90‘} parjrauapt Auedwo)
aseqeie( aInsta ay3 Aq Suljapow
puewsap juaje] *(WAS uollels og) uoliels
Jad slaquiaw g U0 paseq siaquiaw 056

Auedwo) MaN - 321nosInQ

‘uoljels Jad siaquiaw G7 SL 98eIoAR
AJisnpu| "puewsp juaje] wnwixeuw

se siaquiaw 190°¢| patjlauapt Auedwo)
aseqele( a.nsta7 ay3 Aq Suljapow
puewsap juaje] *(WAS uoljels og) uoliels
Jad siaquiaw |7 uo paseq sJaquiaw 0G0°‘L

Auedwo) Suljsix3y - 321nosINO

‘uorjels

Jad siaquiaw 67 St 98elaAe Alysnpuj
‘pueWSP USR] WNWIXeW Se SIaquawW
190} payuapt Auedwo) aseqeleq
a4ns1a7 ay3 Aq Suljjopow puewsap
juale *(wAS uoliels og) uonyels uad
SJI9qWIBW 6| U0 paseq sJaquiaw 0G6

Ssaullj pue yjjesy
- suolydwnsse
awoou|

Page 93



7 9%8ed

sisAjeuy 3s17-340ys 7 98e3s - jesteaddy suorydQ 954n0) 4109 yriomwe |

*3)qedndde jou - | uolydp

*(s1eak | JoA0 pasiyiowre) Juodad SALDY SWIIAW €107
Aew woJj 93eWILISS 150D JO %06 Jod se pays siodaay uaals pue uollesLiL ‘s99] ‘siayung ‘susaus o) 0GE‘0€7F - 4 / @ suonndo

*(s1eak Q| J9A0 pasiyiowe) Juodad SALDY SWIIAW €107
Aew woJj 91eWIISS 350D Jad se pays s1odasy usals pue uolesSLL ‘s93] ‘siayung ‘Suaals 1oy papn)duL 00L‘09%3 - O / g suonndo

S150D
912/A23}1] 951n0D
1108 - suonndwnsse
aJnjipuadxy

*(pastyiowre) s3s0d Jojesado uLlyitm papnjdul Juswadedal jest)dh)

$1502 912A23)1)
juawdinba

- suonndwnsse
aJnjpuadxy

‘wnuue Jad anjeA Jejided Jo %1

S1S0D
9)2A2341) Sulp\ing
- suonydwnsse
aJnjipuadxy

*S1S0D Wea) Juswaeuew jeuol}lppe
pue A>uagunuod pying ‘yoddns
]eJ43uad a4nd04d 0} pasau 323)}34 0}
pasea.du] ‘awodul JO %G| 3e paulquiod

*$30BJJUO0D JR)LWILS 104 SPL] ISNJ) SULISIXD
UO paseg "aWOodUL JO %8 e paulquiod)

*951N02 })08 3y 10} sabieydal

1ea3Udd pa3dspNg G /10T S,11Uno)
3y uo paseg ‘wnuue Jad 000957

1joud

pue s3s0d JeJjua)
- suonydwnsse
aJnjpuadx]

*awodul Jo %}

*aWwoduL JO %7

*awioduL Jo %|

SuryayJew

pue SulSL1ISAPY
- suonndwnsse
aJnjipuadxy

"sutpiing

3y} Jo 3500 |eyided ay) 03 payul
uoljejndjed uoljen|eA a\gqealel YOA pue
Sa111L|1OR} JRJLWIS JsuleSe Supjewyduaq
UO paseq anjeA 9)geaje. pajewlls]
"Ja1124 Aloyepuew %08 Yim Ing

YANN 03 303[qns st 3sni] djqeirieyd ay |

Auedwo) MaN - 321nosInQ

"sulpiing

ay3 4o 3500 eyided ayy 03 payul
uolje(ndjed uoljenjeA a)qealel YOA pue
Sal11)Loe} JRLWIS JsuleSe Supewyduaq
UO paseq anjeA 9)geaje. pajewlls]
"Ja1124 Aloyepuew %08 Yim Ing

YANN 03 323[qns st 3snu] 3jqe3rieyd ay |

Auedwo) Suljsix3y - 321nosINO

"Butp)ing

3y3 Jo 3502 1ejided ay3 03 payul
uoljejndjed uoljenjeA a)qealel YOA pue
Salll|Loe} JRLWIS JsuleSe Supjewyduaq
Uuo paseq anjeA a1qeajeld pajewlisy
"4ANN 03 323[qns st J1ouno) ay|

9SNOH-U|

YANN
- suolydwnsse

aJnjipuadxy

Page 94



GZ 9%ed

A31)108) 3Y) 03Ul JUSWISAAUL Jeltded Juolidn 3yl JO 150D aY] SIPNIX3 |,

sisAjeuy 3s17-340ys 7 98e3s - jesteaddy suorydQ 954n0) 4109 yriomwe |

(L1¥°€€) (LI¥‘€¢) (G1£8€) (0gg‘e8) (0£8991) 1SN} MON 9
G67°€9 G67°€9 899°/S L€€ (95€°26) IsnJ3 Bunsixy )
(166°701) (166°201) (S1¥°L01) (01L9°%51) (z07'9¢2) asnoy-u| 9
(L2687 (Lz6°80) (¥86°0¢) (£¥689) (z8L°6€1) 1SNJ3 MON 4/a
871°GS 871°GS G9.°TS 919 (¥¥8°64) IsnJ3 Bunsixy i/ -
(€£1°9¥1) (€L1°9¥1) (661‘8¥1) (08€‘€81) (0z1282) asnoy-uj 4/4a w
(068°C¢) (068°€) (88£°L€) (€08‘¢8) (€¥€991) IsnJ3 MaN g %V
778°€9 778°¢€9 G61°8S 868 (67896) IsnJ3 Sunsix3 g
(¥90°z01) (¥90°z01) (888°901) (€80°%S1) (6£9°6€7) asnoy-uj g

| Jea) uonydp jJuswaseuey uorldp juswdo)araqg

Luonndo 1ad (31o119q) 7 snjdang Jenuuy - J12UN0) 3Y3 0] UINISY SNUIASY I9N - G’V dlqel

*(uor3das Ajiqepaole syl utyim pajelodiodul

SL UDLYM) 9SIN0D aY3 03Ul JUSWISaAUL Jejlded jeljiul ay3 4O 3S0D Y3 SOPN)IXS JSASMOY 35IN0D 33 JO uoljelado ay) WOl SAL9IS] PINOM
1L 3ey3 smduns ; Aed 03 paiinbal aq pinom 11ouno) ay3 eyl Apisqns ayy syuasaudad sty *(34odad siyy ul Jaje) uolydas Ajligep.Uoyje

Y3 Ulyum pajelodaodul ade | uolydQ Jo suoryedndwl 3502 39U 9y *S3s02 Suljetado Aue aAey J0U S0P YdLtym | uolzdp Sulpnidoxa)
MO013q G'{ 91qe] UL 1n0 13S aJe 19poW Juswageuew ydea YlM pautquod uolido juswdo)aAsap yoes Joj $1s0d sutiedado 3au Jeah G ay]

anuaAay - suoijedijdwy jeldueut 4

*suol1do jJuswaseuew 934y} ay3 Yum uotido juswdojaAap yoes Suluiquiod pue
uojdo jusawdojarap yoes 03 suolydwnsse aroqe ay) ulAjdde uo paseq Sul))opow Jeldueul) aY3 40 SHNSAI Y] INO $}OS M0]aq X3 AL

€Ly

(A4



97 98ed sisAjeuy 3s17-340ys 7 98e3s - jesteaddy suorydQ 954n0) 4109 yriomwe |
(866‘zLL) (£18°¢6l) (01Z961) (€11220) (6££°982) (1L£9°061) 1SNJ) MaN g
(08€‘v2) (660°26) (868°¥6) (£87°971) (6L°€02) (0£6°2G1L) | 3snuy Bunsixy !
(96€£°6€7) (686°£G2) (zv£092) (662°987) (£¥9°05¢) (£66°1L27) asnoy-y| !

s1ea) GZ - (350D) /

UuJIN}aYy Jenuuy d5eISAY

(Z1/91)
| Jeax

uondo
Juswaseuew

uondo
jJuswdojaraqg

«SOl311oe) AJe)jIoue 03Ul JUSW)SaAUL Jetded Jo 30D ay3 Sulpn)oul Jajje (31D1JSp) /Udniad jenuue 3au |12UNo) - 9 3)|qel

“JuswysaAul je3ided ay3 Joj SIS0 SULMOLIO( S,)1dUNo) 3y Ut SuLiojoe)

J33Je 3SIN0D )08 9y} WO} INdUL / 9AL3I3J 03 30adXa PINOM |1DUN0Y) 3Y3 Jey3 IS0 / UJIN3aJ Jenuue 3au ayj sjuasald ajqey ay “saseyd
uordnIIsuod pue Sutuueld ‘uswalndold o) sweljawl) d1isteal e saplaoid 11 ‘suoseas }J)o§ 03 uole)al ul eapt jou st a1ep Suiuado
SIYY ISILUM "910Z 4240120 °°L Jeak ay) Jo syjuowl 9 Ja1je suado Ajloe) Mau ay3y Jeyl pawnsse sty */L/9L0Z St 9' 2)qel UL | Jeap

*9]eWI13Sd 350D Juapn.d pue d13sijeal e st 3L Jey} 24Nsud 0} S3LDUSSULIUOD pue Ssjewlioude 1o}
uotstaoad sapn)dut 3| IsnJ3ug woly siokaAins Ajrauenb Aq pasedaud usaq sey asnoygnid mau ay3 Joj 350D jeiided pajewlyss wz3d ayl

*8ULMO.110(Q SLY) 195440 03 pasn g pnod jey) suitsnoy woly 3diadal Jejided Aue ul 103dej JoU S90pP pue AlLjLde) 93 0jul IS9AUL 0} Jelided
93U} SUIMO0.J0q 11OUN0?) 3y} UO paseq St SIY3 Jey3 9jou 03 Jueliodwlt st 3| “9°4 3)ge) ul A3L)igep.aojje Jo uoLedipul 1)eJdA0 ue aplaoid
0] pouiad Jeak Gz e JaA0 suoliedljdwl anuaAal a3 03 palidde usaq aAey UOLIDSS SLY3 UL JaLjed 1n0 13s suonydwnsse jelided ay

Ayjiqep.oyy - suonesydwy jeioueuty

*Juswasue.lle JudaWageurwW dSNOY-Ul JUa4Ind S1L JSpUN 112UN0)

ay3 Aq palindul 7 1o} pajunodde Aj3ualind Jou a4e YdLYM 4o e ‘wnuue 1ad safieydal 1ediuad Jo 000967 404 uoisiroad snid ‘9sinod
ay3 Jo Aj1enb ay) Sutroaduwit ojul (910Y g1 10 910y 6) Y09¥F PUR YOETZF USOMIS] JO JUSWISIAUL JelILUL Ue pue $3S0D 91242341 Juswdinba
pue 3uLp)ing Joj uolistaoid sapn)dul auniipuadxa guljelado ayi asnedaq pue Alinjew Sulydeald 91049q sieah ¢-7 aye] Ajjelauss

A3L10R) MAU B UL S]9A9) SWODdUL 9SNeJ3( St SIY] *JudWwaBeurew asnoy-ul S,]1ouno) ay3 J9pun S$3s0d AJ3ualind Ji ueyy pala)dwod

s1 JuawdolaAap Mau ay3 Jaije Jaysly aq 01 pajdaload Ajjenioe st 9sinod ayj sulyedado Jo 350D ay3 Jeyl a)gel ay3 wouy sieadde 3

*MO019(Q PaJIPLSUOD SL YDLYM ‘Sallloe) Alejloue Mau oy 03Ul JUSWISDAUL JeILded wz3d ayj Jo SuldueuL) 943 SpN)dUL J0U S0P SLY3

1ey) pajou 89 pinhoys I ysnoylje japow jusawageurw Styl J9pun 7 Jeak 1aije 11ouno?) ayj 03 snidins e uiniad ued suorydo juswdoiaAsap
ay3 Jo yoe3 ‘o1joj1iod J1Sy] Ul S9SIN0D JSYI0 WO} ,JUIed) SUOSSI), pue 9)edS JO SaLWOU0DS djejsuel) 03 Ajlige pue suoljetado 9sinod
108 UL 9S1149dX9 U19Y] USALS “3DRJIU0D JusWwaseurw ; 9sed) e Yysnody) Jojetado Sullsixa ue Aq uorjelado SulA)oAuL SsOY) aJe uolyisod
SNUSA3J JenUUR UR WOoJ} 1OUN0Y) ay3 03 Uiniad e 1340 Ajjelauajod pue uaAs yeauq eyl suolydo Ajuo ayj 1eyy G 91qe) Wouy Jea)d st |

8Ly

LIy

91’y

14

iy

Page 96



/7 98ed sisAjeuy 3s17-340ys 7 98e3s - jesteaddy suorydQ 954n0) 4109 yriomwe |

*35JN0D })05 9y} 03UL JUSWISIAULDI 104 WL F JSA0 Jo Suisnoy wouy 1diadal jeirded e ajelauss ued jeyy suorydo juswdojarsp

Kuo ay3 aJe Aay) se 4/@ suotadp sapn)dul Ajuo a)ges sty ‘padinbal juawisaaul jejided ayj Jo Japuiewal ay) pamollog pue saljlioey
Ae)oue ayj Sulpessdn Jo 3500 ay3 ojul Aj30a4ip jJuswdolaAsp SuLsnoy ay3 Wwod) paAladal jdiadal jeded ay3 Jo W F PalsaAuL J1dUN0D)
3Y3 J1 9SIN0D )OS 9Y) WO JNdUL / SALI3I 03 302dXd PINOM |1DUNO) 3Y3 Jey) 1S0D / UIN3AJ Jenuue 1au ay3 sjuasald Jea)laao a)qel ay |

*35IN0D })08 9Y1 01Ul PaIsaAUL Jeltded ay) Wod} S3S0d SULmo.I0q

3Y3 1954J0 03 SIY} WOJ) paules 3sa4aul aYy} asn pue JUSWISIAUL UO UINaJ jenuue ue aA19aJ 03 3dwaije ue ul ydiadal jejded

3U3 IS2AUL PINOD 31 JO 3SIN0D J10S Y3 0JUL JUSWIISSAUL 3Y3 JO 150D Jejided ayy puny Ajered Jo puny 03 Suisnoy ay) wody 1diadal
1eatded ayy asn pinod J1duNo) 3y "a1qepJojse 10afoid ay3 J0) ased ssaulsnq 1)elaA0 ayy ayew diay 03 suoldo Jualiayip aJe aisy L

*M0]3q |1e1ap alow

utL Suisnoy wouJy 3diadads jeyided ay3 JO JUSWISIAULDI 3Y3 JO suoljedljdwi pue o) suotydo ay3 passndsLp 9ABRY S “S9DIAISS pue s3dafoud
112Uno) Jay3o Joj 1diadal Jejided ayj a1ed0)jeal 03 Spuajul i ji Jo 1d1odau Jeiided sy 1S9AULDI |)IM L 4L ‘9IS Y3 0JUL JUSWISIAUL dY)
punj 031 (3t Jo Jued Jo) 1diadau Jeided ayj ash |)IM J1DUN0) Y3 4L MOUY 10U Op 9M 35e]S SLy] e se 91gel Syl wody | pue o ‘4 7 @ suonndo
J9pun pajelauss aq ued jey) suisnoy wody) 3diadal Jeyided ay) jo suorjedijdwl 8yl papn)dxa aARY S “Sulsnoy woly) 1diadal jeyded e
UL SULI01DR) INOYIIM ‘SWIBDILS SWODUL SNUSASI BIA JuswAedal Sulyaas pue saljljoey Adejjioue ayl 0lul 1S9AUL 03 padinbal spuny jejtded
33 SULM0..I0q |12UN0?) 3Y3 uo paseq suonydo ayj Jo Aue 1ioddns 0] ased ssaulsng aALlLsod 19U ou St 949Y3 1ey) Saleaisuowap a\qel ayl

150D SIY3 39540 03 Juawdojaaap Suisnoy ay) wodj 1diedal Jejided ay) Jo JuaWISaAUL
-aJ Aue uL 10328} J0U S30P ING SULMO.I0q YSnoJay) A3Lioe) a3 03Ul JUSWISIAUL Je3tded ay) Suldueut) 11DUNOY) 3y JO 350D aY) Sapn)du| ,

Vv

0’y

Page 97

6Lv

(0969£1) (z98°L61) (¥S2°002) (961922) (08£°062) (G8Z°¢61) ISNJ} MaN

(z8€‘8L) (#17196) (z06‘86) (ogg‘osL) (16£°207) (#81°GGL) | asnuy Bunsixy

(86€°6£7) (0£0292) (98€¥97) (zv€067) (589°PG€) (L09%T0) asnoy-y|

(9z5‘081) (GG8‘681) (£z8°061) (£8501L2) (1£6997) (L6€LLL) ISNJ} MaN

4/d

(zvs‘ve) (z6L001) (616°L0L) (86£9z1) (€1961) (££0P¥1) | 3snuy Bunsixy

4/4

(zZ£1°067) (£60°20¢) (zs0‘€0¢€) (£09°12¢) (r16°€L€) (G1Z0£2) asnoy-y|

sJeaj G7 - (350)) / (ZL/91) uondo

4/4d

uondo

uin3}ay jenuuy agelaAy | Jeap juswaSeueyw juawdojaraq




87 9%ed

sisAjeuy 3s17-340ys 7 98e3s - jesteaddy suorydQ 954n0) 4109 yriomwe |

JuswWisaAuL Jelided juouydn o5.4e] BY3 YSnoayl pasiwiulwl usaq aAeYy paitnbas juawisaul jeided

93 JO Jopulewsal ay3 Uo SIS0 SULMO04I0q 9y 9snedaq St Siy] *Sjuawaroiduwil 9s1n0d )08 ay3 Jo 350D jejided ay3 ojul Jusawdo)aAap
8uisnoy ayl wo.y paAladal 1diadal jeltded ayl JO WG | PAISSAUL 1DUNOY) Y3 4L (]apow juawadeurw 1snJl SULISIXS ay3 Japun) potiad
JeaA GZ B JSA0 12UN0) 3y} 03 sndJns jenuue dA131S0d JjewsS e uin3al 0} ULSaq pue USA Yealq pinod 3dafoud ay3 1eyl sMoys 8y a1qel  €Z'v

*sjuswaAosdwl 9s1nod 108 ay3 40 350D Jeirded ay3y ojul Juswdo)aAap Suisnoy ay3 WOy PaALaIaL WG| F SulIsaAuLal
J31je Suimodlog ysnoayy A3Loe) ayl ojuL JuswisaAul jerded ay3 Jo Japurewal ayy SuldueULy 11OUNOY) 3Y3 4O 10D Y3 SapNdU|

(s1L€1L8) (91£°68) (¥2L°06) (€1G0L1L) (€68°v91) (86%°0L1) 1SN} MaN 4/a
899y (¥59) (9181) (882°92) (5£5°C6) (681°£/) | 13sna Bunsix3y 4/d
(196061) (666°107) (8¥6207) (€£5°120) (9Lv°€L0) (zzes9l) asnoy-uj 4/a

s1eaj Gz - (3s0D) /

uIn3}ay jenuuy a8elaAy

G Jeaj

p Jeap

€ Jeajp

uondo
jJuswaseuew

uondo
jJuswdojaraqg

«S9131|10ey Auejjidoue ay3 ojul 3diadad jejided wG* L JO JUSWISIAULS 133je (ILD19P) / UINJDJ Jenuue 3au |1dUNO) - 8°f djqel

*11ouno?) aY3 03 WINjaJ Jenuue 3au aARlLsod e sapiaoad 3oaloud
3y3 eyl 24nsua 0] AJ3USLDLLINS SIS0D SULMOII0Q SY3 9INPaJ ||IM SLYI J9YIdUYM AJL1IUSPL 03 11OUNOD 9y} WO} JudwlsaAuL 1diadal jejided
W' |3 B UO paseq Sul))opow awes ay3 3N0 paLlied SARY 9M §'f 91qe) U] "3)gep.ojje 150D jejided sy Jo Japulewsal ayj Joj SULmo.ioq
3Y3] 9yew 01 J9pJOo UL JUdWISSAUL JeILded ysnoua a5.ue) e jou st 109loud ay3 ojul W F SULISIAUL UDAD Jey] sMoys AjJea)d /¢ a1qel  77°v

*syuswaAoldwi 9s1nod 108 ay3 40 350D jeirded ay3 ojul Juswdo)aAsp Suilsnoy ay3 WOy PaALaIaL W|J SulISaAULDl
J31je Sumodlog ysnoayy A3LLoe) ayl ojuL JuswisaAul jerded ay3 Jo Japurewal ayy SuldueULy 11OUNOY) 3Y3 40 1S0D Y3 SapNdU|

(68€‘vLL) (960°€Z1) (160°vZ1) (0£8‘st L) (6£7°861) (96£T€1) ISNJ} MaN 4/a
(zo¥‘82) (£€0'¥€) (+81°6¢) (5¥9°64) (1z6‘sz1) (z8¥°66) | 3Isna3 Bunsix3 4/d
(L£0'vZ2) (reg‘aed) (91£°9€2) (068%57) (zz890¢) (0z9°sgl) asnoy-uj 4/a

si1eaj Gz - (3s0D) /

UuJIN}aY Jenuuy 95eISAY

€ Jeajp

(Z1/91)
| Jeaj

uondo
Juswageuey

uondo
jJuswdojaraqg

«S9131|10e) Auejjioue ay3 ojul 3diadal jejided w3 JO JUSWISIAULAL 1334k (310149P) / UIN3ad jenuue 3ad |1ouno) - /'y d)qel

Page 98



67 95ed sisAjeuy 3s17-340ys 7 98e3s - jesteaddy suorydQ 954n0) 4109 yriomwe |

*SpJeMuUO
(£1/9107) | JeaA wouy 3S949]uUl SulULeS 1Jels pue PalsaAuLal 94 )M YdLlym JuswAed wns dwny suo ul 1diadau jejided ay) aALDal
1ILM 112UNo0Y) 3Y3 Jeyl awnsse Juawdo)aAap 10} pue) Jo 3es ay3 Joj JuswAed jeirded e SulAladal 11DUNOY) 3yl SA10AUL Jeyd suolydo )1y

‘wnuue Jad %z jo a1el

1S2493UL Ue 1k P3)SaAUL 3] |)IM paAladal 3diadal Jejided Aue jo Junowe 11ny Y3 Jey) pawnsse aAey am uostiedwod siyj jo sasodind ay)
104 *M013q 0] 9]qe3 UL Ino 33s st sidiadal jeided asay) SulISaAUL WO UIN1ad 3y} Uo paseq Ajliqep.oyje pasiaal ay] ‘suorydo ayj Jo
A311gep.oyse ay) 03 9INQLIFUOD pue ISa4a3uUL UIea pinod ey sidiadal jeided ajelsausas op (] pue o ‘4 ‘g) suorydo Jaylo ay3 ‘I9ASMOH
‘poriad Jeak Gz ay3 JaAo uotido S)geplojje Ue se paluNodSLp g UeD 0S 1dUno?) 3y} Joj 1diodal jejided e ajelauas Jou saop g uonndo

*35IN0D )08 aY) 03Ul paIsaAuL Jeitded Sy} WOl S3S0D SULMO0.I0] SY) 195}40
03 SIY} WOJ} paules 1sa1ajul Y3 asn pue JUSWISIAUL UO UINIaJ Jenuue ue aAL2a4 03 3dwialje ue ul Suisnoy ay3 woly paAtadal 1diadal
1e1ided ay3 SulIsaAuULal J1UNOY) U) SA)0AUL PINOM 3)qep.ojje 30afoad ayy J0) ased SSaULSN( 1eJ9A0 3y} ayew 03 uolido aAljeula)je uy

*919YMaS)9 PaIsSaAULdI 9q PIN0D Jey) JuswdolaAap Suisnoy ay3 wod) 1diadal jejided Jeulslio syl wodj Sululewal weg 3o

Jayjoue 3g pINoM aJ43Y3} pue Apisqns anuaAaJ WJa}-5uU0) e a4tnbal jou pjnom 9s51n0d ay3 Jeys st 303foad ayy yim Sutpaadoud 1oy ased
3y ‘pouiad Jeak gz e 19A0 })9sit Jo) Aed 01 Ajaytjun st 109l0ud JuawIsaAUL 9SIN0D 108 9yl 0S WiZF JO uoLdal ay) Ul 9q 01 palewWLISd

SL palinbau juawsaAul jejided juoaidn JeulSLIO SY3 ‘U9ASMOH *WG* 13D JO UIN}ad |B10] e 0] s9jenba sieak gz ayj Joj wnuue Jad

%0932 SuLdeISAR 9SIN0D 93 WO} UIN]al e SULALDIAI Jey) PaloU 9q P)Noys 3| ‘poLiad Jeak GZ ay3 JoA0 wnuue Jad )093 ©d4LD JO ]1ouUno?)
ay3 03 snidins jenuue ue uinlal pjnom 3d3foad ayj os (S3S0d SULMOJI0g BY] JNdUL JoU SNy} pue) padinbau jelided ayy jo Aue mouloq 03}
paau jou pnom 11 323[0.ad 951n0d 108 aY3 Jo 350D jeiided )Ny 3yl puny 03 Suisnoy ay3 woJy 3diadas jejtded ayy pastian 11dunod) ayy 4|

*sjuswaAoldwl 95In0d 1105 aY) 03Ul PaIsaAuL Jeitded ay) UO 1S2493UL JO
$sO] Aue Jo Junodde aye) J0U S30( ‘padinbal st §ulmo.loq ou se JuswisaAul Jeirded ay) SuldueUL) 1IDUNOY) SY) JO4 3S0D 043Z SapN)dU| ,

1A 4

LTV

P TA 4

TAN 4

(680°12)

(L2680

(966°627)

(992°61)

(S91L¢01)

(168°69)

1SNJ3] MaN

4/d

€€6°6S

871‘GS

LY6°€S

961 ‘6T

(6¥8°9¢)

(Zz66%)

IsnJy SulIsixy

4/d

(969°G€E1)

sJea\ GZ - (3s0D) /

UJIN}aY Jenuuy d5eISAY

(€L1°9%1)

(981L°L¥L)

(682°G91)

€ Jeajp

(0S2°£12)

7 Jeap

(090°921)

(Z1/91)
| Jeaj

9SNOoY-uj

uondo
jJuswaseuew

4/d

uondo
jJuswdojaraqg

LJd1aoau jejided wouy papuny salloe) Auejjioue Jo 3s0d |jn4 Sutwinsse (HUD1SP) / UINIdJ Jenuue 33U |1DUNO) - ¢°f d)qel

"M0]3q 6t 9)ge] UL 3N0 13S Se |1ouno) ay3 03 uinial snydins jenuue aAlisod e moys 03 ul§aq pinom 32afoud ayy ‘spuny
Aue mo.10q 0} paau jou pip pue Suisnoy ay} wo.j 3diodal jeytded ayy Suisn 32afoud ay3 Jo 3500 Jejided )Ny 8yl papuny |1DUNO) Y3 §|  $T'd

Page 99



0€ 9%ed

sisAjeuy 3s17-340ys 7 98e3s - jesteaddy suorydQ 954n0) 4109 yriomwe |

‘0 uo1ldp Jo Aliqepuole ayy uo 1oedult Jolew e aAey 031 YSNoua JuedLiLUSLS Jou

st 9 uoydp Jopun padolaAap 9q PINO Jey) pue] aY3 JO aNjeA 3y *(SJ03de} JO Jaquinu e uo spuadap pue ajes jo jutod ay) e Jed)d aq

Ajuo 1im 1diadau jeatded jeuly 9y “4odad SAQ SY3 WO S9IRWIISS SWSYIS Jeuoliou uo paseq) sasodind jusawidoaAap Joy ¢ JU0l) Y3

ueY} )9A3)] J9)R3IS B 1B panjeA uad(q sey pue) 4 ¥oeq, ay3 asnedaq @ uotidQ ueyl J1dunod) ay3 03 uinlal 191319q A)3yshs e saplroad

4 uonndp *31d19p Ul Yroq ate pouiad Jeak Gz 9yl JO S1eaA 0M] 1SiL) 9y ysnoyne ‘paisaAutal sem idiadad jejided ayi 4L wnuue Jad
%0832 JO |1oun0?) 3Y3 03 UIN3IaJ d5eISAR UR 9plAaoad pInNod (3shJl SulIsixa ue ysnouyy pajesado) 4 pue g suonndQ eyl smoys a)qel ay | 0S¥

wnuue Jad %z Jo a3ed 3$aJ93UL Ue Je SuLsnoy ay3 WoJ) PaALadal

1d1ada. Jejided ayy SulysaAutal Ing Sutmollog ysnodyy A3Loe) ayl ojul JuswisaAul jerded ayj SuldueuLy 11OUNOYD) Y3 4O ISOD Y3 SapNdU| ,

668 61€ 719667 918687 €€1v8T 79587 001°€LT V/N _
(rSL‘0LL) (osi‘z61) (8¥6‘v61) (+56°070) (082°587) (G8z‘88l) IsnJ3 MaN )
(9£6°LL) (z€L06) (965°€6) (8z1g7)) (169200 (#81°0GL) | 3IsnJy Bulisix3 9
(z66T€7) (819°957) (080°652) (ov1‘687) (586°6¥€) (£09‘617) asnoy-u| 9
(60€°7) (887°6¢) (€1z'ey) (#989) (6¥0°€TL) (167°8¢) ISNJ3 MON E
vL9°€8 VL6V G69°‘GY 19€‘g1 (LEL‘09) (£26%) | 3Isn1y Busixy E
(59.°0%) (+88°8L) (+6£28) (o¥Z‘v0l) (886‘851) (€6LS) asnoy-uj E
(€6L°9) (££0°¥) (Lz6°9) (505‘69) (619°9Z1) (L6L‘L¥) IsnJ3 MaN ¢
061°6L 686G 086°LY 0ZLY1 (L0E‘vS) (£2°8) | 3snay Bunsix3 a
(6¥Z ) (2£9°T8) (60598) (z88°£01) (866°791) (€67°89) asnoy-uj a

siea\ GZ - (3s0D) /

UJN}aY |enuuy 98eIdAY

(3) G 1eap

(3) ¥ 1eap

(3) € Jeap

(3) T Jeap

(3) 1 Jeap

uondo
Juswageuey

uondo
jJuswdojaraqg

Page 100

«1d1929Yy jejtde) Jo JuawlsaAuULdy UO paseq |1duno?) aY3 104 (350)) / UINIdY Jenuuy pasiAdy - 0L v dlqel

*M0]3q 3NO 135 SL
SuLM0110q aY) 40 350D ay) 395440 03 1diadal Jeaded ayy WO IS213UL 3Y) JUNOdJR O3UL Sutyey suotido ayj Joj AJLjiqeplosje pasiAal 8yl  6Z'v



4.31  Option | which involves disposing of the whole course is clearly the most financially
advantageous for the Council as it has a greater land value and does not involve any
borrowing costs for investment or an on-going revenue responsibility for the course. It should
be noted that no sale, security or demolition costs have been factored into the assessment
for Option I. It is assumed that the course will be sold during the 2015/16 financial year and
all ongoing site costs will be the responsibility of the developer.

Tamworth Golf Course Options Appraisal - Stage 2 Short-Listpaygse 101 Page 31



5. Summary and Conclusions

Summary

5.1 FMG was commissioned by the Council to carry out a needs assessment and options appraisal
for the future of Tamworth Golf Course with the intention of helping to identify the most
suitable option for the future long-term direction of the golf course.

5.2 The first stage of our work involved a Needs Assessment which defined the outcomes
required from the project and determined a long list of options for the future delivery of the
golf course. This long-list was then evaluated against the project outcomes which resulted in
a shortlist comprising of the options listed in table 5.1.

Table 5.1 - Short-listed Options

Option High-Level Description

Retention of 18-hole golf course, plus development of ancillary provision (clubhouse

B / health & fitness gym / complimentary leisure facilities).

Disposal of front 9 holes for development, with retention of back 9 holes plus
D development of ancillary provision using part of any capital receipt (clubhouse /
health & fitness gym / complimentary leisure facilities).

Disposal of back 9 holes for development, with retention of front 9 holes plus
F development of ancillary provision using part of any capital receipt (clubhouse /
health & fitness gym / complimentary leisure facilities).

Part disposal of site, retention of 18-hole golf course through remodelling of holes
to reduce land-take.

Complete disposal of entire site to generate capital receipt to be utilised for wider
strategic aims.

5.3 These options have been modelled to identify the overall affordability of each option when
combined with the following management options:

e Option 1 - Continued in-house management of the golf course;

e Option 2 - Outsourced management of the golf course via a lease / management
contract;

e Option 3 - set up of a local social enterprise management vehicle (Company Limited by
Guarantee / Charitable Incorporated Organisation / Community Interest Company).

Tamworth Golf Course Options Appraisal - Stage 2 Shopatgrélyfoz Page 32



5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

4.32

From the revenue modelling carried out it is clear that the only options that break even and
potentially offer a return to the Council are those involving operation by an external existing
operator through a long lease / management contract. Each of the development options has
the potential to return a surplus to the Council after year 2 under this management model
from a revenue perspective, however when including the financing of the c.£2m capital
investment required into the new ancillary facilities, it becomes clear that only the options
that can generate a significant capital receipt (D/F/I) are viable from a net cost position.

This is illustrated by table 5.2 where none of the options are affordable without a capital
receipt.

Table 5.2 - Affordability per Option Excluding Capital Receipts

Development Option Management Option Average Annual Affordability - 25 Years

B In-house (235,396)
B Existing trust (74,380)
B New trust (172,558)
D/F In-house (290,172)
D/F Existing trust (94,542)
D/F New trust (180,526)
G In-house (239,398)
G Existing trust (78,382)
G New trust (176,560)

Option B can be ruled out as it does not generate a capital receipt from housing to help fund
the investment into the golf course. To make the project affordable, the Council could invest
some of the capital receipt received from the housing development to fund the capital
investment into the golf course facilities. Options D / F are the only viable options for this as
Option G does not provide a significant enough capital receipt.

The report has concluded that the Council would need to reinvest c£1.5m of the capital
receipt received into the capital cost of the golf course improvements under Options D / F
(therefore minimising the need to borrow and the associated borrowing costs) in order to
receive a positive average annual return from the golf course.

If the Council utilised the capital receipt from the housing to fund the full capital cost of the
golf course project it would not need to borrow any of the capital required (and thus not
incur the borrowing costs) so the project would return an annual surplus to the Council of
circa £60k per annum however this would only generate a return of c£1.5m per annum over a
25 year period when compared to the original upfront capital investment of over £2m.

Tamworth Golf Course Options Appraisal - Stage 2 Short-Listpa@e 10 3 Page 33



5.8 An alternative option is to reinvest the capital receipt from the housing development. If the
capital receipts generated were to be reinvested at an interest rate of 2% per annum then
Options D and F would become affordable. Examining the return on investment of any capital
receipt received also demonstrates the positive net position of Option I.

5.9 The revised affordability for the options, taking into account the interest from the capital
receipt to offset the cost of the borrowing is set out in table 5.3 below.

Table 5.3 - Revised Affordability Based on Reinvestment of Capital Receipt

Development Option Management Option Average Annual Affordability - 25 Years

D In-house (45,249)
D Existing trust 79,190
D New trust (6,793)
F In-house (40,765)
F Existing trust 83,674
F New trust (2,309)
G In-house (232,992)
G Existing trust (71,976)
G New trust (170,154)
I N/A 349,899

5.10 The table shows that Options D and F (operated through an existing trust) could provide an
average return to the Council of c£80k per annum if the capital receipt was reinvested,
although the first two years of the 25 year period are both in deficit. Option F provides a
slightly better return to the Council than Option D because the ‘back 9’ land has been valued
at a greater level than the front 9 for development purposes (based on notional scheme
estimates from the DVS report. The final capital receipt will only be clear at the point of
sale and depends on a number of factors). Options D and F both do not start generating a
return for the Council until year 3 (2018/19), however, there may be an opportunity to agree
a solution to this whereby the operator cashflows early year deficits in return for lower
future payments to the Council in later years.

5.11  The value of the land that could be developed under Option G is not significant enough to
have a major impact on the affordability of that Option.

5.12  Option I, which involves disposing of the whole course, is clearly the most financially
advantageous for the Council as it has a greater land value and does not involve any
borrowing costs for investment or on-going revenue responsibilities for the course. This
Option generates a return to the Council from 2015/16 as it removes the cost of operating
the course and generates interest immediately.

Tamworth Golf Course Options Appraisal - Stage 2 Shopatglélyf O 4 Page 34



Conclusions

5.13  Whilst it is clear from a financial position what the most advantageous option is for the
Council, this needs to be considered against the strategic and risk implications as set out in
Section 3 of this report. These include some key issues for the Council such as:

e |t is likely that Options | and D / F would be extremely unpopular with members of the
golf course and local residents;

e The case will need to be proved that there is no longer a strategic need for the golf
course otherwise Sport England are likely to object to any solution that involves loss of
provision;

e Converting to a 9 hole course could limit the market interest from operators, as soft
market testing has revealed that this is not a preferred model and there may be likely to
be less interest from operators;

e There is a clear need for housing in the Borough that remains to be solved. The decision
on which option to implement needs to take account of the latest position on other
potential housing development sites in Tamworth to inform whether the golf course is an
important strategic housing location.

5.14 In summary, given the financial constraints there are two primary options:

e Options D / F - sell half of the course for housing and provide a 9 hole golf course, in line
England Golf’s views on future municipal provision. Use a portion of the capital receipt
or the interest from the reinvestment of the capital receipt to help fund the upfront
investment required into the course. Outsource the management of the 9 hole course to
an existing operator (charitable trust). This has the advantages of continuing to provide a
golf course in Tamworth, providing additional housing land and providing an additional
capital receipt for reinvestment into other strategic priorities, thus balancing the raft of
competing pressures on the Council. However, a clear risk with this option is that the
operator of the 9 hole course is not successful and the Council has to again provide
revenue funding to support the course in the long-term, particularly given the limited
market appetite for 9-hole provision.

e Option | - sell the entire course for housing. Reinvest some of the capital receipt into
increasing participation and improving facilities, services and providing alternative open
spaces within the Borough. This will remove the risk of the Council having any long-term
revenue responsibility for the site and will generate significant capital funds for the
Council. The primary risks with this option are from resident objections, achieving
planning permission and damage to the Council’s reputation as the Borough will no
longer be providing a golf course, albeit that ring-fencing of part of the capital receipt
generated could be used to invest in alternative sport and leisure facilities, in line with
the wider sport and leisure needs in the Borough.

Tamworth Golf Course Options Appraisal - Stage 2 Short-Listpaygse 105 Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 106



Fiel 17 Doveridge 0 a the Hill A516 2 b 3 A 2 Castle
= Draycott
= Blounts | ") Sudbiry Hall \SApYY__ 2, Foston DN RN\ © g é@'\ Vi
8 05)] Green ‘—\\ @ @ ‘3 Yvaumaslon r stenson J/ (> Thulston 09,%"
h b Marchmglon Eiwall  Work§ /Fields)? A6 KN @
Scropton Findern [? Chellaston 075 Shardlow
P\( f\i//’\@ 5507 oo Harston[{Hilton 3 y. 0'2- Asion. 6
Grlndl;y\}]' (\ ;\ n Dove © S % on- Trent AS0
2 %gsloneN\"/\* ‘l‘dvarm‘lqgl S Dra]g:on E/~\J Rolleston Eqgginton A5'1"5°2" Weston- 55
00! the Cl & Trer
Th!Blvﬂ'e/ - & © ayH bTUtb“;Y g on'Dove S A28 Willington\,_Z., Barrow Swarkest:r:!o"sma; o ooE L&‘
anbur,
> i N o upon Trent 1 oo 03“3\ Caslle //) He
y b Donington
Hanbury EAN s 4 @.@\“Q\ /Repton % " Fingety N o ex_xsasfx:‘
P 7 Newborough Woodend> é‘@ Horninglow Newton Wilton Melbourne ﬂﬂ & M
Bromey 85234 N_e- ﬁ\ﬂé\o 06.d ) Solney ekl A514) &4 .v. Isley 5
Blitftield == = C; A Fo=rseRs’t pE 3 Foremark - Tickna 3 ﬁWl Walton
Reseryoir o) {3 £=g 5073 D U D, osemvainy e i J A Diseworth /S
Admastan 2 H ¢ B 7 PO inshil L\ o, aur Breedon D =
o =\ oar D ngemore S o ety & Harold Resr. e Hill Tonge
2 Cros} i 2 270 ) iﬁ Aot ) o SA
7 ~ = 6
D Stapenhil Hartshorne,
) Tatenhil :
\ @[\ 2 dle — DA : a &2 Calky‘(’ ( o Beldy ©)
Colton aciey S V/ Stanton ‘mt:“'\‘
! orthingtol
Q Blithbury E““ DunstalIJ 4 L 8;7353° DUNCOTE HarONTall R -V
Hamstall Marrey Vax 5016 %\{g W Ad44 = > Ia/Smlsby t Newlﬁ) =X SHEP
IMITY 2T — \
il HI" \ mses @ﬁ QT = Castle °(£4/ 4 % \%SEEBY. ’%Qg g
P' e, Barton-under- Trer 3 \DE-LA- 9528
Power Sta Ridwiare Needwo S/ %E{lga_ldweu 2\ 6 UCH/ Coleon ()7 Gier \y Thiygstone’
o Mavesyn %\\\ X ﬁf( I'e Isilack'ordby i @ 55 _“
A Ridware N5 VA g
King’s 0) e A -
Teroton Handsale Bm?n g ave = Rosliston gy Linton “&2 5 Castle 5wanninglon DQZ ;}:\\
6 Upper Armitage )/ - Coton S Woira - PAO
oo JNC N Ayt Alrewas in the Short ‘Iﬂl\\ p,,;k.,,g,., :ﬁ( |171
Longgfn\Yl~ Fradiey Elms < Rath EC. Do"m GL A 28
2 Cas Longdon © Fra"dleylré’ Croxal / Lullmglnn % Oaklhorpe © Raven e ‘
Islade ¢ g; Green P70 fioth ‘/B 75
242 3 -/South Edm etherseal Strettol “ & Normal n ]
Apr annicek Wood hirst mnéargs » “en'le Ie Heath BT
AL 4
worth gﬁr} Farewell ros\s\ v \ N lease F‘Ie‘ld eaSham ot s
Ie'l:ury e\:’w Sifchorley m El Hounien ( /Chil ‘Appleby eather \ istozn
ae N 2 Streethay\/ L) Harlaston Clifton Ibstock
90 Cha\s?TErraE < g}- [l el b Campville Qjagna ﬁ Swhpstone Sta
7 \_/% ~ 0 Mand Servmes & un
t B NTWOOD 7% D & Thorpe th 5 Snarestone B 4 82'%’) Bar
L  Chasetgun =1, (85 Constantine Newton K7\ ANgleby \Newton v )
(9 3 d[(" 7 | Hammerwich: B Rda Is! db; Pai rgoland % Bagworth
0) NU A6 / (N Hademore / = g 4 132 Norton-Juxta \Odsm < 56’5
X e Baracks S Wigginton 2 Seckmgton Tiycross Bart ailstone
i Toif/\\ S A Shackstong Ylnalhznaea
CETOCERVMIY SRS A5 % < smm Austrey’ M/ et W Barleston
OWNHILL'S Chestiriicid oll G 27 Cong
lopwas’ Hl K Twycro:
layhanger'(]/Q ire (./) : el 151f : OR efliebrog ﬁ\\lvecole A Ofton Bilstone§}/ & Zanh Osbaston 6.
'Ig . A 2k V@nual Shens e . Amington ?-F—"W( fton 96-0"'"'9 N /] Ad44 S o Q\n A447 0. N2
Voo o 7 4 Vi) SR I Y4 MarkefiBosworth g
P A5127) kTol N 5 &) Q = SN/
HESS snill‘i‘er A452 { s - Boneh }\ & @D lesworth We!l'?A ) L84 Vjrd
X Li ay K 8 A4 - iinecote Q s;:;ﬁ’ B585 R & Cadgby P
ushall “Asf Watlprd " > o CTAV
e Ir:; \ caniell, @ Drayton| Gatés Mvorih B5000 ¢ Sheepy bson, 1485
{ ® Hall Bassett 4 Senvices(Dordon Parva Shenton Y204 Sutton
XY T Dosthill 5 2
& © Grendon endon Ratcliffe
. ? ; < p LeeMughley ¥\ Ngieton— (A209 1 ¢ Comifion Y Caley Upton 4] [Stapteton éE‘?
{ I
e 0od (d ATHERSTQNE! 6
= 7151 (0 Stgetl 7 A446) Middleton, = e DX 1 = N\A‘*v oke, inghin
d\ 227 e S A Hall Abbiey RO Withegy ding = Barwell J—
E Sutton e T 10 Kingsbury, Baxterley 72> \53'"“ oy e "\;ﬁ
A0S AT SSUTT 6 o~ ; /c% Mancafer Higham on thgWHill E
= 1LUR o irley | —JoRidge” 2 W P>
: heasey. /] FIEL = Ad Uags QY bui CaldfCote A Sﬁfrfk
reat Barr, KingstarNjin & Birchley Heath g f ‘
A 7 7| LN J (N § Har{%hlll A 3
O\ Hamsteal C i \\ 9 Marston ethery % \ (A Weddington 9)
A453) hor; J| urdworth e Whnacro %&'\ Church End, Gall 5 Jaﬁ\rb”age
A \ : o 1 THaggriIl’ o (s ©)
R ; Erdin sMinworth 22N qqme ,\A,,g? z ATO oo/ 7
RO Bart WA Churchg Whitacre) olg Aney 4 SHinglolRy =
Graven I T: 2 Water End_) \/(/:/ ” [ g urton. ¢
6 an 2 Whil
Handgworth (2 %’,H Hil £ <Casﬂe 4; 8 Q)[x\ 5 Shustok Détt % Bermuda hit astifgs,
—aston 2e?{Bromwich 1 Green @ Astley 7~
M3 3 Sal.En! ce few Arley. Arbury S J7g &y Heath
g 5 5 N S i S }
\ 3 Cole: 7 ’Z&) Vg \sz, il amcote \"E;rwo LN
ICK i &/ C0E SAdi0 X % (NI Capston
Ao ile j?li mm’/"‘tjf:@_@ { Eedwor?r;’.g. 5 B 69 Magn:
) ; B i Cr R/‘K% & ervu:es ! ,‘SJ P S 115 /AR
Marston' = Keresley o Bulkington ©
; S Green[ L 3 =C / E)‘( all : ®
=3 Chapel Green—y§__1 0 =28 Newlands 3
A8 Yardley, B ST, ; jnn K/ ‘K;ﬂ S HawkeSoury JP5 %@wmuybr T~
AA Shel g a bitio K Corley Corley % ) Shilton é”
it dgbaston ) cocks 9 S S Moor 8D\ Longford nacle K <
[Veoley [ A= mf M oo Birmini ls \ eresley. £
astle SR EZ Moseley oitol Imornanunal = 2 S End & &7/
Selly, TN Alrporl Elmdnn Ml — \ 7 | I Ansty 2 .
p , ps 7 X% B Foléshill © o
ak S o I pnngﬁol o< Meriden S
St King's NRUU=50 o Blckenhlll m‘m Allesley, & \c ul d 6
(O Heath a i I/ (% IS rave Stretion
Green”p; /Y. * Hampt t Pickford r P&R rslm mwmﬁc
e Heath n Arden Green Eas & 2 undev Fosse
ournville O > L Four . a A, AJZJ0 A bev Ease
A Klngs r? ifley. S| Easlcot AR @ ol 0 y
i Ml
Nor/lhjlel M Norion 'S Y, A2 L Borkswall ST ﬁ-"I': ,_’Brmklow
A4 Mapor{9 A Copt =< P Binl
A ) G’”" S eath lBaIsa“ Cﬁ T"e Hill on, A4082 Q\ 00
ISP Monkspath; P Common QY At <. Binley
S EII)‘\“°"YW°°" Wh-ﬂock‘s A Kno TN < Willenhall
) fl NN S S Sivicnall/ N ¢
Hopwood s /? entley, <\ Wodtwood Heath & 4 A46 SURX
= 3 K - ~—/
m_ey”\% 'mA\ Wythall D'c"e“s Q‘cn S SOR Fee NN VT RONANCEORT, w PO
Weameloak p I &Jeen °Q(Vorrldge It End Meer Burton.Green 7\ Baginto ton o on-on; o2 Wolston
NeHill S 7 > S End. 3 A46 [ Al unsmore, 7 W
© Crown copyright and database rights 2014
L I I Ordnance Survey 100018267
ocal Golf Courses Al .ME».
T ‘ froeer)) b
Bl 0-20 Minutes amuworin=—_
. Borough Council <A/l
B 20-25 Minutes
B Other Local Golf Courses Page 107 ’Date: 09:01:14 H Scale: 1:250000 ‘




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 108



CABINET Agenda ltem 12

THURSDAY, 23 JANUARY 2014

REPORT OF THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR ECONOMY AND EDUCTION

HIGH SPEED RAIL 2 (HS2) PHASE TWO: RESPONSE TO THE PHASE TWO ROUTE
CONSULTATION

EXEMPT INFORMATION
Non Confidential

PURPOSE

To brief the Cabinet on the Governments High Speed Rail 2 proposals and the potential
impacts for Tamworth and to seek Cabinets views on the principle of the proposal.

To agree a response to the High Speed Rail 2 (HS2) Phase 2 route consultation

RECOMMENDATIONS
1) Cabinet confirms the Council’s position on the principle of HS2.

2) Cabinet recommends that no response to the Hybrid Bill for Phase 1 will be made
by the Borough Council to the Government and that the Head of Planning and
Regeneration is authorised to engage with the Greater Birmingham and Solihull Local
Enterprise Partnership and Staffordshire County Council as they prepare their
response to advise them of the Borough Councils position as set out in this report.

3) Cabinet approves the proposed response to the HS2 Phase 2 consultation as
outlined in report for submission to the Government.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

In January 2009, the Government established High Speed Two Ltd (HS2 Ltd) to consider the
options and feasibility of a new high speed rail network in Britain, starting with a costed and
deliverable proposal for a new line from London to Birmingham. The drivers behind the work
were the recognition of capacity issues on the existing rail network, particularly the West
Coast mainline, the need to address carbon reduction issues associated with short distance
air travel and a desire to stimulate growth outside of the south east.

On the 28" February 2011, the Government published its preferred route for High Speed
Two (HS2) as a first step in creating a national HSR network, and launched a national
consultation. In January 2012 the Secretary of State for Transport announced the route of
Phase One of HS2 linking London to Birmingham. Phase One of HS2 meets the West Coast
Main Line (WCML) near to Handsacre in Lichfield.

On 28th January 2013 the Secretary of State for Transport, Patrick McLoughlin, announced
the initial preferred route for Phase Two of HS2. If approved the route will extend the high
speed line from Birmingham to Manchester and Leeds, with connections on to the West and
East Coast Main Lines to serve the rest of the North of England and Scotland. Intermediate
HS2 stations would be built at Manchester Airport, Sheffield Meadowhall and an East
Midlands Hub at Toton. The proposed Phase Two route would be integrated into the existing

Page 109



network, allowing trains to serve destinations such as Crewe and Liverpool. The West
Midlands to Leeds route passes through a section (approximately 100m) of Tamworth
Borough and continues in close proximity to the Borough boundary as it passes through
north Warwickshire. The consultation on HS2 Ltd.’s proposed routes for Phase Two of HS2
was launched on 17 July 2013 and closes on 31 January 2014. A proposed response to the
consultation questions is outlined in the ‘Background Information’ section of this report.

On 19 November 2013 the House of Lords approved the High Speed Rail (Preparation) Bill,
and the so-called Hybrid Bill was deposited on 25 November 2013 for Phase One of HS2
between London and the West Midlands, which will secure the powers to construct and
maintain Phase One. The Environment Statement that accompanies the Bill explains in detail
the scheme proposals, the impacts of the project on the environment along the route and the
steps taken to mitigate them is out for consultation and provides the opportunity to comment
on matters such as links to HS1. The Hybrid Bill offers the only opportunity for local
authorities, local communities and other interested parties to challenge the Government’s
proposals and seek to have changes made. This process is known as Petitioning which
involves a formal notice being made by a party such as the Borough Council wishing to make
a case to Parliament and then subject to that wish being acceded to by Parliament,
presenting that case. It is considered that given that the Hybrid Bill for Phase 1 does not
involve any land within Tamworth, and it is expected that other Authorities such as
Staffordshire County Council are likely to be Petitioning, it would not be a good use of
resources for the Borough Council to separately Petition.

There are many groups, organisations and individuals who are supportive of the principle of
HS2 and the proposed route. There are also many who are opposed to the proposal. There

is a growing body of research, studies and reports that aim to support the arguments for and
against.

Given Tamworth’s geographical location and proximity to both the station proposed in
Birmingham City Centre and at Birmingham Airport, and the economic ties between
Tamworth and Birmingham it is considered that there is considerable opportunity for any
economic benefits to positively impact on Tamworth. It is assumed that there could be
indirect economic impacts from both the construction phases and once operational although
it is not considered by officers that either would be substantial to Tamworth. However, there
may also be negative impact in terms of disruption during construction, particularly linked to
the service station and access to the employment area adjacent to the service station. If HS2
goes ahead, the longer term impacts will no doubt be based around access to HS2 and
access to frequent, high speed services on the ‘classic network’. Rail users accessing the
network from Tamworth wanting to travel to the north and south could be faced with longer
journey times. If rail users want to access the high speed rail network they will have to use
connecting forms of public transport (or drive) to travel into Birmingham interchange or
Stafford. This increases the total door to door travel time. There is no information at present
about what services to London on the west coast mainline, for example, will look like, but it
would seem to be a backward step if HS2 meant that Tamworth was further away in time
from major urban centres such as London and Birmingham. To realise any economic
benefits from HS2, connectivity from Tamworth by road and rail will need to be optimised and
the creation of opportunities for Tamworth businesses and residents to be involved in
construction and operation. Key 'asks' could be:

o retention of fast service to London
more local connections on WCML
improved direct services to the North West (particularly Manchester and Liverpool)
retention of journey times to Birmingham City Centre
enhanced service provision to Birmingham city centre (quality and quantity)
access to HS2 at either city centre or airport via new connection
retention of services to North East and South West
improved M42 capacity to the airport and HS2
local engagement at the construction procurement phase to ensure that substantial
links are made with the local supply chain development and employment of local

Page 110



workforce, including targeted training initiatives for that workforce.

Although the phase 1 route does not go through Tamworth Borough, there is some potential
for noise and visual impact as the line will pass to the south and west of Tamworth around
Middleton, Hints and Whittington. It is likely that these impacts on Tamworth residents will be
minimal as visually the majority of the line will be hidden behind Hopwas Hills.

Phase 2 runs alongside the eastern boundary of the borough and for a short section runs
through the borough. The County Council estimate that three residential properties and one
commercial property is within 120m of the phase 2 route. Within a 500m buffer this number
increases to 501 residential properties and 27 commercial properties. Within a 1km buffer
this increases further to 3,381 residential properties and 36 commercial properties.

The most likely impacts are noise. Visually the line is proposed to be in cutting and so visual
impact would be minimised. However, new bridges, realignment of roads (such as
Overwoods Road, Whateley Lane and M42/A5 junction) and service roads will have a visual
impact.

There appears to be only one residential site in Tamworth Borough that would be
significantly affected, by the proposed HS2 phase two. This site is off Overwoods Rd
Hockley, the most affected roads would be Ottery, Dart and Tamar Road. It is considered
however that the proposed developments and existing housing estate would be afforded
some acoustic protection, as the HS2 track would be contained within a deep cutting at an
approximate level of the existing M42 Motorway. It is considered that the noise from the
motorway is likely to be the dominant noise source in the area. It is predicted that the
greatest acoustic contribution from the HS2 line, would be either very early or very late at
night when the noise form the M42 is at its lowest. It is considered that there may be an
increase in noise levels as the HS2 track rises on approaching the M42 junction, however
this may be not have an overall contributory factor as distance to the probable receptors is
starting to increase at this point.

During construction, disruption is likely to be considerable. The proposed plans require the
remodelling of the A5/M42 junction and accesses to the employment area. Under the current
route the service station would need to be demolished. The current proposed route also
shows a temporary realignment to the M42, albeit moving eastwards away from the Borough
it demonstrates the scale of construction required around Tamworth.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

There is minimal officer time costs likely to be incurred if the recommendations are accepted.
However, if the Council chooses to Petition the Government on the Hybrid Bill then there will
be significant costs incurred in officer time and also legal costs through the appointment of a
Parliamentary Agent. There is no budget available to cover these costs at present.

LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND

There is a statutory requirement under Section 239 of the Local Government Act 1972 for
local authorities to obtain the authority of full council to deposit a petition in Parliament in
respect of a bill. A Hybrid Bill falls within the scope of Section 239. If the Council choose to
Petition the Government on the Hybrid Bill this would require specialist knowledge and
expertise in drafting the petition and advising on procedure. Parliamentary Agents are
solicitors who are approved by the Houses of Parliament to undertake this work.

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
The sustainability implications of the proposed route are considered in the main body of the
report and in the supporting documentation to the consultation.

Page 111



BACKGROUND INFORMATION

1) HS2 and Route description

In January 2009, the Government established High Speed Two Ltd (HS2 Ltd) to consider the
options and feasibility of a new high speed rail network in Britain, starting with a costed and
deliverable proposal for a new line from London to Birmingham. The drivers behind the work
were the recognition of capacity issues on the existing rail network, particularly the West
Coast mainline, the need to address carbon reduction issues associated with short distance
air travel and a desire to stimulate growth outside of the south east.

HS2 Ltd’s report was presented to the previous Labour Government at the end of 2009 and
was published alongside a Command Paper, setting out the then Government’s proposed
strategy for a High Speed Rail network in March 2010. The Command Paper also contained
the Government’s preferred route option for a high speed line between London and the West
Midlands.

The Labour Government evaluated these proposals in respect of their costs and benefits for
enhancing capacity and connectivity in a sustainable way, which was its key strategic
objective for inter-city transport. As part of its analysis, the Government also considered
other realistic options for meeting the UK's inter-urban capacity needs over the next 30
years, including carrying out a detailed analysis of the potential costs and benefits of major
improvements to existing rail and road networks.

After the General Election in May 2010 the new Coalition Government expressed its support
for a High Speed rail network and agreed to progress the work previously undertaken by
High Speed 2 Limited on behalf of the Labour Government. On 20th December 2010, the
Transport Secretary made a statement to parliament informing it of the Governments
intentions to develop a High Speed rail network with the first phase being that of a route
between London and the West Midlands.

On the 28" February 2011, the Government published its preferred route for High Speed
Two (HS2) as a first step in creating a national HSR network, and launched a national
consultation.

In January 2012 the Secretary of State for Transport announced the route of Phase One of
HS2 linking London to Birmingham. Phase One of HS2 meets the West Coast Main Line
(WCML) near to Handsacre in Lichfield.

On 28th January 2013 the Secretary of State for Transport, Patrick McLoughlin, announced
the initial preferred route for Phase Two of HS2. If approved the route will extend the high
speed line from Birmingham to Manchester and Leeds, with connections on to the West and
East Coast Main Lines to serve the rest of the North of England and Scotland. Intermediate
HS2 stations would be built at Manchester Airport, Sheffield Meadowhall and an East
Midlands Hub at Toton. The proposed Phase Two route would be integrated into the existing
network, allowing trains to serve destinations such as Crewe and Liverpool.

The consultation on HS2 Ltd.’s proposed routes for Phase Two of HS2 was launched on 17
July 2013 and closes on 31 January 2014.

A local consultation event was held by HS2 at the Assembly Rooms in Tamworth on the 4"
December.

Phase 1
HS2 Ltd’s preferred scheme proposes a route that would extend from London via the
Chilterns/Home Counties, the south midlands into Warwickshire then Staffordshire

connecting to the West Coast mainline just north of Lichfield city. A spur would be developed
off the line to connect Birmingham with a new dedicated station at Curzon Street in

Page 112



Birmingham being provided for
Phase 2 - West Midlands to Manchester - Western Route

The line would connect with the London-West Midlands leg in Lichfield, before heading north-
west past Stafford and on towards Crewe. A connection with the West Coast Main Line
would be provided just south of Crewe with the main line continuing in tunnel under the town
heading north. It would cross over the M6 and then the M56 before heading past Warrington
to a further connection with the West Coast Main Line south of Wigan. The Manchester
stations would be served by a spur off the main line running roughly parallel with the M56
towards Manchester Airport. The proposed stations comprise new stations at Manchester
Piccadilly and Manchester Airport.

Phase 2 - West Midlands to Leeds - Eastern Route

The eastern leg would serve stations in the East Midlands, South Yorkshire and Leeds.
The line would connect with the London to West Midlands leg to the east of Birmingham,
near Junction 4 of the M6, and then follow the M42 corridor north-east towards Derby and
Nottingham. The East Midlands Hub station would be located between these two cities at
Toton, about a mile from the M1. The line would head north, following the M1 corridor as it
heads towards South Yorkshire. The station serving this region would be located at
Meadowhall alongside the M1, between Sheffield and Rotherham. From here the line would
pass to the east of Barnsley and connect to the East Coast Main Line nine miles to the
south-west of York. As with Manchester, Leeds would be served by a spur off the main line.
It would run within the existing Castleford to Leeds railway corridor, passing the southern
suburbs of Leeds before rising above street level into the new station at Leeds New Lane.
The total route length would be 116 miles.

The West Midlands to Leeds route passes through a section (approximately 100m) of
Tamworth Borough and continues in close proximity to the Borough boundary as it passes
through north Warwickshire.

The Hybrid Bill

On 19 November 2013 the House of Lords approved the High Speed Rail (Preparation) Bill,
and the so-called Hybrid Bill was deposited on 25 November 2013 for Phase One of HS2
between London and the West Midlands, which will secure the powers to construct and
maintain Phase One. The Bill is titled the ‘High Speed Rail (London - West Midlands) Bill’.
Along with the Hybrid Bill, the formal Environment Statement (ES) for Phase One was
deposited (as were various supporting documents such as a Housing Statement, Estimate of
Expense, Equalities Impact Assessment and Health Impact Assessment). The Environment
Statement explains in detail the scheme proposals, the impacts of the project on the
environment along the route and the steps taken to mitigate them. The ES that is out for
consultation, provides the opportunity to comment on matters such as links to HS1.

The Environmental Statement runs to over 55,000 pages and it has been reported that
approximately 877 pages were missing from the technical appendices on the public website.
HS2 Ltd have confirmed that the website has now been updated to include these pages and
have said:

“These omissions would not prevent a proper understanding of the scheme or its
environmental effects. This does not affect anyone’s ability to respond to the consultation on
the Environmental Statement.”

Hybrid bills are so called because they combine features of both public and private Bills.
They are Government Bills which affect certain individuals and bodies in ways that do not
affect everybody. Hybrid Bills have been used before to secure powers for national railway
projects, such as HS1 and Crossrail. The hybrid Bill will secure the powers to:
e build and maintain the first phase of HS2 and its associated works, including secure
planning permission for the works;
e compulsorily acquire interests in the land required,;

Page 113



o affect or change rights of way, including the stopping-up or diversion of highways and
waterways (permanently or temporarily);
modify infrastructure belonging to statutory undertakers (e.g. utility companies);
e carry out work on listed buildings and demolish buildings in Conservation Areas; and
e carry out protective works to buildings and third-party infrastructure.

It will also make other necessary changes to existing legislation to facilitate construction and
operation of the railway.

This is a key legislative milestone in determining how the project will move forward, since this
is when the petitioning phase begins — presenting the opportunity for those people who are
directly and specially affected by the provisions of the Bill to petition for or against it. This
stage of the process is therefore crucial to securing the best outcomes for the region.

Based on the original timescales the Government is aiming to deposit a Hybrid Bill late 2013,
attain Royal Assent by early 2015, commence development in 2017 and open the new line
by 2026 for phase 1.

The Hybrid Bill offers the only opportunity for local authorities, local communities and other
interested parties to challenge the Government’s proposals and seek to have changes made.
This process is known as Petitioning which involves a formal notice being made by a party
such as the Borough Council wishing to make a case to Parliament and then subject to that
wish being acceded to by Parliament, presenting that case. It is considered that given that
the Hybrid Bill for Phase 1 does not involve any land within Tamworth, and it is expected that
other Authorities such as Staffordshire County Council are likely to be Petitioning, it would
not be a good use of resources for the Borough Council to separately Petition.

2) Potential Impacts

There are many groups, organisations and individuals who are supportive of the principle of
HS2 and the proposed route. There are also many who are opposed to the proposal. There
is a growing body of research, studies and reports that aim to support the arguments for and
against. The arguments for, focus on the economic benefits to regions and large cities
outside of London. There is no detailed evidence to demonstrate the economic impact on
smaller towns such as Tamworth. The Strategic Case for HS2, published by the Department
for Transport, sets out the case for action and the need for HS2 (as opposed to the other
options) to provide increased capacity and connectivity as current capacity fast reaches its
limits, and to support a robust and balanced economy. The alternatives to HS2 — essentially,
providing additional capacity by upgrading the existing rail lines — would require 14 years of
weekend closures across the intercity network. The Strategic Case also sets out how
destinations not directly served by high speed rail will benefit from reduced journey times,
and identifies £1.3 — 3bn uplift in GVA for the West Midlands region. The Economic Case for
HS2, published in October 2013 by HS2 Ltd, is the first update since August 2012. The
document reviews and updates HS2 Ltd’s approach, accounting for changes to route and
design; revised demand forecasts; changes to the WebTAG appraisal guidance (including a
revised value of time and an increased RPI assumption); updates to the transport modelling
approach and improved service patterns. Subsequently, the economic case has reduced
from £2.50 of benefit per £1 of spend to £2.30. This has caused some groups to claim that
the economic case is significantly weakened, although the 2.3 ratio still represents “high”
value for money. Furthermore, the 2.3 BCR is predicated on the assumption that demand
growth will halt abruptly at 2040. The report further notes that an assumption of demand
growth halting at 2049 would see a BCR in excess of 4.

Those against HS2 highlight the cost of the project, question the economic benefits and
highlight the impact on the environment and local communities. Staffordshire County Council
has taken a position of opposition to HS2 because of the potential impact on some of
Staffordshire’s communities, the lack of economic benefits and the potential to damage
Staffordshire’s environment. Similarly Lichfield District Council have formally objected to the
principle and detail of HS2 as it affected the environment and residents & businesses of the
District. The view expressed was that the proposal would have serious adverse impacts on

Page 114



the countryside and certain villages/hamlets and also offer no economic benefits locally. In
Tamworth it is proposed that the phase 2 line will run to the East of the Borough and will run
through the Borough for approximately 100m.

Given Tamworth’s geographical location and proximity to both the station proposed in
Birmingham City Centre and at Birmingham Airport, and the economic ties between
Tamworth and Birmingham it is considered that there is considerable opportunity for any
economic benefits to positively impact on Tamworth. It is assumed that there could be
indirect economic impacts from both the construction phases and once operational although
it is not considered by officers that either would be substantial to Tamworth.

During construction there may be construction jobs created and benefits for local B&Bs /
hotels in hosting workers. In the longer terms there may be opportunity for Tamworth
residents to access jobs associated with the stations and depot.

However, there may also be negative impact in terms of disruption during construction,
particularly linked to the service station and access to the employment area adjacent to the
service station.

If HS2 goes ahead, the longer term impacts will no doubt be based around access to HS2
and access to frequent, high speed services on the ‘classic network’.

Rail users accessing the network from Tamworth wanting to travel to the north and south
could be faced with longer journey times. If rail users want to access the high speed rail
network they will have to use connecting forms of public transport (or drive) to travel into
Birmingham interchange or Stafford. This increases the total door to door travel time.

There is no information at present about what services to London on the west coast mainline,
for example, will look like, but it would seem to be a backward step if HS2 meant that
Tamworth was further away in time from major urban centres such as London and
Birmingham.

There are currently 3 fast trains from Tamworth to Euston taking from 67min. Whilst the
number of services to Euston may increase, it is likely that so will the time taken to get there.
The County Council have suggested that the minimum journey time may be 80mins from
Tamworth.

HS2 identify that 9 intercity routes per hour (ie. those from Glasgow, Manchester and
Liverpool to London some of which stop at Tamworth) would be moved to the High Speed
Network. This allows capacity on WCML for a further 11 fast regional services an hour.

HS2 have suggested that passenger number modelling had assumed the same price tickets
as currently on the WCML and therefore these intercity journeys from cities in the north
would have no reason not to use HS2, therefore the loss of those intercity routes on WCML
could happen. Whilst this may be a benefit to those at Stafford and North of Stafford who
could catch a HS train of this status before joining the HS2 line at Armitage under phase 1
and then all the way under phase 2, there is a real concern about the Trent Valley stations,
such as Tamworth losing fast services to London.

In terms of connections to HS2, presently a train to Birmingham New Street can take less
than 20mins. However, a walk of 10 to 15mins would then be required to the HS2 station at
Curzon Street.

For several years the Water Orton corridor improvements and Camp Hill Chords schemes
have been promoted which could give the opportunity for direct services in to Birmingham
although with increased journey times to account for new stations along the route.

Recently there has been a proposal to reopen the Whitacre Link. This could give direct
access from Tamworth to the HS2 station and the airport as well as through services

Page 115



although it could have negative impact on local services to Birmingham city centre.

To realise any economic benefits from HS2, connectivity from Tamworth by road and rail will
need to be optimised and the creation of opportunities for Tamworth businesses and
residents to be involved in construction and operation. Key 'asks' could be:

o retention of fast service to London
more local connections on WCML
improved direct services to the North West (particularly Manchester and Liverpool)
retention of journey times to Birmingham City Centre
enhanced service provision to Birmingham city centre (quality and quantity)
access to HS2 at either city centre or airport via new connection
retention of services to North East and South West
improved M42 capacity to the airport and HS2
local engagement at the construction procurement phase to ensure that substantial
links are made with the local supply chain development and employment of local
workforce, including targeted training initiatives for that workforce.

Although the phase 1 route does not go through Tamworth Borough, there is some potential
for noise and visual impact as the line will pass to the south and west of Tamworth around
Middleton, Hints and Whittington. It is likely that these impacts on Tamworth residents will be
minimal as | consider visually the majority of the line will be hidden behind Hopwas Hills.

Phase 2 runs alongside the eastern boundary of the borough and for a short section runs
through the borough.

The County Council estimate that three residential properties and one commercial property is
within 120m of the phase 2 route. Within a 500m buffer this number increases to 501
residential properties and 27 commercial properties. Within a 1km buffer this increases
further to 3,381 residential properties and 36 commercial properties.

The most likely impacts are noise. Visually the line is proposed to be in cutting and so visual
impact would be minimised. However, new bridges, realignment of roads (such as
Overwoods Road, Whateley Lane and M42/A5 junction) and service roads will have a visual
impact.

Environmental Health Officers have identified one residential site in Tamworth Borough that
would be significantly affected, by the proposed HS2 phase two. This site is off Overwoods
Rd Hockley, the most affected roads would be Ottery, Dart and Tamar Road. It is considered
however that the proposed developments and existing housing estate would be afforded
some acoustic protection, as the HS2 track would be contained within a deep cutting at an
approximate level of the existing M42 Motorway. It is considered that the noise from the
motorway is likely to be the dominant noise source in the area. It is predicted that the
greatest acoustic contribution from the HS2 line, would be either very early or very late at
night when the noise form the M42 is at its lowest. It is considered that there may be an
increase in noise levels as the HS2 track rises on approaching the M42 junction, however
this may be not have an overall contributory factor as distance to the probable receptors is
starting to increase at this point.

During construction, disruption is likely to be considerable. The proposed plans require the
remodelling of the A5/M42 junction and accesses to the employment area. Under the current
route the service station would need to be demolished. The current proposed route also
shows a temporary realignment to the M42, albeit moving eastwards away from the Borough
it demonstrates the scale of construction required around Tamworth.

To date the Council has not expressed a position of support or not for the principle of HS2.

The Leader of the Council has asked Members of the Council to express their views on the
principle of HS2 and the responses received by officers are reproduced and made

Page 116



anonymous in Appendix A.

There will be environmental and economic impacts (positive and negative) of HS2 if it goes
ahead as currently proposed and given the timescales and scale of the project it is difficult to
have quantify these confidently at this stage. Members should therefore consider if the
possible impacts on the local environment and communities in Tamworth is significant
enough to object to the principle of HS2 given the potential economic benefits. However,
Members should also consider that if they choose to support HS2, if they should qualify the
support based on some key asks based on local and national connectivity on both the classic
network and to the high speed network as detailed above and on mitigation of environmental
impacts on Tamworth residents and businesses as detailed below.

3) Phase 2 consultation

The consultation on HS2 Ltd.’s proposed routes for Phase Two of HS2 was launched on 17
July 2013 and closes on 31 January 2014. The consultation seeks to obtain views on the
proposed high speed rail route, as well as the sustainability impacts of the proposed line of
route. The consultations asks 9 questions and the proposed response to those is detailed
below. The proposed response has been worked up in conjunction with officers from
Staffordshire County Council and GBSLEP.

QUESTION ONE

Do you agree or disagree with the Government’s proposed route between the West
Midlands and Manchester? This includes the proposed route alignment, the location
of tunnels, ventilation shafts, cuttings, viaducts and depots as well as how the high
speed line will connect to the West Coast Main Line?

It is proposed that no response is provided to this question as this leg of phase 2 does not
impact upon Tamworth.

QUESTION TWO

Do you agree or disagree with the Government’s proposals for:
a. A Manchester station at Manchester Piccadilly?

b. An additional station near Manchester Airport?

It is unlikely that residents or business from Tamworth would travel to make use of HS2
stations in these locations. Given the alignment of HS2 it is also likely that to access
Manchester and the North West people from Tamworth would use the existing classic
network. At present the services to major cities in the North West and Manchester airport are
poor. Therefore as part of released capacity on the classic network we would like to see
improved services in terms of speed to the north west from Tamworth.

QUESTION THREE
Do you think there should be any additional stations on the western leg between the
West Midlands and Manchester?

In the County Councils draft response to this question they have said that whilst they do not
believe that there should be an additional station that they do ask for the following:

* A package of intermodal connectivity measures to provide Staffordshire’s residents and
businesses with improved access to the proposed high speed rail network

* Modifications to the proposed infrastructure at Crewe to maximise connectivity between
classic compatible and high speed services

* Greater use of classic compatible rail services that can serve Staffordshire stations on the
West Coast Main Line to provide improved rail connectivity to both the north and south

Modifications to the proposed infrastructure at Crewe also provide the potential for other
stations on the West Coast Main Line (such as Tamworth) to access the proposed high
speed rail network north of Crewe. The County Council believe modifications to the proposed
infrastructure at Crewe could provide improved integration of the HS2 network and the

Page 117



existing classic rail network should the scheme go ahead.

The County Council also believe that there is the potential for a network of classic compatible
services that could operate from stations such as Stafford and Stoke-on-Trent; while rail
stations in Lichfield and Tamworth could utilise released capacity for improved rail services to
both Manchester and London.

It is proposed that the Borough Council support these comments

QUESTION FOUR

Do you agree with the Government’s proposed route between West Midlands and
Leeds? This includes the proposed alignment, the location of tunnels, ventilation
shafts, cuttings, viaducts and depots as well as how the high speed line will connect
to the East Coast Main Line?

Whilst recognising that the proposed route is actually only in Tamworth for a very short
distance and therefore has a limited impact on Tamworth’s communities and environment, it
does run alongside the Borough boundary and has potential impacts on the local landscape,
a loss in amenity and more significantly the local economy.

We are concerned that the major changes to the M42/A5 junction will have an economic
impact on Centurion Park during construction. The extensive highway remodelling works to
accommodate the proposed route will have a negative impact on the efficiency of the
network, resulting in delays. Such delay is expected to last for some time during construction.
The economic impact locally appears to be exacerbated through the loss of the service area
and other employment venues. Environmentally, the realignment may also affect the Kettle
Brook Biodiversity Alert Site (BAS) and Local Nature Reserve. This is not acknowledged in
the Sustainability Statement.

We ask that the impact of construction, particularly on the M42 / A5 junction and on access
to the Centurion Park employment area is minimised. We would also ask that there is more
detail on the affect and future provision in regards to the M42 services which has a value as
a signpost for the town in regards to its visitors and general recognition as well as a
employer.

We also ask that every step is taken to mitigate the noise and visual impact on local
residents, particularly those off Overwoods Rd Hockley, and more specifically Ottery, Dart
and Tamar Road.

We also wish to see appropriate measures put in place to compensate residents and
businesses who will be affected by the construction of HS2.

Do you agree or disagree with the Government’s proposals for:

c. A Leeds station at Leeds New Lane?

d. A South Yorkshire station to be located at Sheffield Meadowhall?
e. An East Midlands station to be located at Toton?

Tamworth already benefits from direct services to Leeds, Sheffield, Derby and Nottingham
and wish to see no deterioration in either journey time or number of services to these
destinations. If this is achievable it is unlikely that rail users from Tamworth would use either
Birmingham High Speed station to access an East Midlands station at Toton although there
may be some time saving to access Leeds and Sheffield.

QUESTION SIX
Do you think that there should be any additional stations on the eastern
leg between the West Midlands and Leeds?

It is proposed that no response is provided to this question.

Page 118



QUESTION SEVEN

Please let us know your comments on the Appraisal of Sustainability (as reported in
the Sustainability Statement) of the Government’s proposed Phase Two Route,
including the alternatives to the proposed route as described.

The County Council are proposing a detailed response to this question. It is suggested that
the following response drawing on the most pertinent points to Tamworth is made.

We believe there should be opportunities to capture the indirect economic benefits of HS2
during construction. The creation of links to Tamworth’s supply chain and workforce needs to
result in the training and development of the local workforce.

The impacts of HS2 on property and affected communities are likely to be significant, not just
during operation but also through many years of construction. It is expected that the formal
ES will detail these impacts and the ways in which it will be avoided or reduced.

The impact on Staffordshire’s road network is likely to be felt most during construction, with
delays caused by constructing road diversions and increased construction traffic on local
roads. We expect HS2 Ltd, in developing its assessment of the impacts, to be in detailed
dialogue with the local authorities so that these impacts are reduced and eliminated where
possible, for example at the A5 / M42 junction.

To provide economic prosperity and create employment, it is important that Staffordshire’s
residents and businesses can utilise the highway network with little delay as a result of
increased HS2 related traffic during construction.

We expect HS2 to fully engage with the affected local authorities on all noise and vibration
issues and to provide appropriate technical information as the route design is developed. We
seek to ensure that HS2 Ltd develops the highest level of mitigation to reduce the impact
where increases in noise are identified in the appraisal process. It is vitally important that the
whole community is included in the process and that all dwellings subjected to noise impact
will benefit from mitigation measures and not just at locations where there are clusters of
properties.

We are extremely concerned with the increased levels of emissions and pollutants
associated with construction activities, equipment and road traffic. Construction activities will
generate dust and emissions from construction traffic which could have an impact on human
and sensitive receptors as well as ecological receptors. Whilst mechanisms to control these
potential impacts would be set out in and rigorously applied through the Code of Construction
Practice (CoCP), we expect the CoCP to have suitable control measures in place so as to
monitor and review the effectiveness of those measures.

QUESTION EIGHT

Please let us know your comments on how the capacity that would be
freed up on the existing rail network by the introduction of the proposed
Phase Two route could be used

Tamworth benefits from being located in the heart of the country and has excellent
communication links which make it an excellent place to live and do business. In particular it
benefits from having a station that serves both the West Coast main line connecting us to
London and the North West and the Cross Country line connecting us to the East Midlands,
Scotland and the South West. Our residents and business benefit from these long distance
connections but also the ability to connect to our more local functioning economic geography
such as Birmingham in less than 20mins.

We want to ensure that these connections remain and are improved as a result of freed
capacity. In particular we would also like to see:

¢ adedicated fast service between Tamworth and Birmingham City Centre

¢ services that provide frequent access to HS2 stations (in Birmingham and the East

Page 119



Midlands)

¢ the provision of Classic / HS2 compatible services

¢ Retention of a direct fast service to London Euston at peak commuting time
(currently 1hrO8mins)

¢ Additional fast services to London Euston

¢ Improved direct services to the North West major towns and cities, particularly
Manchester in terms of frequency and speed

QUESTION NINE
Please let us know your comments on the introduction of other utilities along the
proposed Phase Two line of the route

The County have proposed the following response which it is recommended is endorsed:

“Staffordshire’s landscape is marked by a range of utility equipment both above and below
ground. It would appear logical for Government to think about the inclusion of utility
apparatus along the proposed Phase Two line of route to further reduce the impact of future
utility equipment on our landscape. We expect Government and the Department for
Transport to consult with the relevant utility companies so as to develop an understanding of
their long-term aspirations and planning. This joined up approach would ensure an
opportunity is not missed and potentially reduce any further impacts on Staffordshire’s
landscape. However, in supporting the proposal in principle to introduce other utilities along
the proposed Phase Two line of route, we feel there is insufficient information at this stage to
understand the wider impacts of what the introduction of utilities along the proposed route
would mean. If the introduction of utilities results in a wider footprint of the proposed railway,
and ultimately greater permanent land take, then we would need to understand what the
alternative option is, i.e. a new network of overhead power lines and associated pylons
compared to a 2m wide underground service trench as part of HS2. With this in mind, we
expect Government to provide further details of what utilities are expected to be incorporated
along the proposed Phase Two line of route and consult on the options available”.

REPORT AUTHOR
Matthew Bowers x276

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS

APPENDICES
Appendix A — Comments from Councillors

Page 120



Appendix A
Comments made from Members on the principle of HS2 and the Phase 2 Consultation

Comment 1

“My personal view on HS2 is that this is something that must be progressed as soon
as ever possible. I would, though, add that every effort must be made to ensure that
adequate compensation is paid to the owners of land and property needing to be
acquired with regard to the route of HS2. I certainly do not wish to see any
property/land owners losing money in order to support this project as, in effect, they
would forcibly be donating vast sums of money for a project to which, as taxpayers,
they had already made a contribution.”

Comment 2

“I have to say I have very strong views in this matter. HS2 for is an integral part of
the way forward for the UK/Tamworth. I am constantly concerned by the manner in
which this project is portrayed. Getting to London 10 minuets faster is neither her nor
there. In my opinion HS 2 is about getting our business people into the largest trading
area in the world (Europe) 10 minuets to London has no real benefit. Getting to
Europe where ever does. If you take a aeroplane you will have to be there 1- 2 hours
before. The infrastructure for HS2 is already there in the first stage with HS1 so why
no use. The business community will travel in comfort doing the pre-work as they
travel. The cost is not a factor in my opinion. In years to come HS2 will be seen as a
benefit we should miss out on.”

Comment 3

See attached

Page 121



10 Jai 2014
HS2 - Birmingham To Leeds (Phase Two)

Tamworth Section

(Tamworth Council Councillor's Consultation Response.)

Attn: ClIr S Claymore, Rob Mitchell and Matt Bowers
Attn. Danny Cook, John Faulkner,

Thank you for allowing this consultation response.

| have looked closely at the proposals - | have to say with increasing horror - particularly as they

affect the Tamworth (Birmingham to Leeds) spur of HS2.

1. Endorsement of County Council Consultation Response.

As a result | find myself in complete agreement with stance taken by Staffordshire County
Council. Therefore | endorse and enclose a copy of Staffordshire's response to the Government

consultation to be taken as with and as part of this response.

2. Blight

But there are still a number of considerations that are more specific to Tamworth. A cursory
look at the proposed route by Tamworth (B5000 to Overwoods Road) will show how close it runs to
Tamworth's borders. Within yards of Stonydelph homes. Bearing in mind this project is not due for
completion until 2030 (and probably later!). The effect on those living nearby will be catastrophic.
They will be unable to sell their homes, even more so than in the current unhelpful economic
circumstances. | am probably less concerned that new homes planning permissions will not ndw go

ahead.
3.  Maintaining Viable Road Networks.

But the prospect of many months of disruptions to the Tamworth roads networks may panic some

small businesses into deserting Tamworth all together. Certainly there will be a time and financial

cost to those travelling around and through Tamworth via the road network. Therefore the Council

needs to develop a response that ensure as far as possible the smoothest possibly flow of traffic

east out of the town. It would be unthinkailge that 1'5245’ B5000 and (to a less extent) Overwoods
. " age

Road should all face disruption at the same time.



4, Effect On Current Tamworth Rail Links.

HS2 does not provide a nearby station for Tamworth travellers into and out of the town.
Therefore any rail travellers into or out of the town who wish to use HS2 will first have to travel to
Birmingham and change trains there. There are time and cost consideration to this that have not
been quantified by the KPMG / HS2 report.

If we are to take the KPMG report seriously then it will take 69% of current rail travel. This
would mean - for Tamworth rail users - using Tamworth classic rail to travel to and from
Birmingham. If the trip was to or from London then it makes no sense at all. Because under the
current rail use Tamworth to London takes 68 minutes, Less time than it takes London to
Birmingham at present! In addition it would mean more people packed onto the trains to and from
Birmingham. We already hear of complaints of people being squeezed onto those trains. This can
only make the situation worse. In practice of course it will not happen like this. Which means that
KPMG have guesstimated far too favourably the likely passenger uptake on their trains. Either that
or the fact that the trains are high speed may encourage businesses to relocate closer to the HS2
station links - again a positive disadvantage to a town like Tamworth.

Therefore Tamworth Council needs to plan to counter these possible disadvantages to the

town.
5.  "HS2's £68 Million Yearly Benefit To Tamworth"

| have heard this figure being used by proponents of HS2. Yet | have failed to find any
reference in the HS2 literature to this being calculated. From what | have said so far it is clear that
Tamworth is going to suffer disadvantages and considerable costs from the proposed HS2
development. How is this to balance the supposed benefits? Where are the figures? Maybe in the
877 pages "lost" so not available to the consultation. | can only imagine that somebody has devised
some formula to share the already wildly optimistic West Midlands £2 billion benefits amongst the
WM's population to work out Tamworth's "share". This of course would be complete nonsense.
The KPMG report does not even mention Tamworth when it describes how benefits might pan out
across the West Midlands.

If the Council are to adopt a view on this project then the net cost/benefit appraisal must be
determined in a more accurate way. My current view is that Tamworth will suffer net costs and

for many years to come.

6. Evidence Base Missing

One of the biggest problems in trying tongé&éml%he accuracy of the KPMG determinations



is to uncover their evidence base. | have tried to do this and been thwarted by missing web links

and no supporting facts for what increasingly looks like wild guess in favour of HS2.

We do know however that a model was used that suggested passenger costs fro HS2 would be the
same as for the classic rail fares. This highly improbably assumption was also touted on HS1 and has

been proven completely absurd. Fares are higher on HS1. They will be on HS2.

The KPMG report also seems to grossly over-estimate the passenger transport figures, and how
much time business passenger will spend working on the train (none at all according the KPMG).

At present the projected cost of HS2 is around £50 billion (some of it contingency - but no doubt
they will need more by the time they come to build it). £50 billion is a huge cost to the whole
nation. At a time when people are seeking to travel less and avoid the costs of travel. It therefore
does not appear possible that the input data into the HS2 economic model has been at all sound. In
fact it seems to have been manipulated to produce false output. Usual computer "trash in - trash

out" model.

6. C_ompensation.

It is my view (of course) that HS2 will be an unmitigated financial disaster for the nation (whilst

being very helpful to a few major contractors.

But more importantly for Tamworth people it will also be a disaster for some of them with
their properties very close to the proposed development. These people will need proper

compensation.

Tamworth Council should support the claims of local businesses and individuals to receive
maximum compensation for their costs. Tamworth Council should also seek some compensation
for itself to mitigate the work and costs involved in mitigating the effects of HS2 on the town.

7. "Lost" Papers

The consultation has suffered throughout from a mass of text (55,000 pages) and the 877

"lost" papers. It has also taken place over the Christmas period .

Under the circumstances it would not be unreasonable for Tamworth Council to ask for an

extended consultation finish date.

Page 124



8.  Council Consultation.

It would be useful for Tamworth Council to allow its own consultation with local residents.
Through whatever processes seem most suitable. That local residents may voice their concerns,
opinions and suggestions regarding HS2 and what they feel their council might do about it.

9. Ecological Damage

Just like the rest of HS2 it is inevitable that ecological damage will result. This will be balanced
against benefits that are claimed for the scheme. We have to assume that HS2 will go ahead as
proposed regardless of what |, and very many others, think about their use of computer model

generated "benefits".

However Tamworth Council should, possibly in partnership with North Warwickshire Borough
Council, assess ecological damage that is likely to occur and ask for remedial measures to be
undertaken. This would be in accordance with our own local plan and the NPPF. This could in part
form some of the compensation paid to local councils to undertake some of the works that may

need to be done.
10. EU - Political Point.

It has been claimed that this HS2 will somehow open up markets in the EU and other parts of
Europe. The lesson of history of course is that the last time we had a trade surplus with the EU was
before we joined the "Common Market". Ever since it has been a downhill process of ever
increasing negative trade balances - mitigated only by trade surpluses with the rest of the world
(particularly the English speaking world. This was never surprising to those of us who voted against
the "Common Market" at that time in 1975! There is no reason whatsoever to believe that HS2
would do anything but accelerate the process of negative trade balances. We produce (or did
produce!) much the same products. It was always a bad idea to tie Britain down to a continental EU
"customs union" (it was never about free trade!) - let alone the political union we are now stuck in.

Under the Trans European Networks (TENS) we find the origins of why the UK Government must
build HS2 - that is why | expect it will be built - regardless of costs and "benefits" .

| don't expect the Council to take any view on this other than perhaps our successive

Governments' (Labour and Tory) normal rabidly pro EU view.

HS2 - Tamworth Council Consultation.

9th January 2014 Page 125



(4oowyouig)
19) 00059 031 peoy s
poOOMIBAQ - UOLI3
133s yromwe |

0
(om] aseyd) spoai ol weysuiwdlg - ZSH

oL AOIDUNE Zp
P
Japun BuISS0.D uw..”

2511 198D $E9.5 01 ,
IAD $$043 01 JUBWUDINES

Ol Uono \ i
l 1ounl Z{N JC TU2IX3 2M1BPU|

.OSH

aQ1SH =

o

[ — =



High Speed Rail 2 (Phase Two)

in Staffordshire

Response to the Phase Two

Route Consultation

W Stattordshire
County Council

Revision F

Page 125
elgI%age 127




CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION ....couuuerssersssesssssssesssssessasssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssasssssessasessassssssssssssssssassssssnsssans 1
QUESTION ONE .....oommerseemsenensens B s 2
T TAIEE T L cicunssminsionessitisit it pissusie vk S S s B5BeeE 15
T e g e NI (Sl R WA A s SO O 17
R TN PO IR - L il S e b 21
QUBBTION FIVE.... cccainiisisismsain R T e . e 22
CYUEE TION B oo i e i 23
GUBSTION GRVEN (o smasiissinsasmomimsmsmmisaiiies A T 24
QUESTION EIGHT - .. . s 30
QUESTION NINE OO SR KO SRR DU O a3
Page 126

Page 128



High Speed Rail 2 in Staffordshire Route Consultation Response
Phase Two

INTRODUCTION

Of the 95 miles for the Phase Two West Midlands to Manchester route, 33 miles
are in Staffordshire, which will have a significant impact on our countryside and
communities. There is also a short section of the West Midlands to Leeds route
at the very southern tip of Tamworth.

In addition to effective mitigation, we believe removing blight and providing
appropriate timely compensation to the communities affected by the proposals
should be a primary focus of Government, Department for Transport and HS2
Ltd.

We are aware of the proposals being promoted by other local authorities which
entail a change to the initial preferred route as published in January 2013. Any
such change has the potential to bring with it further impacts on Staffordshire’s
environment and communities. We do not intend to respond to these proposals
in this document but would expect full community consultation to take place
should any of the proposals to radically alter the current published route be
given further consideration by the Secretary of State for Transport.  This
response concentrates on the initial preferred route.

Pagpiitfe 129



High Speed Rail 2 in Staffordshire Route Consultation Response
Phase Two

QUESTION ONE

Do you agree or disagree with the Government’s proposed route between
the West Midlands and Manchester? This includes the proposed route
alignment, the location of tunnels, ventilation shafts, cuttings, viaducts
and depots as well as how the high speed line will connect to the West
Coast Main Line?

Disagree.

Staffordshire is one of a number of counties that make up the central ‘cross
roads’ of Britain, and is consequently very much aware of the significance of the
transport network to the well-being of the economy and the people of
Staffordshire. Part of this awareness includes the need for the transport
networks, primarily road and rail, to work effectively and not suffer from
unreliability and congestion. Consequently, efforts to maintain or improve the
network in these respects are welcomed. Upgrades to the West Coast Main
Line have and will continue to bring benefits in terms of service improvements
to various stations/settlements across Staffordshire.

In responding to this question, we do not deny the need for sustainable
improvements to the national transport network but, we are of the view that the
current High Speed Rail network proposal, intrinsically (by virtue of the essential
characteristics and requirements of High Speed Rail) fails to maximise the
possible benefits of such improvements across the country. It presents a real
risk of concentrating future economic development rather than dispersing it
away from London and the south-east. This is exacerbated by the consultation
documents referring to “two-thirds of the population of northern England will be
within two hours of London”. We are concerned that ultimately HS2 may result
in higher benefits for London than any of the connected cities.

There is little doubt that the use of the railways by passengers and freight has
been increasing over the recent past. Similarly, there can be little to counter the
prospect of this increase continuing for some time to come both of its own
accord and positively encouraged by the diversion of traffic from less
sustainable road and air travel. Improvements in transport and communications
over history have undoubtedly had economic benefits for the country, albeit with
varying impacts on different regions/areas/places depending on the localities
served or ignored/bypassed.

Both policy and technology are working to reduce the need to travel.
Technology forms part of the need to travel with recent advances in e-
technology including e-conferencing often removing the requirement to travel
completely. Businesses are continually exploring options to reduce costs and
improve efficiency, and advances in technology are assisting with this. As a
consequence of these continuing technological developments, forward
projection of travel demand should be approached with caution.

There is much debate around the basis for forecasting future travel demand,
particularly over the long term which provides the context for the assessment of
the High Speed Rail network. We are concerned that the High Speed Rail
proposal and its justification are based on unjustified projections of travel
requirements including substantial new demand expected to be generated by

Rage 128
Page 1%0



High Speed Rail 2 in Staffordshire Route Consultation Response
Phase Two

the existence of the high speed service, with over optimistic expectations of
modal shift.

The evidence for linking significant economic development with high speed train
facilities is inconclusive. A particular set of circumstances would appear to be
necessary for significant economic development to take place (well-established
or strongly developing service sector with extensive local public transport
networks) and most of this development would appear to be simply diverted
from other localities rather than totally new. Work undertaken by Atkins for the
County Council in 2011 confirmed the above, with a general conclusion that it is
difficult to find well-defined empirical and quantified evidence on the impacts of
HSR.

Consideration also needs to be given as to how HS2 will restrict future growth
within areas that it will pass through, obviously a particular concern for
Staffordshire given the length of the line that is expected to run through the
county. It appears that the initial preferred route minimises the impact on the
larger urban areas in Staffordshire. However, by doing so it should be
recognised that by directing the line through rural areas, Staffordshire is
potentially losing a significant amount of land that is used for farming and could
be used for future employment and housing developments. The line is also
likely to prove to be a significant barrier to the future expansion of settlements,
employment sites and infrastructure projects, something which will not be fully
considered within local plans as this problem may not be fully realised for many
decades to come.

A mechanism therefore needs to be put in place to mitigate HS2 restricting
future growth by acting as a barrier to the development of land for employment
and housing, constraining the expansion of urban settlements and dissuading
investment in infrastructure projects. Essentially, we believe that we should not
be disadvantaged in promoting future growth within the county due to there
being a need to cross the HS2 line. In the future, if a need arises to provide a
road crossing over the line, HS2 Ltd should work proactively with the promoter
of any scheme and in the interests of economic growth nationally relinquish any
claim they may have for an uplift in the value of any land that is opened up for
development as a result of the creation of the road link/access road.

Having highlighted the principal areas of concern in relation to the proposed
route from West Midlands to Manchester, the following outlines areas of
concern within each Parish the proposed route passes through. The following
text presents initial mitigation that we expect HS2 Ltd to develop further so as to
form the basis for further discussion as the detailed design progresses.

Kings Bromley

The village of Kings Bromley will be impacted by both Phases One and Two of
HS2, particularly during construction.  Whilst having awareness of the
differences in timescales between the two phases, we expect seamless
construction between Phases One and Two so as to reduce the impact on the
local community.

Some residents and businesses of Kings Bromley have been engaging with
HS2 Ltd under the Phase One proposals for almost two years. Whilst the
residents are opposed to the proposals, they have invested a huge amount of
their own time and effort in trying to shape the project so as to reduce the

Pagsl§e 131



High Speed Rail 2 in Staffordshire Route Consultation Response
Phase Two

impact of the route in this Parish. We expect HS2 Ltd to learn from their
engagement experience in Phase One and develop an inclusive engagement
programme which provides timely feedback and information.

It should be noted that the proposed route appears to have moved closer to
Woodend Common Barn when comparing against the drawings published on
2g™ January 2013. Further details are required so as to understand why the
line of route has moved as this amendment is causing frustration and anxiety
amongst the local community

The proposed route passes close to Listed Building clusters at Fradley Junction,
Kings Bromley and Pipe Ridware. HS2 Ltd should carefully consider
approaches to mitigating the constructional and operational impacts of the route
on the local community along with these groups of nationally important buildings
and structures.

North of proposed Phase Two junction, the proposed route dissects Fradley
Wood, a Biodiversity Alert Site (BAS) which includes the habitat of principal
importance Lowland Mixed Deciduous Woodland. Moving northward, the route
passes through an agricultural landscape, running through several small copses
and dissecting hedgerows.

The route passes close to Kings Bromley within the valley of the River Trent.
The Historic Environment Record (HER) identifies considerable archaeological
potential within this area, and the proposed route passes through an area of
considerable crop mark activity particularly to the north and north-west of Riley
Hill. Given the location of the route within the Trent valley at this point, there is
the potential for significant prehistoric archaeological remains to be encountered.

We are concerned with the length and height of the proposed viaducts at
Bourne Brook and River Trent. The height of these structures will have
significant impacts on the local environment and communities. It is expected
that detailed design will allow modifications to the current proposals in order to
develop a solution which is more environmentally suitable.

Due to the proposed elevated position (between 6 and 8 metres) of the line
between Fradley and Handsacre for a distance of around 6km, it generates
concerns on the potential for significant noise impacts on the village of Kings
Bromley along with smaller communities in Hill Ridware and Pipe Ridware.
These impacts have the potential to be exacerbated at Pipe Ridware where the
consultation documentation illustrates a maintenance loop. At this stage there
is insufficient information to provide meaningful comments on the proposed
location and associated infrastructure; as design progresses, detailed dialogue
is expected so as to understand the proposals along with the potential impacts
to the local community and environment. We expect details to be provided on
the type and frequency of vehicles accessing the proposed loop ‘site,’ as well as
the operating hours which would extend to the potential delivery of materials for
maintenance of HS2.

Armitage with Handsacre

Continuing on viaduct into the Parish of Armitage with Handsacre over the River
Trent and floodplain, the height and length of the viaduct for HS2 will affect
character and views within this landscape. This could reduce potential impacts
on Trentside Meadows Site of Biological Importance (SBI), dissected by the

Pag&?57 30



High Speed Rail 2 in Staffordshire Route Consultation Response
Phase Two

route which passes through the most botanically diverse part of the site. This
SBI supports habitats of principal importance, is an exemplar of good
agricultural management, supports very high quality grassland habitat of
principal importance for biodiversity, has been in Environmental Stewardship for
at least ten years, and is used for environmental education. The SBI supports
several bird species of principal importance, including snipe and barn owl,
which are likely to be adversely affected by the scheme.

We consider these features to add amenity and educational value to our
countryside and its direct loss, or loss as a result of severance, has the potential
to have an impact on the wider community, educational visits and those in the
local area. It is expected that HS2 Ltd demonstrate that the special interest of
this site has been fully considered and impacts fully mitigated.

Mavesyn Ridware

North of the River Trent floodplain the route passes through several smaller
copses, ponds and hedgerows and passes close to Pipe Wood Lane SBI, which
covers an important hedgerow which should be protected if the proposed
maintenance loop is incorporated into the proposals at this location.

Due to the proposed elevated position (between 2 and 8 metres) of the line, we
are concerned on the potential for significant noise impacts on the communities
in Hill Ridware and Pipe Ridware. These impacts have the potential to be
exacerbated at Pipe Ridware where the consultation documentation illustrates a
maintenance loop. At this stage there is insufficient information to provide
meaningful comments on the proposed location and associated infrastructure:
as design progresses detailed dialogue is expected so as to understand the
proposals, along with the potential impacts to the local community and
environment.

In order to reduce the impact of HS2 on the local isolated communities in this
Parish, we believe the vertical crest shown on the current design (between
CH9145.5 and CH10305.9) can be reviewed so as to achieve a lower alignment
through this section. Should a lower alignment to current ground level be
achievable, it could reduce the need for an embankment at CH9650. It should
be noted that this realignment is linked into a lower vertical alignment at
Stockwell Heath as explained in the next section.

Colton

The proposed route crosses close to clusters of Listed Buildings at Colton and
Blithfield Hall and close to the Blithfield and Admaston Conservation Area. HS2
Ltd should carefully consider approaches to mitigating the constructional and
operational impacts of the route on these groups of nationally important
buildings and structures.

HS2 Ltd should note that the proposed route crosses through a well preserved
historic landscape, identified as having been created as squatter enclosure
representing encroachment onto former heathland which was under way by the
late 18th century. The character of the extant settlement pattern, and potentially
the historic built environment, of Stockwell Heath also reflects its origins as
encroachment on the heathland.

North of Colton the route dissects two Biodiversity Alert Sites supporting
species-rich hedgerows — habitats of principal importance and likely to be of

Pagedge 133



High Speed Rail 2 in Staffordshire Route Consultation Response
Phase Two

high value for foraging bats. The local ecological network will be significantly
affected in this location as a result of HS2.

Where the line passes close to Stockwell Heath on an 11.8 metre embankment,
we have significant concerns regarding the noise and visual impacts on the
communities in Stockwell Heath as well as Colton to the west. The affected
area also retains historic field patterns and intimate secluded character, and
Planning for Landscape Change', prepared to support the Staffordshire and
Stoke-on-Trent Joint Local Waste Plan (2010-2026), identifies this area as a
high quality landscape.

The embankment (11.8m high) past Stockwell Heath and the associated loss of
ancient hedgerows and trees would have a locally major impact on the local
landscape. In addition to the resulting impacts of HS2 on the community of
Stockwell Heath, the route will also dissect the popular Staffordshire Way which
has the potential to impact on its amenity value to the local and wider
community.

We also have concerns for the residents of Upper Moreton where HS2
proposes to pass over a small watercourse and floodplain on a 140m long
viaduct at a height of 7 metres. In addition to the potential impacts on the local
community, the height and length of the viaduct will permanently change the
landscape, affecting the wider environment. It should be noted that the viaduct
over Moreton Brook does not take the route over Lount Farm SBI and Natural
England Grassland Inventory site which supports grassland habitats of principal
importance and extreme rarity in the county. It is considered that a minor
extension of the viaduct could potentially reduce impacts on these habitats.

As outlined in the section above, the current proposal will have a significant
impact on the community and environment at Colton and Stockwell Heath.
Subject to geology and ground water levels, we believe the height of the
proposed embankment can be lowered as illustrated in Figure 1.1.

While this proposal creates a deep cutting (approximately 20m) at CH10100, an
engineered solution would need to be explored so as to balance the lower
alignment and land take. In lowering the route this could allow Newlands Lane
and Moor Lane to pass over HS2 through realignments acceptable to the
highway authority.

' Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Joint Waste Local Plan (2010-2026) (Adopted March
2013)

htlp://www slalfordshire.cov.uk/environment/eL and/planners-
developeis/landscape/NaturalEnvironmeniLandscapeCharacterTypes.aspx
Rage 132

Page 134



§ % 7 2 IIIIEEIFIN
e 4 & R T 2 £ s & nv\M‘d
= = & € & > < = = & € 2 < <

T E Py oy % ov v i 0¥
= 2 & ® 2 £ & £ %

»

—

e

oy

i ZSH J8n0 ssed pue poubjjeas aq
0) SUET JOOJ\ pue SUBT SPUBMIN

oy ~

N

7 1y

Route Consultation Response

_, [ens] JsjEM
{ punoub pue ABojoab oj 12lgns
|Juswublfe samo] zSH pasodold

7/

i e T Bt AT T T e ST AR T T T MM 3 ﬂJh T a3z
L e oci S EW gy D SRt S s R § v b= S g st
PR N gy o e e . O g St e g
R S et L 1s
e G T A 1
P~

High Speed Rail 2 in Staffordshire

Phase Two
/

t at Stockwell Heath

ignmen

: HS2 lower ali

Figure 1.1

Pagsaide 135



High Speed Rail 2 in Staffordshire Route Consultation Response
Phase Two

Colwich

The depth of cutting (at its maximum 19m below ground surface) increases the
potential for the proposed works to encounter Palaeolithic remains within
particularly gravel deposits. The proposed route also crosses the River Trent to
the north of Shugborough estate where there is the potential for significant
archaeological remains that relate to late prehistoric activity within this area of
the river valley.

As the proposed route travels north towards the A51 Stone to Lichfield road, it
changes from cutting to embankment followed by viaduct as it crosses both the
River Trent and the Trent and Mersey canal. For a distance of some 4km the
line is elevated at a height of between 9 and 13 metres. This elevation is a
major concern as this is likely to have a significant impact on increased noise
levels at Great Haywood and Ingestre. In addition to the potential noise impacts,
there are very strong concerns regarding the potentially limited options available
to provide effective mitigation to the local communities.

In passing close to Shugborough and Great Haywood, a Conservation Area and
Grade | Registered parkland which contains a range of Listed Buildings, it is
expected that HS2 Ltd will fully consider approaches to mitigating the
constructional and operational impacts of the route on these groups of
nationally important buildings and structures. It is expected that these
approaches will be developed in consultation with the Local Planning Authority,
English Heritage, the National Trust, the County Council and the Staffordshire
Parks and Gardens Trust regarding potential impacts to this nationally
significant heritage asset.

The proposed route passes through further small woodlands, hedgerows and
ponds through this Parish. Passing to the north of Great Haywood, the
proposed route affects a site at Great Haywood Marina which has been
landscaped for biodiversity and amenity through the development planning
process. This will impact on restoration wildflower grasslands, wetlands and
water vole habitat. A minor extension of the proposed viaduct over the Trent
floodplain could reduce impacts on this site. However, it is expected that
through detailed design, the length and height of viaduct over the River Trent
floodplain can be developed to provide the optimal environmental and social
balance of the proposed route on the surrounding communities and Great
Haywood Marina.

Tixall with Ingestre

Moving west, the route passes close to a cluster of Listed Buildings at Ingestre,
grouped around a Grade II* Listed Hall. It is expected that HS2 Ltd will carefully
consider approaches to mitigating the constructional and operational impacts of
the proposed route on these groups of nationally important buildings and
structures.

In moving west the line also passes through undesignated woodlands and
Ingestre Park Golf Course whose habitat quality is unknown. The line then
enters a landscape of small fields and hedgerows with many scattered ponds
where great crested newt populations may be affected.

An area around Ingestre is identified in Planning for Landscape Change' as
being of high quality and highest sensitivity. It is expected that HS2 Ltd in

Page Fi%gg i



High Speed Rail 2 in Staffordshire Route Consultation Response
Phase Two

developing their detailed design will assess the impacts on Ingestre
Conservation Area which will inform the development of meaningful mitigation.

HS2 will have a significant impact on Ingestre both during construction and
operation of the proposed route. The height of the embankment (12.9m) will
have a permanent change on the landscape and will impact on the small
communities of Little Ingestre as well as Ingestre. We are concerned about the
potential noise impacts HS2 could have on the hamlet. Ingestre is a small
hamlet and HS2 poses significant impacts on the tranquillity of the area as well
as loss in amenity value as the route cuts through some of Ingestre Park Golf
Club. We expect HS2 Ltd to support the club in remaining functional both
during construction and operation of HS2 so that this important recreational and
employment venue can continue to function upon completion of HS2.

HS2 cuts through Upper Hanyards farmhouse and associated buildings. In
addition to dissecting high quality farmland, the loss of this farm will have an
impact on our rural economy. We expect HS2 Ltd to support the affected
farmer and develop an approach so that viable farmland remains upon
completion of the proposed route. This means suitably sized viable areas of
land complete with good soil structure and gradient for natural drainage.

Hopton and Coton

The proposed route passes adjacent to the County Show Ground that will see
the loss of land and associated infrastructure owned by the Show Ground. To
reduce the impact of the route on the County Show Ground, we believe a 600m
cut and cover tunnel as shown in Figure 1.2 will allow the venue to remain
functional during operation of HS2.

As the proposed route continues towards Hopton, it passes close to the
Registered Hopton Heath Battlefield. It is expected that HS2 Ltd will give due
consideration to mitigating impacts on this historic site and we expect that the
relevant organisations will be consulted in due course. A number of ring ditches
and barrows are also recorded in this area suggesting the presence of a Bronze
Age burial landscape, and HS2 Ltd should fully consider the potential for further
archaeological remains to be present in the area to the north east of Stafford.

At Hopton the proposed line passes through deep cutting and a ‘green’ tunnel.
This combination could assist in screening the noise impact on some areas of
the village, although there is significant concern that dwellings to the west in
Mount Edge would be exposed to increased levels of noise. We expect HS2
Ltd to take into account the cumulative impacts of noise in the area so as to
incorporate meaningful mitigation into the proposals.

We have concerns regarding the impacts, including severance, of the dispersed
village of Hopton. We expect that the raised tunnel proposed to the south of
Hopton will blend into the landscape sensitively.

It is understood that HS2 Ltd has already considered the impacts of the
proposed route on the village of Hopton. However, we believe that the
proposed cut and cover tunnel needs to be extended so as to further reduce the
impacts of the railway on the village. We believe this tunnel should be extended
by a further 400m beyond Hopton Lane. In extending the length of the tunnel
we believe it will reduce the noise and visual impacts of the railway on the
village and contribute to removing community severance.

Pageagé 137



High Speed Rail 2 in Staffordshire Route Consultation Response
Phase Two

%
\
) | cEbwiead ) ol
41 e e MRS e o YT e SN T b =
bbbt o i ey el 'LI.Ill"ll.n:*i"nh‘-'}.ll.l.'.'."‘ "i'-"‘""“lln'nu g )
»e s 2 ) QUi
., Rl | Y Al wr
;,_‘ "'“""“‘"“""ll"ll)lmumu-ul..,..hu....'.'.' e SO
} Nestanequat 4 J
f
{ "* -
f U7
/ i
/
|
‘)
\\
\
TR LTI )
A IPTOS F AL DY AR
T | Ml baw
el - L8 & T
B —— ——t 1 SRS .y S
e e e | e J Y
R - —— |- o ——— .
——, B T o .
\ oz e S Ly
> e

\
Propnsed 800m Cut & Caover
tunnel at the County Show Graund

Figure 1.2: Proposed 600m Cut and Cover Tunnel
Marston

The proposed route will have a significant effect on the small rural community of
Marston as well as affecting its landscape character and setting resulting in
visual impacts. On the approach to Marston the line is on an 8 metre
embankment for around 700m which is then followed by a shallow 4 metre
cutting for around 900m. At this location the line is broadly parallel to Yarlet
Lane and we are concerned that there are a number of dwellings which would
experience a significant impact in increased levels of noise that will impact on
their tranquillity.

We expect HS2 Ltd to consider lowering the route and remove the vertical curve
from CH24725.4 to CH26720. By doing this, and subject to detailed design and
consultation, we believe the proposal could reduce the proposed 8m
embankment by 5m. Through detailed discussion with the highway authority
and the local community, Marston Lane could be realigned to pass over HS2 as
a result of lowering the proposed route.

The further loss of high quality farmland will have an impact on our rural
economy in this area and HS2 in its current form has the potential to see the
loss of two farms. The proposed route also cuts through the County Council's

Page™¥38°°



High Speed Rail 2 in Staffordshire Route Consultation Response
Phase Two

farmland at Yarlet Bank that will affect the operation of the farms both during
construction and operation of the proposed route.

We expect that HS2 Ltd will give full consideration to mitigating the
constructional and operational impacts of the route on this small community and
agricultural businesses through detailed dialogue.

Stone Rural

The 13.7m high embankment at CH29600 has the potential to impact on local
farming as a result of the permanent and temporary land take. HS2 in this
Parish passes through two farmhouses and is within 500m of three other
farmhouses over a distance of 3.4km. In doing so it also dissects high quality
farmland and potentially associated farm infrastructure that will have an impact
to affected land/property owners and tenants to ensure those affected receive
fair and timely compensation. We also expect that where land is required on a
temporary basis that this land is to be returned to its current owner which is of
quality that is suitable for farming. This means suitably sized viable areas of
land complete with good soil structure and gradient for natural drainage.

In continuing north, the proposed route passes over the B5026 and West Coast
Main Line. HS2 also dissects part of Poolhouse Wood SBI that will affect
broadleaved semi-natural woodland while severing the two parts of the SBI.

In developing its design, we expect HS2 Ltd to incorporate the proposed
embankments between CH32600 and CH33600 into the existing landscape and
we do not expect to provide comments on linear planting along the line of the
proposed route. We believe planting and environmental enhancement needs to
be linked to existing wooded and hedgerow areas in order to promote ecological
connectivity and landscape character.

Swynnerton

After crossing the M6 the proposed line passes through wet grassland and
other habitats within Highlow Meadows SBI. It also passes through several
ponds and hedgerows while severing a significant woodland network at
Swynnerton which is already affected by the M6.

Due to the 14m high embankment to the east of Swynnerton, it could result in
residents in properties on the edge of the village being affected by increased
noise levels which is a concern to the local authorities and the local community.

The route passes close to a cluster of Listed Buildings at Swynnerton; we
expect HS2 Lid to develop mitigation so as to reduce the constructional and
operational impacts of the route on these groups of nationally important
buildings and structures.

As shown in Figure 1.3, we believe the proposed route could be lowered by
approximately 5m. Together with a combination of vertical realignment of
Tittensor Road to pass over HS2, we believe the route could be lowered. In
lowering HS2 through this section, we believe this could reduce the visual and
noise impacts of the proposed route from the Tittensor Road approach.

Pageat 139



High Speed Rail 2 in Staffordshire Route Consultation Response
Phase Two

200 200

100, AG1 and Bottom Lene, —
180 <—l---\~ I 160
170 - = 120
160 '-’___4:—-—"‘"‘——"—“-’—? s : I / - 160
150 4 ° | \ ,\":4 :"lw /' = 150
“‘ZW \ ;;;: EG ?NL
140 5@3 zh g& 5
120 Sie SR 1
\Tll( sniof Road
120 + 1 120
Proposed HS2 lower alignment to facilitate | |
- | Tittensor Road crossing over HS2 i
S 160 - 1 100
O W 8 Q o4 Q@ [ [%] [N (%) 8 Q (%4 . 2 4]
[ owwf TG TIFITIEIIRIIIIIA
oy ™~ L] i ™ “» [ © o ¢ m iy ” - il o “ ™ (')‘

Figure 1.3: Lower Route at Tittensor Road

Before passing under the A51, where small woodlands will be lost, the route
passes very close to Closepit Planation SBI which supports broadleaved
woodland. We expect HS2 Ltd to avoid the impacts of the railway on Closepit
Planation during construction works or any ancillary equipment that may be
required to support HS2, e.g. access tracks.

As the line passes to the east of the A51 at Stableford generally in cutting with a
short 8 metre high embankment over Dog Lane, we are concerned that there
are a number of dwellings to the west of the line at Stableford and east of the
A53 which could be affected by increased levels of noise which is a concern.

The proposed route continues to pass through a further woodland network,
affecting part of Clifford’s Wood SBI whose owner won the Elsie Ashley Trophy,
awarded by the County Council for conservation work by farmers, for work to
enhance the woodland. The line passes through further small woods before
running close to Hatton Common SBI. There are a number of barn owl records
in this location; we expect HS2 Ltd to develop meaningful mitigation of the
impacts on this Schedule 1 species.

The route passes through areas of high sensitivity (identified in Planning for
Landscape Change') north of Swynnerton Heath Farm. The route passes
through this area approximately at grade which will result in detrimental impacts
to the landscape and local community. We expect HS2 Ltd to develop
mitigation measures that will take into account the context of the local
landscape character type (Sandstone Hill and Heath subtype Forest). There
would be potential for increasing woodland cover and a landscape scale
approach should be taken that helps to integrate the linearity of the route into
the subtle undulations of the landform.

The proposed route through Swynnerton will have an impact on local farming
and our rural economy. We expect HS2 Ltd to engage with local landowners at
the earliest opportunity so that meaningful mitigation can be developed which
allows affected farms to continue operating during construction and operation of
HS2. Subject to each business need, we expect agricultural crossings to be
provided and HS2 Ltd to provide support in redefining field boundaries. We
also expect HS2 Ltd to reduce the width of the proposed cutting by developing
engineered solutions so as to reduce the permanent land take.

Page 138
Page 140



High Speed Rail 2 in Staffordshire Route Consultation Response
Phase Two

In addition to the permanent and semi permanent loss of high-quality farmland,
we are concerned that HS2 will impact on the open countryside that will impact
on the tranquillity of the area. We expect this loss in tranquillity to be taken into
full consideration when developing the design and Environmental Impact
Assessment (EIA).

Where the proposed route passes under the junction with the A51 and Bottom
Lane, we expect highway alignments that are acceptable to the highway
authority but also achieve a balance of reduced additional land take. Through
discussion with the Parish Council, land owners and the local community we
expect an informed design to be incorporated at this location.

Whitmore

It is expected that detailed floodplain modelling will take place which could
permit a lowering of the proposed viaduct over Meece Brook floodplain.

The route passes under the A53 to the east of Baldwin’s Gate in cutting before
entering a tunnel under Whitmore Heath for 710m. At Whitmore we are
concerned about the combined noise impact on the village from trains exiting
the tunnel and also from the existing West Coast Main Line to the west.

In an area of high landscape quality it is acknowledged that the Whitmore tunnel
could reduce landscape impacts of HS2 in this area. However, we seek to
maximise the length of this tunnel and/or the creation of a cut and cover tunnel
under Whitmore Wood ancient woodland as shown in Figure 1.5.

The proposed route passes under Whitmore Heath but then travels through
Whitmore Wood Ancient Woodland SBI in cutting. We believe continuance of
the tunnel would radically reduce habitat and severance effects for this
irreplaceable habitat. Despite coniferous planting, the woodland retains ancient
woodland species diversity.

{Proposed 700m cul und cover |
tunnel through Whitmore Wood

I!' j- » - L. Ty ‘;'~ L W (O

e - - — B .
i Pioposed lower HS2 allynment o creale cul| bk T

{ and cover lunnel thiough Whitmore Wood |
Ciwinsga ! BEEESEEREEE PR EERE P REBEE LS ERE S EEET R EEE Ve gl bk T

Figure 1.5: Lower alignment, cut and cover tunnel at Whitmore

We believe removing the vertical curve at CH7035 and CH7401 could
contribute to lowering the HS2 alignment and facilitate the installation of a 700m
cut and cover tunnel, if possible, as an extension to the proposed bored tunnel.
Through detailed discussion with the local community, Parish Council and local
authorities, we expect a balanced mitigation proposal to be developed which
reduces the impact of HS2 on the local community, environment and open
countryside. This mitigation proposal could reduce the destruction of the
ancient woodland currently proposed by the cutting; in proposing this mitigation
option, it is recognised that it will have an impact on the ancient woodland
during construction but long term there could be improved habitat connectivity
as well as reducing the visual and noise impacts on the local community.

Papgda141



High Speed Rail 2 in Staffordshire Route Consultation Response
Phase Two

Beyond the tunnelled section and cutting to the north of Whitmore Heath, the
line is on embankment followed by viaduct as it crosses both the West Coast
Main Line and the disused Silverdale to Madeley railway line. With the line
being elevated for a distance of around 1000m, there is concern that a
significant number of dwellings to the west at Madeley Park could be adversely
affected by noise.

Madeley

After crossing the West Coast Main Line and River Lea on viaduct, the line
impacts on species-rich woodland road verges within Manor Road Verges BAS.

The route crosses the A525 at Madeley in cutting before entering a tunnel for
720m. A short section of cutting is followed by a 14 metre high embankment for
around 1500m as the route moves northwards into Cheshire. We are
concerned about the noise impacts in this area on isolated dwellings to the west
and on the village of Wrinehill to the east.

After crossing under the A525, the route runs very close to Barhill Wood Ancient
Woodland. Though not designated, this is likely to qualify as a Site of Biological
Importance and we expect HS2 Ltd to develop robust mitigation proposals so as
to limit the impacts of the route on the local environment.

The route passes close to the east of the scheduled remains of Madeley
Moated Manor House. HS2 Ltd should carefully consider approaches to
mitigating the constructional and operational impacts of the route on this
nationally important heritage asset and should consult with English Heritage at
an early stage regarding ways to mitigate construction and particularly
operational impacts.

The proposed route also passes close to a cluster of Listed Buildings at
Madeley. The proposed tunnel at Madeley will substantially reduce impacts on
the historic character of Listed Buildings within the settlement, although HS2
should still consider approaches to mitigating the constructional and operational
impacts of the route on these groups of nationally important buildings and
structures at the southern end of the tunnel.

We expect HS2 Ltd to develop mitigation which complements the existing
landscape and does not create linear screening along the route. Noise and
visual mitigation needs to have the right balance so as to reduce the impact of
the route on local farming.

Page Fi%f Lo



High Speed Rail 2 in Staffordshire Route Consultation Response
Phase Two

QUESTION TWO

Do you agree or disagree with the Government’s proposals for:
a. A Manchester station at Manchester Piccadilly?

Notwithstanding our response to question one, we agree with the logic of the
Government’s proposals for a station at Manchester Piccadilly, subject to the
details contained in response to question three being incorporated into the
scheme.

If, as suggested, high speed rail is about linking cities together and bridging the
north south divide, then a station at Manchester Piccadilly is potentially a key
part of the proposed new network. Notwithstanding our objection in principle
against HS2, it appears logical to site a station at Manchester Piccadilly as this
provides greater connectivity to the wider north west and makes use of existing
intermodal public transport networks.

From a Staffordshire perspective, residents and businesses of Staffordshire are
unlikely to travel north to make use of the proposed station at Manchester
Piccadilly and in fact would predominately use the ‘classic’ network to access
Manchester Piccadilly and the north west. With this in mind, we believe the
classic compatible connectivity package, as outlined in response to question
three, should be incorporated in the proposals in order to provide Staffordshire’s
residents and businesses with frequent reliable services to Manchester and
beyond.

b. An additional station near Manchester Airpori?

Notwithstanding our response to question one, and as above, we agree to the
Government’s proposals for a station at Manchester Airport, providing the
information contained in response to question three is incorporated into the
scheme.

If the decision to proceed with HS2 is made, then it would appear logical to link
up the UK’s major airports into the proposed high speed network. Staffordshire
supports the development of regional airports.

From Staffordshire, the rail connectivity to Manchester Airport is currently very
poor. At best the rail journey from Stafford to Manchester Airport would take

approximately Thr-30mins = which fequires a change at Vianchester Piccadilly
or Crewe. If the proposals as outlined in our response to question three are
incorporated into the scheme, we believe a classic compatible service serving
Birmingham Interchange and Manchester Airport provide some of
Staffordshire’s residents and businesses with improved access to Manchester
Airport.

It is considered a reasonable assumption that those arriving at Manchester
Airport will be either living or visiting north Staffordshire conurbation and the
north west and would have deliberately chosen to fly to that airport for proximity
of their final destination. It seems unlikely that significant numbers of inbound
passengers would fly into Manchester Airport then make use of the high speed
network to travel to Birmingham or London. Having considered the costs and
travel time, it is highly likely that passengers would fly direct to the areas closest
to their final destination — and vice versa.

Page 143
Page-9% -



High Speed Rail 2 in Staffordshire Route Consultation Response
Phase Two

It is expected that, as a result of released capacity and the introduction of
classic compatible rail services, access to Manchester Airport and beyond from
Staffordshire can be improved. This would support Staffordshire’s ability to
attract inward investment, create employment and economic prosperity.
Improved rail access from Staffordshire to Manchester Airport also links into
their future aspiration of increasing its rail modal share of arrival and departure
journeys?, i.e. a greater number of passengers using rail services to access the
airport.

Z Manchester Airport, Ground Transport Plan: Part of the Manchester Airport Master
Plan to 2030.

http://www.manchesterairport.co.uk/manweb.nsf/AttachmentsByTitle/TransportStrateq

y/$FILE/Grndtrans-screen.pdf
Page-Bd4ge 92




High Speed Rail 2 in Staffordshire Route Consultation Response
Phase Two

QUESTION THREE

Do you think there should be any additional stations on the western leg
between the West Midlands and Manchester?

In considering the consultation information, and having an awareness of the
aspirations of other organisations in Staffordshire, we believe that there should
be no additional stations on the western leg between the West Midlands and
Manchester. On reviewing the proposed route, we believe there appears to be
no clear location that could lend itself to a site suitable for an intermediate
station. Whilst no detailed analysis has been carried out, this is based on the
location of the proposed route in relation to existing road and intermodal
transport networks as well as the proximity of Stafford and Crewe being served
by a ‘classic compatible’ service. However, if HS2 is to be imposed on us we
do ask for the following:

e A package of intermodal connectivity measures to provide Staffordshire’s
residents and businesses with improved access to the proposed high
speed rail network

e Modifications to the proposed infrastructure at Crewe to maximise
connectivity between classic compatible and high speed services

e QGreater use of classic compatible rail services that can serve
Staffordshire stations on the West Coast Main Line to provide improved
rail connectivity to both the north and south

The rationale behind the above ‘asks’ are outlined in the following text.

Modifications to the proposed infrastructure at Crewe

As shown in Figure 3.1, we believe that through making use of the proposed
junction at Handsacre under the Phase One proposals, both Stafford and
Stoke-on-Trent could make use of the existing and proposed infrastructure to
provide improved rail services than those currently available.  Through
modifications to the proposed HS2 infrastructure at Crewe, there is potential for
classic compatible trains to use the proposed HS2 route north of Crewe to serve
Manchester Airport and Manchester Piccadilly as illustrated in Table 3.2,
without further impacting on Staffordshire. Modifications to the proposed
infrastructure at Crewe also provide the potential for other stations on the West
Coast Main Line (such as Lichfield Trent Valley and Tamworth) to access the
proposed high speed rail network north of Crewe. We believe modifications to
the proposed infrastructure at Crewe could provide improved integration of the
HS2 network and the existing classic rail network should the scheme go ahead.

In order for north Staffordshire to compete on a national level, it is important that
the current rail services from Stoke-on-Trent to London do not diminish from 29
to 19 as suggested in the current documentation. HS2 is already having a
significant impact on Staffordshire and we need to ensure our existing good
connectivity to London is maintained should the scheme go ahead.

Page 145
Page-93 -



High Speed Rail 2 in Staffordshire

Route Consultation Response

Phase Two
} Manchester Piccadilly
7
\' \e
H & @® H Rail Station Locati
A Manchester Alrport iy /0 alion Localions
P & === Classic Rail Line
@) /’ Qe T
..‘\ ‘ \“. (West Coast Main Line)
._:.\.J\ Il. === Proposed HS2 Route
Lo}
°.\‘ (. (Phases One and Two)
Y
'3:\ “ eeee HS2 | td Proposed Classic
'?}\ ,.’0 Compatible Service
-.\\ ' : eeee Staffordshire County Council
'.‘; ,I.‘ Additional Proposed Classic
A Compatible Service
Modification to the 0006 Staffordshire County Council

at Crewe

proposed infrastructure

Additional Proposed Classic
Compatible Service

Location | G inites) | Tim via 162 (minutes)
Birmingham 0 0
Stafford 30 20
Crewe 50 40
Manchester Airport 80 55
Manchester 95 63

Y
S

This product includes mapping data licensed from Ordnance Survey
with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.
© Crown copyright and / or database right 2013. All rights reserved.
Licence Number 100019422. November 2013.

Classic compatible service
using proposed Phase One
junction with West Coast
Main Line

Figure 3.1: Proposed classic compatible rail services utilising existing rail

Page Jdfye 94

infrastructure and the proposed HS2 route




High Speed Rail 2 in Staffordshire

Phase Two

Route Consultation Response

Table 3.3 illustrates a possible service pattern that provides Staffordshire’s
residents and businesses with the best possible opportunity to gain access to
the proposed high speed passenger network. It should be noted that both
Tables 3.2 and 3.3 suggest possible service patterns and are subject to further
detailed analysis to determine frequency in addition to other service patterns
and freight movements as a result of any released capacity.

In addition to modifications to the proposed infrastructure at Crewe, we believe
there should be a package of intermodal connectivity schemes incorporated into
the proposals. A package of intermodal connectivity measures that would be of
interest to Staffordshire could include:

e Road improvements to provide improved access to Crewe
e Rail and bus service enhancements from Stoke-on-Trent and Newcastle-
under-Lyme to Crewe
o Appropriate scheduling of high speed/classic compatible rail services to
minimise interchange time at Crewe and other rail stations

If modifications to the proposed infrastructure at Crewe are considered along
with a package of intermodal connectivity schemes, we believe it could provide
some of Staffordshire’s residents and businesses with a choice of rail services
along with the local authority’s ability to attract further inward investment.

HS2 Lid proposed service to Liverpool Lime Street

Service Type Serving the following suggested stations
Classic
compatible L A
: ondon Birmingham . .
service - Lonc_:ion o e Interchange Stafford Runcorn Liverpool Lime Street
to Liverpool Lime
Street
Table 3.1: HS2 proposed classic compatible service through
Stafford utilising existing and proposed HS2 infrastructure
“Modifications to the proposed junction south of Crewe
Service Type Serving the following suggested stations
Classic compatible __— o
: . Birmingham | Birmingham Manchester | Manchester
servlécxep;eglsrport Interchange | Curzon Street Siafiard e Airport Piccadilly
Table 3.2: Suggested classic compatible service through
modifications to the proposed junction at Crewe
Stoke on Trent service utilising proposed junction at Handsacre
Service Type Serving the following suggested stations
Classic Stoke-
cgmpatlble London Birmingham on- Macclesfield | Stockport Manchester
service - London Euston Interchange T Piccadilly
rent
to Manchester

Table 3.3: Suggested classic compatible service through
Stoke-on-Trent services utilising existing and proposed HS2
infrastructure

PhE9gsl 4/




High Speed Rail 2 in Staffordshire Route Consultation Response
Phase Two

Greater use of classic compatible rail services

We believe that Staffordshire’s prosperity is better served through maintaining
and maximising our existing regular and reliable rail services currently operating
on the West Coast Main Line. While recognising that Government sees HS2 as
a project of national importance, and notwithstanding our objection in principle
to the proposals, we believe that should HS2 become operational Staffordshire
should seek to maximise opportunities for classic compatible services using a
combination of the existing West Coast Main Line and the proposed HS2
infrastructure. We believe the network of classic compatible services serving
Staffordshire could operate as outlined in Tables 3.2 and 3.3 in addition to the
proposed Liverpool Lime Street classic compatible service as outlined in Table
3.1.

With one of the principal objectives of HS2 providing increased capacity on the
classic rail network, we believe that Staffordshire’s intermodal connectivity to
the rest of the UK should be improved. Drawing on the types of rail service
currently operating on High Speed 1 (HS1), we believe that there is the potential
for a network of classic compatible services that could operate from stations
such as Stafford and Stoke-on-Trent; while rail stations in Lichfield and
Tamworth could utilise released capacity for improved rail services to both
Manchester and London.

Page 148qe 96



High Speed Rail 2 in Staffordshire Route Consultation Response
Phase Two

QUESTION FOUR

Do you agree with the Government’s proposed route between West
Midlands and Leeds? This includes the proposed alignment, the location
of tunnels, ventilation shafts, cuttings, viaducts and depots as well as
how the high speed line will connect to the East Coast Main Line?

Disagree for the same reasons as outlined in response to question one.

Whilst recognising and welcoming that the proposed route is actually only in
Staffordshire for a very short distance and therefore has a limited impact on
Staffordshire’s communities and environment, it does run alongside the county
boundary and has potential impacts on the local landscape, a loss in amenity
and more significantly the local economy.

We are concerned that the major changes to the M42/A5 junction will have an
economic impact on Centurion Park during construction. The extensive
highway remodelling works to accommodate the proposed route will have a
negative impact on the efficiency of the network, resulting in delays. Such delay
is expected to last for some time during construction. The economic impact
locally appears to be exacerbated through the loss of the service area and other
employment venues. Environmentally, the realignment may also affect the
Kettle Brook Biodiversity Alert Site (BAS) and Local Nature Reserve, declared
by Tamworth Borough Council. This is not acknowledged in the Sustainability

Statement.

Page 149
Page-2f1 -



High Speed Rail 2 in Staffordshire Route Consultation Response
Phase Two

QUESTION FIVE

Do you agree or disagree with the Government’s proposals for:
c. A Leeds station at Leeds New Lane?

Notwithstanding our response to question one, we agree to the Government’s
proposals for a station at Leeds New Lane. If, as suggested, high speed rail is
about linking cities together and bridging the north south divide, then a station in
Leeds is a key part of the proposed network.

Drawing on our response to question three, a proposed station at Leeds New
Lane has the potential to provide Staffordshire’s residents and businesses with
improved access to Leeds by making use of the proposed Birmingham
Interchange Station. However, it is expected that the timetabling of future high
speed rail services will reduce interchange waiting times.

d. A South Yorkshire station to be located at Sheffield Meadowhall?

Notwithstanding our response to question one, we agree to the Government’s
proposals for a station at Sheffield Meadowhall. If, as suggested, high speed
rail is about linking cities together and bridging the north south divide, then a
station in Sheffield Meadowhall is a key part of the proposed network.

Drawing on our response to question three, a proposed station at Sheffield
Meadowhall has the potential to provide Staffordshire’s residents and
businesses with improved rail access to Sheffield by making use of the
proposed Birmingham Interchange Station. However, it is expected that the
timetabling of future high speed rail services will reduce interchange waiting
times. We also expect clear and well planned inter-modal connectivity
packages to be developed to allow a continuation of journeys into Sheffield and
beyond.

e. An East Midlands station to be located at Toton?

Notwithstanding our response to question one, we agree to the Government’s
proposals for a station at Toton subject to the content of question three being
incorporated into the scheme. Providing a network of classic compatible rail
services provides Staffordshire’s residents and businesses with the ability to
access Derby and Nottingham with improved rail services. As outlined above,
to access the eastern leg of HS2, Staffordshire’s residents and businesses will
have to change trains at Birmingham Interchange. It is expected that the
timetabling of future high speed rail services will reduce interchange waiting
times.

In addition to the proposed classic compatible services as outlined in question
three, HS2 Ltd should explore opportunities for improved intermodal services,
particularly from east Staffordshire to Derby, Toton and Nottingham. Together
with the opportunity for improved intermodal connectivity to the aforementioned
cities, we would support the need for improved infrastructure to connect to the
proposed HS2 station, particularly the development of the AS50 given the
potential increased demand on this road from the HS2 development and other
known potential developments along this corridor.

Page 158ge 98



High Speed Rail 2 in Staffordshire Route Consultation Response
Phase Two

QUESTION SIX

Do you think that there should be any additional stations on the eastern
leg between the West Midlands and Leeds?

If the decision to proceed with HS2 is made, then it would appear logical to link
up the UK’s major airports into the proposed high speed rail network.
Staffordshire supports the development of regional airports as a method of
attracting inward investment. We believe where there is potential for connecting
HS2 to regional airports, it could present advantages in terms of increased air
capacity and rebalancing national infrastructure investment across the region.

Despite our objection in principle to HS2, we believe an additional station in the
vicinity of East Midlands Airport could be incorporated in the scheme. Through
the development of classic compatible rail services, and change at Birmingham
Interchange, a station in the vicinity of East Midlands Airport has the potential to
provide improved rail access for Staffordshire’s residents and businesses to this
airport. It is expected that the timetabling of future high speed rail services will
reduce waiting times at Birmingham Interchange to provide a viable alternative
to the transport network currently available.

As illustrated in Figure 8.1, we believe there is potential to improve classic rail
services along the north Staffordshire line between Crewe and Derby. Together
with upgrades to existing infrastructure, intermodal connectivity improvements
with effective timetabling to reduce interchange times are also required from
Derby to East Midlands Airport and the suggested additional HS2 station.

Together with the above, an additional interchange station in the vicinity of East
Midlands Airport could provide an opportunity for Staffordshire’s residents and
businesses with access to the proposed high speed passenger network.

If the Secretary of State is minded to incorporate an additional station in the
vicinity of East Midlands Airport, we would expect HS2 Ltd and the Department
- for Transport to develop associated infrastructure to provide intermodal access
to the station which could comprise:

e |mproved bus services from east Staffordshire

e Road access improvements particularly along the A50

e Intermodal connectivity improvements from Derby to Toton and the
suggested station at East Midlands Airport

e Improvements to the classic rail network (which includes effective
timetabling) to enable rail journeys from Staffordshire to Long Eaton and
East Midlands Parkway with improved connections from those stations to
East Midlands Airport.

Pagdds 1>



High Speed Rail 2 in Staffordshire Route Consultation Response
Phase Two

QUESTION SEVEN

Please let us know your comments on the Appraisal of Sustainability (as
reported in the Sustainability Statement) of the Government’s proposed
Phase Two Route, including the alternatives to the proposed route as
described.

Employment and Housing

HS2 will dissect many farms which has the potential to impact on our rural
economy and these will need to be carefully mitigated. We believe there should
be opportunities to capture the indirect economic benefits of HS2 during
construction. The creation of links to Staffordshire’s supply chain and workforce
needs to result in the training and development of the local workforce.

There is also potential for wider economic benefits to be obtained in linking the
operation and maintenance of a high speed line through the county. We expect
detailed dialogue with the Department for Transport and HS2 Ltd so as to
further understand how Staffordshire could benefit from wider economic
benefits.

Property and Community Integrity

HS2 has the potential to displace home-owners and tenants, and could see the
loss of some community assets — particularly the loss of open countryside. HS2
dissects farmland and associated infrastructure that will have an impact on our
rural economy. It is expected that this loss and impact will be detailed within the
formal Environmental Statement (ES).

The impacts of HS2 on property and affected communities are likely to be
significant, not just during operation but also through many years of construction.
It is expected that the formal ES will detail these impacts and the ways in which
it will be avoided or reduced.

Whilst the introduction of the Exceptional Hardship Scheme is welcomed, this
appears to be doing very little for property owners who are blighted by the
Phase Two route since its announcement. Experience of Phase One has
shown the stress and strain imposed on individuals and small communities who
are impacted by the proposals, and we expect the formal compensation scheme
to become operational at the earliest opportunity.

Access

The impact on Staffordshire’s road network is likely to be felt most during
construction, with delays caused by constructing road diversions and increased
construction traffic on local roads. We expect HS2 Ltid, in developing its
assessment of the impacts, to be in detailed dialogue with the local authorities
so that these impacts are reduced and eliminated where possible.

To provide economic prospefity and create employment, it is important that
Staffordshire’s residents and businesses can utilise the highway network with
little delay as a result of increased HS2 related traffic during construction.

Detailed discussion with the local authority in relation to public rights of way is
welcomed but it is requested that HS2 Lid discuss impacts on public rights of
way with the local access forum. Experience to date indicates that HS2 Ltd is
primarily concerned with perceived important routes rather than local ones. We

PageH:R 100



High Speed Rail 2 in Staffordshire Route Consultation Response
Phase Two

do not consider this an acceptable approach or methodology and request that
all public rights of way are included in the desktop and field surveys.

Noise and Vibration

We expect HS2 to fully engage with the affected local authorities on all noise
and vibration issues and to provide appropriate technical information as the
route design is developed. :

HS2's approach to Phase Two appraisal is to follow on from the methodology
developed for Phase One. The County Council and Lichfield District Council
have the benefit of working as part of the Planning Forum Acoustics sub-group
for Phase One and have had the opportunity to examine the noise methodology
and associated matters such as the Code of Construction Practice. The
outcome of the liaison process is an action tracker of issues raised and a
register of candidate issues where local authorities have fundamental concerns
about the noise appraisal methodology. We are concerned that the issues
raised and logged with HS2 Ltd still remain outstanding and we seek
assurances that these will be fully addressed and resolved before the noise
appraisal work commences for Phase Two.

We seek to ensure that HS2 Ltd develops the highest level of mitigation to
reduce the impact where increases in noise are identified in the appraisal
process. It is vitally important that the whole community is included in the
process and that all dwellings subjected to noise impact will benefit from
mitigation measures and not just at locations where there are clusters of

properties.

We also seek assurances that detailed baseline noise surveys are carried out
and that the general level of 45 dB LAeq, 18 hr as given in the Sustainability
Statement is not used in the appraisal process.

Air Quality

We are extremely concerned with the increased levels of emissions and
pollutants associated with construction activities, equipment and road traffic.
Construction activities will generate dust and emissions from construction traffic
which could have an impact on human and sensitive receptors as well as
ecological receptors.

Whilst mechanisms to control these potential impacts would be set out in and
rigorously applied through the Code of Construction Practice (CoCP), we expect
the CoCP to have suitable control measures in place so as to monitor and
review the effectiveness of those measures.

Health, Well-being and Equality

There appears to be little detail provided on the negative health impacts along
the Phase Two route in Staffordshire. It is expected that details of potential
negative impacts relating to displacement of employment, noise and demolition
of housing and loss of community amenity will be included in a future health
impact assessment. It is expected that this will include the effects caused
during construction.

Pagg-a’%? 153



High Speed Rail 2 in Staffordshire Route Consultation Response
Phase Two

The loss of community facilities can have an impact not only on those most
deprived but on those that are house-bound, less mobile or older, particularly in
rural areas.

There needs to be recognition of the emotional attachment that can be attached
to a home, particularly if an individual has lived there a long time or it is near
family and friends. The impact from severance from that home and the
community should not be under-estimated. Moving away or being forced to
leave your home can also lead to depression, not just stress and anxiety as
stated, affecting the mental health of those being displaced. This negative
impact on mental health will lead to increased health and social care costs.
Any replacement housing should be of the same standard and offer the same or
higher standard of living for those moving.

Landscape and Visual

The Sustainability Statement refers to Natural England National Character Area
Profiles and correctly identifies that these are being updated. Many of these are
now available and it would be expected that these will be used to inform
assessment and mitigation. Planning for Landscape Change — Supplementary
Planning Guidance to the Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Structure Plan,
1996-2011 is also under review. The Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment
will be expected to refer to Planning for Landscape Change or its successor
document when describing landscape character and incorporate
current/emerging guidance.

Cultural Heritage

One of the principal concerns within the HS2 Phase Two Appraisal of
Sustainability lies within the Landscape, Townscape and Visual (LTV) technical
report. The Built Heritage Technical Report correctly considers the broad
aspect of the built heritage while the Archaeology technical report identifies
Scheduled Monuments and Registered Battlefields clearly stating that
undesignated below ground remains will not be considered at this
stage. Throughout the Archaeology report and the Landscape, Townscape and
Visual report there is no clear indication where the assessment of historic
landscape character lies.

It is therefore advised that the historic landscape character (HLC) should be
considered under both the Cultural Heritage report and the Landscape,
Townscape and Visual technical report. The HLC project has identified the
historic components of the landscape which informs an understanding of the
processes that have affected the way the landscape looks today. Consequently,
the HLC provides a context to the historic and archaeological data contained
with the Historic Environment Record (HER), through an understanding of the
process of landscape change. As part of the landscape assessment, the HLC
provides, at the very least baseline evidence, for an understanding of historic
development as well as the recognition of continuity and survival of extant
historic fabric and how this contributes to current landscape character.

It is concerning that the LTV report identifies Swynnerton Park (HSMO3:
Marston to Swynnerton) as one area of woodland which borders the parkland
but makes little mention of the parkland character itself. In a similar vein, the
study does not consider the Grade | Registered landscape park at Shugborough
which lies less than 1km to the south of the proposed route. This is a nationally

PagePibd 102



High Speed Rail 2 in Staffordshire Route Consultation Response
Phase Two

important landscape complete with a Grade | mansion house and a range of
eighteenth century garden monuments and as such must be considered in such
a preliminary landscape study. Again, the Built Heritage report does consider
the Registered Park but there must be crossover between these disciplines.

Biodiversity and wildlife

The Sustainability Summary lacks consideration of sites designated for county
importance which are identified as being of fundamental importance for
biodiversity conservation by the Natural Environment White Paper. There is no
reference in the Statement to information obtained from local records centres,
including Staffordshire Ecological Record that includes that information.

The loss of ancient semi natural woodlands should be avoided as removal of
this precious asset cannot be mitigated against as the soils and species
composition and maturity cannot be replaced. However, in developing
mitigation proposals we would expect HS2 Lid to incorporate the optimal
balance of social and environmental cost.

The loss of ancient or veteran trees, which are acknowledged in the National
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) as being of “exceptional value for wildlife, in
the landscape, or culturally” has not been included for assessment. Presence
of these valuable trees needs to be recorded as part of the survey data
collection.

It is expected, that as a major development, HS2 Ltd will carry out a Tree
Survey which records the trees affected by development, in order to offer
suitable mitigation planting options, or consider the potential off site mitigation
planting that will be required. .

We understand that HS2 Lid is in dialogue with the Community Forest groups to
see if suitable sites can be found for mitigation planting. Further information on
this and the potential community benefits should be collated.

Water Resources and Flood Risk

The introduction states that this report places emphasis on the key impacts only.
Whilst this may be necessary at the early stages, there is no mention of surface
water flooding or its mitigation throughout Appendix E5, not even in any
‘Exclusions and Assumptions’ paragraphs.

The Environment Agency estimated that two thirds of the flooding in summer
2007 was due to surface water flooding — more recent events since, in particular
the flooding in 2012, followed a similar pattern.

In order to ensure that surface water is managed effectively, that existing
surface water flooding issues are not exacerbated and that new surface water
flooding issues are not created, the Council expects above surface sustainable
drainage to be utilised. If sustainable drainage systems are to be utilised, we
expect an acceptable maintenance regime and funding (to the operator of HS2)
to be secured to ensure its long-term effectiveness.

We expect that HS2 Ltd will engage with Staffordshire County Council as Lead
Local Flood Authority (LLFA) in the same way as it engages with the
Environment Agency, and non-main rivers will be afforded the same
consideration, both in terms of flooding and ecology, as main rivers.

Pagegg&lSS



High Speed Rail 2 in Staffordshire Route Consultation Response
Phase Two

As part of the detailed Flood Risk Assessment (FRA), it is expected that all
sources of flood risk are included and considered rather than just the fluvial
risks. Where local communities or authorities have highlighted known flooding
issues along the route, or where the route crosses a watercourse (including
ordinary watercourses), these should also be considered in the FRA, detailing
whether there are any existing issues on the watercourse, and how the
construction will affect this.

It is the Council's expectation, that as part of the detailed design stage, full
hydrological and hydraulic models are created and shared, not only to include
fluvial flooding, but also considering surface water, ground water, potential
reservoir inundation and possible flooding from canals being breached.

It is essential that all bridges and other structures associated with HS2 Phase
Two (including temporary works) crossing watercourses are subject to Flood
Defence Consent from the Environment Agency (where crossing a main river)
and Staffordshire County Council (where crossing an ordinary watercourse), so
that the risk of exacerbating fluvial flooding is avoided.

The screening of viaduct crossings has been undertaken with reference to
Flood Zone 2. Flood Zones only show flood risk in catchments greater than
3km2. Surface water flooding and fluvial flooding can also occur on catchments
smaller than 3km?2,

It is expected that in the next iteration, crossings are considered with reference
to the 1 in 200 year shallow Flood Map for Surface Water layer, as well as
Flood Zone 2.

Land Use Resources

HS2 Phase Two will see the loss of high quality agricultural land that will dissect
farms. That could leave some farmers with land that is no longer viable to farm
with resultant impact on their business. This will need to be carefully
considered by HS2 Ltd and we expect appropriate mitigation to be provided in
order to retain suitable farm holdings. As well as farmland on the permanent
way of the HS2 route, further farmland will be lost during construction, for
example for worksites and the construction of embankments and other
development.

Extensive earthmoving operations associated with the proposals are likely to
result in risk of damage to soil quality and structure across the project area
which will take years to remedy. It is expected that HS2 Ltd will incorporate
mature landscaping features in order to provide the maximum opportunity of its
intended purpose from the start.

Excavated Material and Waste Production

The construction of HS2 will generate large volumes of excavated material. We
understand that some could be used for suitable back fill and mitigation
earthworks but we are concerned that the remaining material will be transported
for disposal. The proposal will also have an impact on underlying mineral
resources and generate demand for minerals, particularly aggregate minerals.

Details should be provided regarding the amount of waste requiring disposal off
site so that options for disposal can be assessed. Whilst it is indicated that 16.7
million cubic metres of excavated material will result from constructing the

PageF2%6 104



High Speed Rail 2 in Staffordshire Route Consultation Response
Phase Two

western leg of the railway, no indication is given as to how much material will be
used within the construction scheme. In relation to this issue, there should be
consideration of local planning policies 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4 and 1.5 of the
Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Joint Waste Local Plan.

Details indicate a requirement for 3.1 million tonnes of concrete on the western
leg and 3.6 million tonnes of concrete on the eastern leg. This will generate
extra requirements on the need for aggregates and in particular place demands
on those quarries supplying plant that manufacture concrete and concrete
products. In addition, in spite of the intention to re-use excavated materials,
there may be sections of the proposed scheme where there is a need to supply
fill material. Locations for borrow pits should be identified at the earliest
opportunity. With regard to saved policies 51 and 52 of the Staffordshire and
Stoke-on-Trent Minerals Local Plan 1994—-2006 early discussion with the local
planning authority is encouraged where there is a need for borrow pits/
disposal.

Proposals to re-use and recycle materials are anticipated but it will be important
to identify suitable sites along the project area where this type of waste
treatment and stockpiling of materials can be acceptably undertaken. In relation
to this issue, there should be consideration of local planning policies 3.3, 3.4,
4.1 and 4.2 of the Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Joint Waste Local Plan.

No existing permitted quarries within Staffordshire will be affected but sections
of the western leg will affect land with sand and gravel resources. In particular,
there are river gravels around Kings Bromley; bedrock deposits around Hopton
and Swynnerton; and glacial deposits at Madeley. The proposed route,
therefore, would affect areas where there are potentially valuable sand and
gravel resources.

It is expected that opportunities to use inert spoil to restore quarries should be
investigated. Opportunities for disposal in Staffordshire quarries may arise in
association with construction works for the eastern leg as well as the western
leg.

With regard to policy 1.1 of the Waste Local Plan and saved policy 5 of the
Minerals Local Plan, opportunities for the use of aggregate minerals excavated
as part of the construction scheme should be exploited particularly where
aggregate minerals can be processed to manufacture concrete.

With regard to policy 1.2 of the Waste Local Plan, opportunities should be
undertaken to use alternative aggregates, e.g. recycled construction wastes
from the construction area and those generated in the local area.

Page 157
Page-105



High Speed Rail 2 in Staffordshire Route Consultation Response
Phase Two

QUESTION EIGHT

Please let us know your comments on how the capacity that would be
freed up on the existing rail network by the introduction of the proposed
Phase Two route could be used

It is very important to Staffordshire’s residents and businesses that there is no
reduction in the existing level of rail services; we believe these should be
maintained and improved wherever possible. The Network Rail Better
Connections: Options for the integration of High Speed 2® document already
recognises that stakeholders do not wish to see existing services being diverted
with extended journey times to the detriment of existing passengers, which is a
view we share.

Staffordshire County Council has recently undertaken a rail survey
questionnaire to inform its emerging Rail Strategy; of the 428 responses
received, the key themes emerging from the comments received in relation to
released capacity include:

e Improved local rail services with the West Midlands

e Increased direct rail services from a greater range of destinations to
Stafford and Crewe — which will be served by a classic compatible
service under the current proposals

e Improved services at evenings and weekends including higher
frequencies and longer operating days

e Good interchange links to and from the proposed HS2 hub stations

e Improved rail links to airports including Birmingham, Manchester, East
Midlands, Stansted, Luton and Gatwick

At the time of writing, the above data is emerging and will be analysed further to
understand the long-term aspirations of Staffordshire’s rail connectivity.
However, we believe the above summary provides early thought which can be
used to develop informed rail use planning.

As illustrated in figure 8.1 Staffordshire already has a network of classic
compatible rail infrastructure. If HS2 is to become operational we believe any
released capacity on the classic rail network should seek to provide improved
rail links from the towns in which the classic rail station serves to regional
airports and the proposed high speed network. This should be accompanied by
well-planned intermodal connectivity schemes to facilitate efficient and reliable
end to end journey’s.

We are aware that Network Rail is currently engaged in a study looking at
options for the integration of High Speed 2 with the existing network, and has
held a number of stakeholder workshops to look at how the capacity released
by HS2 could be used, for services on the West Coast Main Line, East Coast
Main Line (ECML) and Midland Main Line (MML). A number of rail connectivity
gaps have been highlighted to Network Rail which could improve Staffordshire’s
rail connectivity, and it is encouraging to note that a number of these have been
included within the ‘Better Connections’ document.  We believe the
aforementioned document includes new direct services from Lichfield to the
East Midlands, and improves the connectivity from Staffordshire to the East
Midlands.

% Better Connections: Options for the integration of High Speed 2. Network Rail, July 2013

Page g&% 106



High Speed Rail 2 in Staffordshire Route Consultation Response
Phase Two

Faster services between Birmingham and Nottingham are also highlighted
which could provide improved rail connectivity for Tamworth and Burton-on-
Trent. Subject to journey times, this is something which is welcomed.

As outlined in response to question three, if the decision to proceed with HS2 is
made we believe having the existing national rail network integrated with the
proposed HS2 network is important. |f HS2 becomes operational, it is important
that all HS2 stations, whether served by a classic compatible or dedicated high
speed services, are better connected wherever possible.

Page 159
Page- 807



lel

}JOM]aU [ie1 JISSEe}O 3y} 0} sjuswanosdwi palsabbng :1'g ainbi4

Saljawoliy 0L g 62 0
‘€102 JequadeQ
'Z2¥61.000 1 JaquinN 89uddr]
‘panasal sibu Iy "€102 bu
aseqejep Jo / pue JybuAdoo umoi) @
‘3130 Aiauonels shisalep JeH o
18]|043U0D) 3y} Jo uoissiwiad 3y} yim
Aanng 8oUBUPIQ WO PESUaD)| Blep
Buiddew sapnjoul jonpoid siy L

o

\

g

4
]
[

Sarmman. =’

7 ~
Buijjepoway / sepesbdn uogoune

spaadsaui Jo
speibdn / Buyeubisey aining [enusiod
uol1eollo8|3 8injnd [BRUS10d
Spaa7 0} SPUBIPIN IS8 CSH ===
18]S8UOUB| @ SPUBIPI ISSAA O UOPUOT ZSH ===
suoljeis pue aulT [leY JISSB|D =@ =
suoieo0T uonels |iey pesodold 2SH m

o=~
o>x0nn A S

asuodsay Uole)Nsuoy) ainoy

om| aseyd
au1yspoyeIS Ul Z [IeH peeds YbIH

Page 160Q¢ 108



High Speed Rail 2 in Staffordshire Route Consultation Response
Phase Two

QUESTION NINE

Please let us know your comments on the introduction of other utilities
along the proposed Phase Two line of route

Staffordshire’s landscape is marked by a range of utility equipment both above
and below ground. It would appear logical for Government to think about the
inclusion of utility apparatus along the proposed Phase Two line of route to
further reduce the impact of future utility equipment on our landscape.

We expect Government and the Department for Transport to consult with the
relevant utility companies so as to develop an understanding of their long-term
aspirations and planning. This joined up approach would ensure an opportunity
is not missed and potentially reduce any further impacts on Staffordshire’s
landscape.

However, in supporting the proposal in principle to introduce other utilities along
the proposed Phase Two line of route, we feel there is insufficient information at
this stage to understand the wider impacts of what the introduction of utilities
along the proposed route would mean. If the introduction of utilities results in a
wider footprint of the proposed railway, and ultimately greater permanent land
take, then we would need to understand what the alternative option is, i.e. a
new network of overhead power lines and associated pylons compared to a 2m
wide underground service trench as part of HS2.

With this in mind, we expect Government to provide further details of what
utilities are expected to be incorporated along the proposed Phase Two line of
route and consult on the options available.

Fagaactol



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 162



CABINET Agenda ltem 13

23R° JANUARY 2014

REPORT OF THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR PUBLIC HOUSING AND VULNERABLE
PEOPLE

LANDLORD SERVICES HIGH RISE FIRE SAFETY

EXEMPT INFORMATION
None

PURPOSE

To set out the Councils response to the Coroners recommendations issued in 2013’
concerning the retro-fitting of sprinkler systems to high rise flats, namely the 6 high-
rise blocks in Tamworth’s town centre.

To set out the options available and estimated costs, noting that the subsequent
expenditure will be built into the capital budget setting process as appropriate for
2014/15.

RECOMMENDATIONS
Cabinet are recommended to:-

1. Approve retrofit installation of automatic sprinkler system to individual
flats and communal landings in the Town Centres 6-high rise blocks as
shown at option 3 in the report.

2. Delegate the decision on the final design and product specification to
the Director of Housing & Health and the Director of Assets and
Environment in conjunction with the Portfolio Holder of Public Housing
& Vulnerable People

3. A further report to Cabinet, should the total capital costs of the scheme
differ significantly from current estimates and therefore not be met from
the £1.1m funding included within the provisional 2014 — 2019 HRA
Capital Programme, in the 2014 budget process, for fire upgrades to high
rise flats.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The council’s landlord already has robust and effective controls in place to mitigate
against fire risks. In March 2012 Cabinet approved investment of £135k to further
minimise the risk of fire carrying out various fire stopping and compartmentalisation
works to the basement areas of each of the 6 tower blocks. In response to good
practice guidance issued at the time, this investment alongside other actions has
continued and is checked independently by the council’s contractor for fire risk —

' 04/2/13 - Rule 43 Issued by Coroners Office

Page 163



Graham Environmental, as well as through internal audit procedures.

Notwithstanding that, high-rise social housing blocks create a number of specific fire
safety and fire-fighting challenges that may not exist in other properties. Following
the Lakanal fatalities in 2009, H.M. Coroner issued a recommendation, known as rule
432 stating that Social housing providers should be encouraged to consider the retro-
fitting of sprinklers in all existing high rise buildings in excess of 30 metres in height,
particularly those identified by Fire and Rescue Services as having complex designs
that make fire-fighting more hazardous and/or difficult. (Shown at annex one). The
DCLG followed this up in April 2013 reminding the Council of its obligations under the
Housing Act 2004, the Regulatory Reform (fire safety) Order 205 and the Housing
Health & Safety Rating System (HHSRS). For information this report details the
response to the retro-fitting of sprinklers as the other relevant recommendation
referred to in the Coroners letter concerned the removal of all surface mounted
plastics which Tamworth has already done and continues to be standard practice.

Staffordshire Fire & Rescue Service (SFARS) support the retro-fitting of fire
suppression sprinkler  systems generally as referenced here -
http://www.staffordshirefire.gov.uk/1576.asp In fact SFARS report a sprinkler
system is ‘like having the equivalent of a fire-fighter, ready and waiting, in your own
home’. Key benefits generally accepted are:-

v Fire sprinklers protects the individual and not just the property, as with
traditional fire stopping protection

v' There have been no reported fatalities where Sprinkler systems have been
fitted and maintained properly

v' With fire sprinkler systems the damage is contained and significantly reduces
the spread of fire

v Sprinkler systems are required in new build properties above 30metres

v Legislation is likely going forward

Landlord Services have a good relationship with Staffordshire Fire & Rescue Service
(SFARS) and in 2013 a multi-agency workshop was held to discuss the cost benefits
of fitting sprinkler systems. At the time SFARS confirmed Tamworth was the only
landlord having the conversation, so there remains limited evidence to compare with
others. Consequently Staffordshire FARS has since written to the Council supporting
the retro-fitting of sprinklers and this correspondence is shown at appendix two.

Whilst there is no legislative and/or statutory requirement to retro fit sprinkler systems
in the high rise the profile of the tenants and leaseholders in the block was assessed
to help inform this report and data suggests there could be a greater risk of fire and
retro-fitting would be prudent.

When looking at Tamworth specifically, the additional benefits were highlighted:-

v' The age and vulnerability of some of the residents in the high rise in Tamworth
does potentially increase the risk of fire, i.e. estimated that 45% are smokers,
65% have reduced mobility and there is an increased use of mobility scooters
resulting in residents charging batteries

v' Additional fire stopping work would be required if Sprinklers were not fitted at
around £40k. This is not needed if sprinklers are fitted.

2 Rule 43 - requires that a Coroner who believes that actions should be taken to prevent the re-
occurrence of fatalities. ..

Page 164



v Tamworth has a proactive approach to health and safety management and
does not support a passive approach to fire risk management.

The British Automatic Fire Sprinkler Association (BAFSA), following the Lakanal
disaster and in response to the Coroners recommendation have produced a DVD
illustrating the benefits and considerations when fitting fire sprinklers. The Callow
Mount Project in Sheffield is particularly useful as the South Yorkshire Fire Service
not only highlights the success of these systems in a fire-fighting sense, but tenants
also dispel the myths about difficult installations and report increased confidence and
higher levels of re-assurance post the works.

The following video clip captures all the key messages and Cabinet are urged to view
this short commentary. Areas to note are the stark contrast between two bedrooms
with fires started - 1 with a sprinkler and 1 without; additionally the reassurance to
tenants and leaseholders that installation can be done whilst they remain at home;
likelihood of sprinklers operating accidentally is estimated at 16million to 1 and fire
suppression occurring within minutes — time otherwise that would potentially lead to
fatalities.

http://www.bafsa.org.uk/publications/sprinklers-for-safer-high-rise-living.php

It is considered that all flats should have sprinklers installed, including Leasehold to
ensure the blocks are fully protected. Therefore it is essential consultation is carried
out with Leaseholders to obtain consent to install the system into individual
Leasehold properties and identify potential refusals at an early stage.

This issue has been considered by the Tenant Consultative Group (TCG) and they
initially felt that the additional works were not necessary for the reasons outlined later
in the report. Primarily because they already have a high level of confidence in the
fire measures the council has already put in place. But having watched the video clip
from the South Yorkshire pilot, understanding that disruption during installation can
be minimised and in fact the water suppression would protect their property as well
as themselves are now happy to support the recommendations.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Cabinet know that preparations are underway to update the HRA Business Plan.
Latest stock condition data has been assessed & the HRA base budget makes
provision for this investment. Whilst the capital expenditure, estimated at c£1m,
could be diverted elsewhere the HRA can sustain this level of expenditure whilst
continuing to meet its wider obligations and ambitions. Details of the HRA business
plan which will be reported to Cabinet in March 2014.

Estimated Capital & installation costs

Costs are based on the British Automatic Fire Sprinkler Association (Bafsa) project to
retrofit sprinklers at Callow Mount Sheffield and costs quoted in the 2004 BRE study
which are similar to installations in South Ayrshire and Wales.

There are 14 floors and 58 flats to each of the six high-rise blocks making a total of
348 flats. The cost of installation for option 3 has been estimated at c£145k per block
giving an estimated installation cost of c£870k. This allows for up to £2,500 per flat
including decoration and other residual works. Clearly final and actual costs are

Page 165



subject to the procurement and final tender submissions. As part of the budget
setting process, the provisional HRA Capital Programme for 2014 -2019 includes an
amount of £1.18m for fire upgrades to flats. Should this funding be insufficient then a
further report will be submitted to Cabinet once costs are known.

The costs identified above relate to option 3, which is full implementation of sprinklers
however, should it be decided that an alternative option be implemented the costs
can still be met from the provisional HRA Capital Programme for 2014-2019 with any
surplus allocation being returned to the HRA resources for future projects.

Revenue & Maintenance Costs

The sprinkler system would have a life expectancy of at least 30 years without
replacement of major components. Routine checks will have to be performed by
specially trained members of staff and these will nhormally be confined to checking
water pressures and intervention only if there is a loss of pressure or actuation

The installation will require ongoing maintenance which is estimated to be c£300 per
year, per block. The annual maintenance liability is therefore assessed as c£1,800.
Based on the assumption that because the system can be designed so access to
individual flats is rarely going to be required the cost may be lower, full costing’s will
be known when the procurement is concluded. Maintenance costs are therefore
estimated to be £54,000 over a 30 year period.

Actual costs of sprinkler installation will only be available once the work has been
tendered. The above estimated costs are based on information currently available for
similar installations and may or may not be indicative of actual costs. If there is a
significant difference from the estimate then details will be reported to cabinet as
necessary

The Service Charges (Consultation Requirements) (England) Regulations 2003
introduced by Section 151 of the Common hold and Leasehold Reform Act 2002 will
be followed to ensure correct consultation and allow Leaseholders share of the costs
to be recovered (where the lease allows for recovery of costs for improvement
works). The amount to be recovered from each leaseholder will equate to 1/58" of
the total installation cost for the block in which their flat is located; this will be
recovered in accordance with the terms of the lease. Leaseholders will be invoiced
annually for their proportion of the annual servicing costs again equating to 1/58" of
the total cost per block. The exact figures will only be known once the works have
been tendered and a contract awarded. There are currently 39 leaseholders across
the 6 blocks that will be affected by this which could be potentially offset this
installation cost by c£97.5k

LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND

Currently there is no legal obligation to retro-fit sprinkler systems. If Cabinet approve
the recommendation then it will be going beyond its statutory duty.

If the project continues then partners will be involved in the production of a detailed
risk assessment, headline risks are summarised below

Risk Response
Estimated costs significantly less than These are based on a realistic
actual assessment of the market and projects

Page 166



undertaken in Yorkshire. Significant
variations in cost will be reported back
through to Cabinet if appropriate.
Longer-term disinvestment of the high The Town Centre Strategy is currently
rise being developed and there are no short
term plans to disinvest. Any subsequent
decision will take account of all

cost/benefits
Disruption to the tenants and Officers’ will risk assess and manage
leaseholders this using the tenant regulatory and

involvement team to oversee works has
been successfully done elsewhere
Criticism that the Council has The council has taken a reasonable and
undertaken unnecessary works balanced judgement with its partners.
Sadly it is only when a fire occurs that
this system will ever be fully tested and
its value known

Investment of £1m for fire sprinklers Retro-fitting sprinkler fire suppression
does not guarantee the safety of all systems is an option open to the
occupants in the block council. Whilst there is no guarantee

with any system the council by fitting
sprinklers would be doing it all it could to
prevent a fatality

Unable to recover costs from Procedures will be followed in order to
leaseholders estimated at c£97.5k maximise the opportunity to recover
costs

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

Intrinsic to Tamworth’s vision — “one Tamworth perfectly placed” — are its corporate
objectives for everyone to aspire, prosper and be healthier and safer. Not only will
the letting of this contract bring about added value and secure a social return on its
investment through stimulating the local economy but it will ensure a safer living
environment for our high rise community.

MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION

The high-rise blocks which include Strode House, Weymouth House, Harcourt
House, Stanhope House, Peel House and Townshend House had extensive fire
protection and compartmentalisation works completed in 2012 inline with the
recommendations from Staffordshire Fire and Rescue Service (SFRS) fire officer. A
recent assessment by a chief fire officer indicated the condition of the high-rise
blocks regarding fire safety to be generally satisfactory.

Current fire risk assessments (involving invasive inspection) completed by Graham
Environmental indicate some areas of high risk relating to missing fire-stopping
between floor levels and access panels into individual flats with some minor
recommendations regarding additional fire stopping works. Staffordshire Fire and
Rescue Service have indicated that if sprinkler systems were to be fitted it would
negate the need to provide fire stopping around access panels into individual flats. If
sprinklers are not fitted the fire stopping would be required and has been estimated

Page 167



at between £30k to £40k. Additional low level signage has been requested by the fire

service and this has been completed.

Members should be aware there is no legislative requirement for the retrospective
fitting of sprinklers in any of our blocks, however since the Lakanal House fire and
subsequent investigations the following recommendations are contained in the Rule
43 letter dated 4 February 2013, this letter made the following statement -

Social housing providers should be encouraged to consider the retro-fitting of
sprinklers in all existing high rise buildings in excess of 30 metres in height,
particularly those identified by Fire and Rescue Services as having complex designs
that make fire-fighting more hazardous and/or difficult. It is noted that current
legislation requires that all newly built high rise buildings in excess of 30 metres in
height must be fitted with sprinkler systems.

OPTIONS

Retrofitting of sprinklers was considered by the Tenant Consultative Group (TCG)
last year and initially was not supported on the basis that:-

TCG View

Councils Response

Installation of sprinkler systems is not a
legislative requirement

It is recommended best practice and is
actively supported by Staffordshire FARS

Robust procedures already exist in
relation to “stay-put” and high rise fire
safety

This will continue, the sprinklers will provide
further protection and time to affect rescues

Significant investment was made in
2012 (£130k) to improve fire safety and
included controlled access and
compartmentalisation of the basement
areas in all blocks

Annual fire safety inspections are
undertaken coupled with the council’s
statutory risk assessment undertaking.
The sprinklers will act as a further control
measure.

The design of the blocks are traditional
and differ from blocks where fatalities
have occurred such as Lakanal

Whilst it is not retrospective all current
building regulations for high-rise blocks
above 30metres require sprinklers. The 6
high rise blocks in Tamworth exceed this
height.

There is no guarantee that fire
sprinklers would prevent a fatality
occurring from a fire

Research indicates there is no recorded
fatality where a correctly installed &
maintained sprinkler system is fitted.

The blocks are all electric and occupied
by an ageing tenant base who feels the
likelihood of a fire is therefore more
remote.

The survey undertaken shows that there is
a greater degree of risk of fire due to age
group, disability, smoking and use of
mobility scooters.

Legislation could follow which would
mean additional investment in
subsequent years

Any additional investment is likely to be
proportionate to any already spent.

There could be a risk that sprinklers
would be activated and could be
abused causing damage to flats

Statistics highlighted elsewhere suggest
this occurs in 1:500,000. This will be
mitigated by robust inspection and testing
regime which will be a requirement

Taking on board the comments from TCG a survey was undertaken over Christmas
to assess the level of risk in the blocks and the following identified

Page 168




Average Age 72 years
Registered Disabled 25%
% with reduced Mobility 65%
% Smokers 45%
Use of mobility Scooters 35%
% Charging batteries in the flats 35%

When balancing risk the following conclusions were also drawn when considering the

above

e From the survey the % smoking and/or with limited mobility is such that this
presents a higher degree of risk in the event of a fire.

e Under the Regulatory Framework, the Home standard requires all landlords to
ensure the health and safety of all its tenants and leaseholders and pay

particular attention to risk

e Tamworth FARS actively support the fitting of sprinkler systems following
Lakanal and the workshop held in Tamworth

e There is a history of attempted arson within the blocks and whilst this has not
re-occurred since the controlled access to the basements was installed, town
centre blocks inevitably attract opportunist crime

¢ Should there be a fire, then the fitting of sprinklers together with the other
package of measures adopted, means the council has done all it can to
protect its residents, even if that subsequently results in a fatality

As a result the TCG considered the report again early January 2014 and having
seen the video from the Sheffield Project, and learned the results of the survey
done over Christmas, are more minded to support the recommendations before

Cabinet.

Options Table

Option Estimated Cost

Advantages

Disadvantages

1.Do not fit | £0
sprinkler system

Zero cost for
sprinklers but note
that £30k - £40k of
fire stopping works
would be required

Insurance  premiums
remain the same.
Difficult for SFARS to
tackle fires on the
upper floors

Greater risk to
residents on upper
floors in the event of
fire

Greater potential for
fire to spread to
adjoining flats and
stairwell

Damage in the event
of fire is likely to be
major

Extensive repair and
refurbishment  costs
following a fire

No reduction in the
need to re-house
tenants following a fire

Page 169




Should there be a fire
then the council would
face adverse publicity
around its decision to
not install sprinklers

2. Fit

sprinkler

system to all flats

with

head

inside front door

£626,500

Lower cost than full
system.

Stops spread of fire
onto landing / lobby
area

Reduces the risk of
death and injury to
fire-fighters
Potential for
reduced insurance
costs

Minimum impact of
fire which  would
reduce the need to
re-house tenants
following a fire
Tenants feel safer
knowing they are
better protected
Note that £30k -
£40k of fire stopping

Offers protection to
landing / lobby area
only

Only protects front
door / hall and not
other areas in the flat
Would not extinguish
fire at source so
considerable damage
could occur

Offers limited
protection to residents

would still be

required
3. Fit sprinkler | £870,000 All main areas | Some increase in
system to all flats covered by | installation and
with multiple sprinklers SO | maintenance costs
heads reduction in

damaged caused in
the event of fire
Greater protection
for residents

Greatly reduces risk
to fire-fighters

Potential for
reduced insurance
costs

Minimum impact of
fire which  would
reduce the need to
re-house tenants
following a fire

Tenants feel safer
knowing they are
better protected

Relaxation of the
need to fit heat

Page 170




detectors in
kitchens

Relaxation of the
need to fit and
maintain

intumescent  door
seals on those
leading to escapes
routes

Note that the £30k -
£40k of fire stopping
would not be

required
4. Fit sprinkler | £390,000 Reduced cost Not all areas covered
system to floors Covers floor levels | Tenants on protected
nine (9) to fifteen that SFRS cannot | floors still at risk of fire
(195) reach by access | on lower floors as with

ladders etc disadvantages above
Note reduced level
of fire stopping
works would still be
required for all flats
not sprinklered

Research indicates that automatic sprinkler systems are used more than any other
fixed fire protection system and over 40 million sprinklers are fitted world-wide each

year.

The provision of a sprinkler system not only provides benefits in terms of life safety
and protection of property it can also reduce the impact a fire has on the environment
by limiting the production of carbon dioxide and other products of combustion.

Inherent in the environmental benefit of quick and reliable suppression of fires is the
prevention of the need to replace and repair buildings, resulting in significant savings
in respect of the energy and resources that have to be expended in buildings, which
could include the following:

Extent of post-fire demolition or refurbishment and repair to buildings

Extent of fire-resisting glazing / windows and external panelling

Exposure to harmful materials and substances that can be released in large
fires

Risk of polluting ground, air and water sources

Cost and impact of treating water used by the fire and rescue service which
could be 20 times more than the water used by a sprinkler

Removes the need to relocate residents to temporary or permanent
accommodation by preventing major destructive fires

Facilitating the continued use of the building

Reduction in the exposure of fire-fighters to danger

Less water damage using sprinkler than conventional method

In the event of a fire, life threatening conditions are greatly reduced in
sprinklered buildings

Page 171




Evidence shows that while sprinklers are primarily intended to contain or control fires,
they can also be instrumental in saving the lives of people in the room of origin of a
fire. There are no cases on record where multiple fire deaths have occurred in
buildings with working sprinkler systems, where those systems have been
appropriately designed for the intended purpose and have been properly installed
and maintained. The evidence provided by the fire and rescue service and confirmed
17/12/13 also shows that no lives have been lost in the UK due to fire in homes fitted
with domestic sprinkler systems.

Moreover, where a sprinkler system has been installed:

Fire deaths (including fire-fighter deaths) have been almost eliminated
Fire injuries reduced by 80%

Significant improvement in fire-fighter safety achieved

Property damage reduced by over 80%

Effects of arson reduced

Reduction in the environmental impact of fire

Reduction to the economic cost of fire

The average time taken for the fire and rescue service to reach an incident and be in
a position to intervene is 10 minutes. Most people will have succumbed to the effects
of fire within the first five minutes. A sprinkler will activate within the first three
minutes and have the fire controlled by the fifth minute. Smoke damage is a major
cause of loss in fires and in serious cases smoke is the main cause of death.
Sprinklers wash the larger particles out of smoke reducing its density and toxicity. In
addition the water cools the smoke making it less harmful.

Losses (life, income, uninsured contents/structure and insurance excess) from fires
in buildings protected with sprinklers are estimated to be 1/10 of those in unprotected
buildings.

In buildings fully protected by sprinklers:
*99% of fires were controlled by sprinklers alone
*60% of fires were controlled by the spray from no more than 4
sprinklers

Source: European statistics over 10 year period

» Accidental discharge of water from all causes is 1 in 500,000
(per year of service)

Source: LPC

» Accidental discharge of water due to manufacturing defects is 1
in 14,000,000 (per year of service)

Source: FM (USA) and LPC (UK) statistics

Next Steps

If approved then the capital allocation will be built into the 2014 medium term
financial budget setting process and it is envisaged works would be completed over 2

Page 172



year period. The necessary works would have to be procured and works tendered in
line with the councils standard financial regulations and procurement rules. Update
and progress will be reported via the Portfolio Holder for Public Housing & Vulnerable
People with delegated decisions in relation to the deign and final specification to
ensure value for money.

REPORT AUTHOR

If members would like further information or clarification prior to the meeting please
contact Tina Mustafa on .Ext 467 or John Murden Ext 406.”

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS

1. Shirley Towers Letter 4™ February 2013
2. Rule 43 Covering Letter 10™ April 2013
3. Riverside High Rise Flats Health and Safety Guide

APPENDICES
Annex one — Coroners Recommendation

Annex Two — Tamworth fire officer recommendation
Annex Three — Major Incident log country wide

Page 173



Annex One

&2,

2]
zzzzz

Department for
Communities and
Local Government

10 April 2013

To:
Housing Directors of stock-owning local authorities
Chief executives of Private Registered Providers

In April 2010, two Hampshire FRA firefighters — Alan Bannon and James Shears -

died fighting a fire on the 9" floor of Shirley Towers, a council-owned high rise block
of flats in Southampton. The Coroner has written to the Chief Fire and Rescue
Adviser and to DCLG Ministers to highlight actions which he considers should be
taken to prevent a similar tragedy occurring in the future.

The Coroner’s letter included two recommendations directed particularly at social
housing providers, along with a recommendation that the Minister should disseminate
the Coroner’s recommendations to every social housing provider. | am therefore

attaching a copy of the Coroner’s letter and would ask you to actively consider them.

The relevant recommendations are numbered 5 and 7 in the Coroner’s letter. You

will wish to consider these recommendations carefully when considering your
responsibilities under the Housing Act 2004, the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety)
Order 2005, and the Housing Health and Safety Rating System (HHSRS).

Yours sincerely,

Clle tagort
Terrie Alafat

Director
Housing Growth and Affordable Housing

Page 174



Annex Two
Email correspondence from Dave Thorpe (FRS Fire Safety Officer)

Good morning John,

| refer to your email below and would like to clarify the position regarding sprinklers in
the high rise blocks in Tamworth.

As you are aware there is no legislative requirement for the retrospective fitting of
sprinklers in any of the blocks. Our original discussions took place on 13 June 2013
following the recommendations contained in the Rule 43 letter dated 4 February 2013
this letter made the following statement -

Social housing providers should be encouraged to consider the retro-fitting of
sprinklers in all existing high rise buildings in excess of 30 metres in height,
particularly those identified by Fire and Rescue Services as having complex designs
that make fire-fighting more hazardous and/or difficult. It is noted that current
legislation requires that all newly built high rise buildings in excess of 30 metres in
height must be fitted with sprinkler systems.

During our discussion on19 September 2013 the issue of cost effectiveness was
raised and the figures contained in the report on the retro-fitting of sprinkler in the
Callow Mount development were also discussed (Attached). It is my experience
locally that the costs have been quoted at around £2,500 per flat. However, this was
for a much smaller number of flats. | would expect the cost to be lower for the high
rise in Tamworth where | understand that there are approximately 400 flats.

| am also aware that locally sprinklers have been installed retrospectively into smaller
blocks. This proved to be a cost effective solution due to their age and condition,
and when compared with additional work that was required to bring them up to a
satisfactory standard the cost of retro-fitting sprinklers was favourable.

With regards to the condition of the high rise flats in Tamworth, the general condition
appears to be satisfactory; however this is based on my visit to one block only
(Harcourt House) on the 7 August 2013. Although, some items were identified (copy
of email attached with items noted) that do require attention.

However, this should not distract from the Rule 43 letter that encourages the
retro-fitting of sprinklers and one we would generally support in Tamworth.

To assist you with any decisions Staffordshire Fire & Rescue employs a fire
engineer, his name is Andy Brown, and can be contacted through myself in the first
instance.

Regards,

Dave Thorpe

Fire Safety Officer

Eastern Service Delivery Group
Lichfield Community Fire Station
Birmingham Road

Page 175



Lichfield
WS13 6HU

Direct Line - 01785 898557 Mobile - 07971 893291

Appendix Three
Major high rise incidents noted during the Callow Mount Sprinkler Retrofit

project between November 2010 and November 2011

Time/Date Location Building Floor of Rescues/Injuries/Fatalities
Height Origin
30 November | Marie Curie 14 floors 13" floor 60 people self evacuated
2010 - House
1825hr Southwark
20 December | Omega Way 8 floors 5" floor One male fatality, other
2010 - Somers town residents evacuated to local
1450hr Portsmouth community centre by police
19 January Adamson 15 floors 14" floor One male fatality and one
2011 - Court Lochee other person treated for
0540hr Dundee smoke inhalation. Fire-
fighters evacuated 12
people from six nearby flats
29 January Acre Road 8 floors 5™ floor Elderly couple and adult
2011 = Maryhill son died
2340hr Glasgow
4 February Marine Tower | 16 floors 16" floor Two female residents died,
2011 - Abinger Close paramedics treated 4 other
1445hr Deptford residents one of whom
taken to hospital. * people
rescued and 35 had to
move out
10 February Overtoun 14 floors 4" floor 1 male fatality
2011 — Court Swinton
0645hr Street
Clydbank
14 July 2011 | Tinwald Path | 7 floors 5" floor 1 female fatality, 2 others
— 1620hr Cardonald taken to hospital and
Glasgow residents trapped on top
floor affected by smoke
15 July 2011 | Salamanca 17floors 4" floor Nine people rescued
— 0300hr Place externally, ten more led to
Lambeth safety down internal
staircase and five fire-
fighters treated for smoke
inhalation
2 August Parkfield 13 floors 12" floor Limited structural damage,
2011 - Calow Mount no injuries or loss of life
2215hrs Sheffield
12 August Andrew Reed | 15 floors 9" floor One person taken to
2011 - House Linsted hospital. Fire crews rescued
0030hr Way five people using stairs and
Wandsworth four people from 10" floor
using turntable ladder. 150
people evacuated
13 September | Clem Attlee 17 floors 6™ floor 25 residents evacuated

2011 -
1340hr

Estate Fulham

Page 176




18 September | Cambria 14 floors 14" floor Nine people rescued
2011 — House Larner
0800hr Road Erith
26 September | Markham 10 floors 8" floor Residents from all 44 flats
2011 - Tower Bowers had to move to temporary
1100hr Avenue accommodation

Norwich

Page 177




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 178



(NS PR

,h

Y

K. St. ]J. Wiseman
H.M. CORONER for the Southampton
City and New Forest District

Date: 04 February 2013

Dear Sirs

INQUEST INTO THE DEATHS OF ALAN BANNON AND JAMES SHEARS

I am writing to you concerning the Inquest into the tragic deaths of Firefighters Alan
Bannon and James Shears.

Both men died on the 6™ of April 2010 when fighting a fire in a high-rise block of
flats in Southampton. The Jury brought a narrative verdict as follows:

Death by misadventure in each case in conjunction with the following narrative:

“Firefighters Alan Bannon and James Shears died from sudden exposure to initially
intense heat from 20.38 to 20.41 and thereafter to excessive heat while dealing with a
fire in a flat on the 9™ floor of the high-rise tower block Shirley Towers. Obvious
precautions to prevent the fire occurring were not taken in addition, operating
conditions for all firefighters involved became extremely difficult and dangerous and
this significantly contributed to the deaths of Firefighters Alan Bannon and James
Shears. Numerous factors have been identified as being relevant in the chain of
causation which could have affected the eventual outcome and which, where
appropriate, will form the basis of recommendations to improve safety in the future.”

I am writing to you under the provisions of Rule 43 of the Coroner’s Rules which
reads “a Coroner who believes that actions should be taken to prevent the recurrence
of fatalities similar to that in respect of which the Inquest is being held, may announce
at the Inquest that he is reporting the matter in writing to the person or authority who
may have power to take such action and he may report the matter accordingly”.

I received a number of very helpful reports that assisted me at the Inquest and at its
conclusion I have agreed with all the advocates representing those entitled to be heard
that I should make the following recommendations under Rule 43 to these primary
recipients:

a) Sir Ken Knight, Chief Fire and Rescue Advisers Unit (CFRAU) with
responsibility for disseminating these recommendations to every Fire and

Coroner’s Office
12-18 Hulse Road, Southampton, SO15 2JX
Tel: 023-80-674266/7 Fax: 023-80-674479

Email: EIaineFPﬁ;@a@@hZ@s.gov.uk



Rescue Service (FRS) in the UK

b) Eric Pickles MP, the Secretary of State for the Department for Communities
and Local Government, with responsibility for considering any legislative
changes required to implement any of these recommendations,

c) Brandon Lewis MP, Parliamentary Under Secretary of State for the Fire &
Rescue Service, with responsibility for disseminating these recommendations
to every FRS

d) Mark Prisk MP, the Minister of State for Housing (and Local Government),
with responsibility for disseminating these recommendations to every social
housing provider in the UK.

All these primary recipients listed above should disseminate these recommendations
to every FRS and social housing provider in the UK so that they shall promptly
consider these recommendations in relation to high-rise buildings within their locality,
decide what to do about them and inform the primary recipient of such decisions.

Rule 43 Recommendations for Consideration in relation particularly to the risk
of fire in High-Rise Buildings

1 Guidance and clarification is required with regard to search procedures as set out
in Technical Bulletin 1/97 (Breathing Apparatus Command and Control
Procedures), to ensure that:

e) Thermal imaging cameras are used to search for fire in smoky conditions

f) Fire-fighters understand the importance of fully extinguishing fires before
proceeding past or above the fire scene

g) Methodical search patterns are undertaken e.g. area by area, room by room or
floor by floor.

h) Search patterns are standardised across every FRS in the UK so that there is
common understanding and procedure when fire-fighters from different FRSs
are engaged in joint working.

2 It is recommended that a review is undertaken to ensure that the teaching and
training of those fire-fighting techniques used to contain and cool compartment
fires, on the one hand, fully complement techniques designed to attack and
extinguish fires, on the other. A review should be undertaken into the training
provided in relation to the circumstances and manner in which each technique
should be used. For example, a pulse spray technique should not be used in a fully
ventilated compartment fire, the severity of which will not be controllable by
pulse spraying and gas cooling approach.

3 It is recommended that a review is undertaken to ensure the adequacy of teaching
and training of tactical ventilation procedures in compartment fires to highlight the
effect ad-hoc ventilation can have on fire development and to confirm the
associated dangers.

4 Tt is recommended that all FRSs should consider the implementation of measures
to reduce the risks associated with fallen cables. In particular consideration
should be given to:

a) Providing insulated wire cutters, or other means of severing cables, to all
breathing apparatus teams;

Coroner’s Office
12-18 Hulse Road, Southampton, SO15 2JX
Tel: 023-80-674266/7 Fax: 023-80-674479

Email: Elﬁlagcgd[eﬁ@hants.gov.uk



b) Modifying breathing apparatus sets to reduce the risk of cables becoming
caught between the wearer’s back and the cylinder (as introduced by
Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service — please contact HFRS for more details);

c) Training all breathing apparatus wearers in the risks presented by fallen cables
and how to reduce those risks.

It is recommended that all FRSs and social housing providers consider the Rule 43
recommendations made by HM Coroner for Hertfordshire Mr Edward Thomas'
following the inquest into fire-fighter fatalities at Harrow Court in particular
Recommendation 8 made by the FBU which is here repeated for ease of reference:

“8. That SBC should remove all the surface mounted plastic
trunking/conduit used to protect and support the Fire Alarm and Automatic
Fire Detection System in the Common Areas of all their premises, and replace
them with a method of cable support which as a minimum conforms to BS
5839- Part 1 : 2002; clause 26.2 (f);

Methods of cable support should be such that circuit integrity will not be
reduced below that afforded by the cable used, and should withstand a similar
temperature and duration to that of the cable, while maintaining adequate
support.

Note 7. In effect, this recommendation precludes the use of plastic cable clips,
cable ties or trunking, where these products are the sole means of cable
support.”

It is recommended that Building Regulations are amended to ensure that all
cables, not just fire alarm cables, are supported by fire-resistant cable supports.
This could be achieved by an amendment to BS 7671 (2008) Institute of Electrical
Engineers Wiring Regulations.

Social housing providers should be encouraged to consider the retro-fitting of
sprinklers in all existing high rise buildings in excess of 30 metres in height,
particularly those identified by Fire and Rescue Services as having complex
designs that make fire-fighting more hazardous and/or difficult. It is noted that
current legislation requires that all newly built high rise buildings in excess of 30
metres in height must be fitted with sprinkler systems.

It is recommended that a review of training given to control staff is undertaken by
all FRSs in UK in light of the guidance given in recent GRAs including GRA 3.2
of September 2008.

All FRS should further consider the implementation of measures to ensure that
control staff are properly supervised when taking calls and are trained to capture
and relay relevant information likely to assist operational firefighters.

It is recommended that there should be an obligation to:
a) provide signage to indicate floor levels both in stairwells and lift lobbies in

" The Rule 43 Recommendations from HMC Thomas’ Inquest into the Harrow Court fatalities can be
obtained from the Office of the Lord Chancellor.

Coroner’s Office
12-18 Hulse Road, Southampton, SO15 2JX
Tel: 023-80-674266/7 Fax: 023-80-674479

Email: EIaineFPﬁ;@a@@[‘@dIs.gov.uk



high rise premises, to assist the emergency services;
b) ensure that signage indicating flat numbers and emergency exits in high rise
premises are placed at a low level to increase visibility in smoke conditions.

This could potentially be achieved by amending Article 38 of the Regulatory
Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005, which relates to maintenance of measures
provided for the protection of fire-fighters. Alternatively new legislation may be
required.

I am sure that due consideration will be given to all these recommendations and
policies formulated to ensure the safety of firefighters and the minimalisation of risks
to the occupiers of high-rise flats.

Many thanks for your anticipated attention to this matter. Rule 43A requires that you
give a written response within 56 days of the day the report is sent. If you are unable
to respond within that time, you may apply to me for an extension. The response is to
contain details of any action that has been taken or which it is proposed will be taken
whether in response to this report or otherwise, or an explanation as to why no action
is proposed.

Yours faithfully

K St J Wiseman
HM Coroner for Southampton &
New Forest

Coroner’s Office
12-18 Hulse Road, Southampton, SO15 2JX
Tel: 023-80-674266/7 Fax: 023-80-674479

Email: Elﬁlagcgd@@hants.gov.uk



Agenda ltem 14

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 183



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 196



	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	5 Matters Referred to the Cabinet in Accordance with the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules
	6 Shared Services - Memorandum of Understanding
	9 Off Street Cashless Parking and ANPR Trial
	Appendix 1 Off Street Parking Places Consolidation Order 2014
	Appendix 2 - Grant FAQs

	10 Scheme of Delegation Decisions
	11 Golf Course Future Options Appraisal - Preferred Option Selection
	Appendix 1 FMG Report - Short List Options Assessment
	Appendix 2 - Local Golf Courses Map

	12 High Speed Rail 2 (HS2) Phase Two: Response to the Phase Two Route Consultation
	Appendix A: Councillor Comments

	13 Landlord Services High Rise Fire Safety
	Enc. 1 for Landlord Services High Rise Fire Safety

	14 Fire Safety Partner for Council Owned Stock - Landlord Services

